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Year ended 31 December
B2+ ZA=1+—HILEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
"R ZFF ZZRF 2N ZEAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARKTFE ARETT ARWTT ARWTE ARETE

Profitability data BRIRE D Bk
Revenue i 146,118 208,371 107,881 333,149 354,911
Gross profit/(loss) £/ (#) 35,874 67,395 (62,491) 74,102 76,485
Total comprehensive (expense)/income A/ A A\ K JF 5 Mt

for the year attributable R A E 2T

to owners of the Company and (F30) /ids

non-controlling interests (27,554) 17,216 (168,385) 4,517 4,026
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 4%/ A HE A A1 4F 17

for the year attributable 20 (B30 s 5

to owners of the Company (26,403) 11,336 (162,160) (813) (3,054)
(Loss)/earnings per share B (EH) /BA

— Basic (RMB cents) (Note 1) —HA (NRED) (M1 (0.90) 0.55 (8.06) (0.04) (0.18)

- Diluted (RMB cents) (Note 2) —E (NRWED) (i) (0.90) 0.47 (8.06) (0.04) 18)

Year ended 31 December
REFAZF—HILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
SEoCf CRoF CFOFE CFOUF D3R

Profitability ratios BRIRE LR
Gross profit/(loss) margin EH/ (H) % 24.55% 32.34% (57.93%) 22.2% 21.6%
Net (loss)/profit margin (FE#8) /A% (18.07%) 826%  (156.08%) (0.2%) (1.0%)
Effective tax rate B NARBH NARER NATER NAREH NASER
Return on equity (Note 3) % IR (M 7#3) (5.40%) 2.49% (33.78%) (0.1%) (0.6%)
Return on assets (Note 4) R R (i 7t4) (4.21%) 1.91% (25.98%) (0.1%) (0.5%)

Operating ratios (as a percentage BELE (MR ATLL)

of revenue)

Advertising and marketing expenses  J§ 1 & 1l 3 #fe Ji A 3¢ 16.42% 0.99% 16.14% 0.6% 1.1%

Staff costs BITHA 12.36% 11.24% 15.71% 9.0% 8.2%

Research and development W% B B 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Notes: Bt -

1. The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the 1. BREA (BH) B TIREAR N A A
total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to owners of JRE A 4 A 4 THT B S A8 A R DA AT BRI T B AT
the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary 58 B 1 i B T 28 R

shares in issue during the relevant period.

2, No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended 31 2. BE_Z-_HF+_HA=1+t—HIFE @@
¢ R i i a ﬁﬁzli’\j r'iﬂiﬁﬁ &%5&%?@%%& ]




Assets and liabilities data
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Non-controlling interests

Other key financial ratios and
information

Current ratios (Note 5)

Quick ratios (Note 6)

Gearing ratio (Note 7)

Net asset value per share (RMB)
(Note 8)

Inventory turnover days (days)
(Note 9)

Trade receivables turnover days
(days) (Note 10)

Trade payables turnover days (days)
(Note 11)

B R AR
FRBEE
WEEE
B R
FEE £ 1

B SR 45

T RchE 4R

bR R LR RER

TR (Hats)

BB LR (Hite)

EERARLE (W7

BREEFH (ARKTL)
(Hf7t8)

FEBEAY (R) (M)

o ELUR S A # (A)
(Hf#10)

BN R FCEE H# (H)
(HfiEL1)

2022
it St
RMB’000
AREEF 5T

23,517
383,557
39,209
159
483,634
84,072

BE+-HA=+—HILEE /R+ZH=+—H

2022
RO

9.8

54

0.19

748

314

40

As ;t

R+=ZH=+—H
2021 2020
SR ZECRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR
216,924 190,920
428,915 349,283
66,310 42,930
786 2,380
493,520 417,348
85,223 71,545

2019
ZENE
RMB000
AREF T

226,922
529,102
92,746
579,508
83,710

Year ended/as at 31 December

2021
SR

6.5

33

0.22

553

162

36

2020
=L

8.1

4.8

0.25

408

296

18

2019
e

5.7

35

0.33

373

112

17

2018
E— )\
RMB’000
INEL S

207,377
500,351
52,723

576,565
78,440

2018
—E— )\

9.5

5.0

0.33

386

93

17




10.

11.

Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as
at the end of each year.

Quick ratio equals current assets minus inventory, divided by
current liabilities as at the end of each year.

Gearing ratio equals the debts incurred in the ordinary course of
business divided by total assets as at the end of each year.

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the total
number of shares in issue at the end of the year.

Inventory turnover days are computed by dividing the average
of the beginning and closing inventory balance in the respective
financial year by cost of sales (excluding consumption tax and
other taxes) and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables turnover days are computed by dividing the
average of the beginning and closing trade receivables balance in
the respective financial year by revenue and multiplied by 365 days.

Trade payables turnover days are computed by dividing the
average of the beginning and closing trade payables balance in the
respective financial year by cost of sales (excluding consumption
tax and other taxes) and multiplied by 365 days.

10.

11.

T B b SR A 45 4R AR AR T B BR DL TR
At

TR T H RO A Y A A AR AR U B R A
B LA B) B 1 o

T B LR S A A AR AR A H R SE T R
T o 8 Y LR R DA S

R (AR A AR B AT R A R
e

7B H BORA B BE EAR B AR A AR A
B &G B YT 2 O DL B A (S EL 4G T 22 Bl
Je HAWBIE) F o LI36SH T H -

B by M i B 0 s B W R A B I BUAE B AR A
I AF 4 B JRE AT T SRR A A Y ST 2 OB DA £
PR LIZ6SH FHE

S50 A 5K O 4 T 4 )
TR 4 5H M A 0 - 54 O 6 0
A R G451 0B S H AL BEIR) 7 7 4365 H
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LEGAL ADVISERS

AS TO PRC LAW

Jingtian & Gongcheng Attorneys At Law
34/F, Tower 3, China Central Place

77 Jianguo Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100025

The People’s Republic of China

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

23/F, Tower 2, Enterprise Square Five
38 Wang Chiu Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
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2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit No. 2910-11, 29/F

Prosperity Millennia Plaza

No. 663 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC
No. 2199, Tuanjie Road

Tonghua County

Jilin Province

The People’s Republic of China
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower Branch

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

Agriculture Bank of China
Tonghua County Branch

No. 679 Changzheng Road
Kuaidamao Town, Tonghua County
Jilin Province

The People’s Republic of China

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
CorporateLink Limited

S5th Floor, Chung Nam Building

1 Lockhart Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk
(information on the website does not form part of
this annual report)

SHARE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BV i

Dear shareholders,

The COVID-19 pandemic broke out in many parts of Mainland
China during the Year Under Review. To prevent the spread of
the pandemic, local governments adopted stringent containment
management and the production activities and transportation
logistics were disturbed to different extent. In addition to the
pandemic, the extremely abnormal weather in Mainland China
and the credit crisis of certain real estate enterprises also impacted
people’s livelihood, consumption and even the pace of economic
recovery. The Sino-US trade tensions as well as the rising food
and energy prices caused by the Russia-Ukraine conflicts further
casted doubts over the economic prospects and dampened the
public consumption sentiment.

The output and sales of domestic wine both declined in 2022. The
overall data on the imported or domestic wine industry hit the
bottom again and 2022 was considered as the most difficult year
for the domestic wine industry.

Tonghua production base of the Group suspended production
many times due to the lockdown for the prevention of the
pandemic. Besides, the logistics for goods were disrupted. All
these resulted in dramatic declines in the output and sales revenue
of the Group during the Year Under Review.

B LR >

A (8] R A BE - 5 e B R A B A b 25 M R o Ay
Biy 1k 5 1 4 H o i 7 R BR BT B Y B A
> S0 A O ) A A ) O 4 % B R [R] R E
T B T OB R o A N i R SR B
AR o) B M E A 3 B AR B fE R R R AR 2 LA
FREPAR L OGN - - SR T BR R OR
ARG il 2% EEUR B REVR (B A L THIE —
ARAR AT RS LR W HEM TR AR
B o

18] 7 ] 76 9 19 R D B R R 20224F 4 B E R
T A AR A 1Y 2 R B T AT 6 R B R A
U B » 20224F 0B 7y 2 B 1 4 7 I AT K e B
B —4

2 ] 0 7 b A 7 i v A 32 B B R B HERY R 2R
PR R R B R R A B 4 B (] A
3£ TR 4 I ) R G 6 WSO 3% ) BB T BT



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B2 8

Facing the relatively severe business environment, the Group made
provisions for certain obsolete and slow moving inventories and
certain trade receivables during the year. In addition, the Group
also made provisions for impairment losses of certain plant
and equipment. The above accounting treatments also resulted
in losses during the Year Under Review. As relevant treatment
involves no cash, it has no effect on the cash flows of the Group.

During the outbreak of the pandemic and to adapt to changes
in consumption scenarios and consumption patterns of the new
generation, we actively explored online sales, promoted “live-broadcast
distribution” and cooperated with various online platforms to “acquire
customers online”, striving to develop all-dimensional marketing
channels through the integration of online and offline resources.

A majority of overseas countries and regions have relaxed the
management and control measures on the pandemic and cross-
border tourism has gradually recovered since the second half
of last year. We estimated that the domestic pandemic will also
withdraw. To get prepared for the relaxing of management and
control measures on the prevention of the pandemic in Mainland
China and the return of consumption scenarios, we started to
boost investments in brand promotion and product marketing
from the third quarter of last year. In addition to advertising
on provincial television channels and other public media and
actively planning various publicity and promotion activities, we
also enhanced the construction of sales teams and optimized
sales channels. All these measures resulted in significant year-on-
year increases in selling and distribution expenses and advertising
and marketing expenses during the Year Under Review, also
causing negative effects on the results for the Year Under Review.
However, we believe that the investment in advertising and selling
expenses will facilitate the Group to seize the booming business
opportunities after the pandemic.

Various economic activities in Mainland China recovered in
an orderly manner and the society and people’s livelihood
gradually returned normal after China introduced the “New Ten
Standards” to optimize the management and control measures on
the prevention of the pandemic in December last year. With the
improvement of the business environment and the recovery of
consumption sentiment, the retail and catering industries boomed
again. Such signs proved the correct judgment of the management
of the Group. Our investments in brand promotion and product
marketing and the layout on sales channels will allow the Group
to effectively consolidate its market share in the process of market
recovery.

o R R B A A ] SRR

A 36 A 3BT e W% F) 7 R O > 4 IR AR B N B
T RS % i R A B % T B SR K A e B 4 o
Bb o > 4R [ 8 36 55 R Bs B A ) 99 (EL s 4R AR
A o L b A9 wt s 2R 8] B4R B S 1R 0
Horh — (8 5 o (8 A B R B A o B A |
HBREENBRER -

PN A T > AT R i 2 455 S 1% A B % S i
FCRYTH 22 8 1] BR M BA 40 AR Lol > HfE B [ L%
R HEZMBETESEEB R L
B BNITER G B LRT BRI 275 (08 8

FAFE T A BTG - 1 5 R 43 B 58 A i [ P 48
TRORR 3 8 17 9 A 42 > 5 35 iR 0 8 92 25 OB o BRAMY
TR A Hb B B I R - T RE TR R Bl
B WA B e R =F
JSE B A Jom AP it R A R D E i B O TR B
B TR K RS 0 A L G R R
o B 25 UE (02 8995 B Ak > JAM AR v T 8 6
P KA S A Al B TR E - DL R R S 4R
P 7% [ R R A B B B B S B R
5 8 2 IR LR MR b TF > 2E O ) (] RAR B 3
R A T R B o E FAM A AR R A A 8 6 2 T
(9 45 T80t A D 4 R 402 % A7 4RI BB T v
1 -

HEET T ABZRE G TH 0] AR
AR > 0 A TRAC 0 B AT P AR A R R
24 (0] fi IE K - BB 8 PR BT - I B Ak
Tt A FEMERTERAHTE -EEAEBRY
ikt B 4R [ I BRI ) BT IE A o FRAM R A
Ji B R E i 7 B T R A0 > B R B G B IR
AR A S5 o R AR T T 5 1R R AR P A AR (]
W5 -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
e

The Group carried out strategic cooperation with leading
enterprises in various sectors and also achieved satisfactory
progress. Two new products developed under the cooperation
with Ji Yao Fang Zhou will initiate mass production soon and
are expected to be launched in the market this year. We have
negotiated with café chain Partner Coffee on how to display the
advantages of each other’s products and the development of
innovative products.

The ginseng wine previously launched by the Group is highly
recognized in the market. We are actively displaying the resources
of the ginseng farmland in Tonghua with an area of 203,200
square meters to develop other relevant ginseng products, expand
the production capacity of ginseng wine and respond to the
general trend of people’s concerns about healthcare.

As the economy in Mainland China showed notable signs of a
rebound, the International Monetary Fund (the “IMF”) raised
its forecast for China’s economic growth to 5.2% in 2023 in the
“World Economic Outlook”™ released in January. Internationally,
the Russia-Ukraine conflicts showed no sign of easing, resulting
in certain pressures on global food supply and energy prices as
well as increasing geopolitical tensions. The inflation rate in
various Western economies has declined. According to the “World
Economic Outlook”, it is estimated that the inflation of 84%
of economies in 2023 will be lower than that of 2022. However,
the financial market risks triggered by the Silicon Valley Bank
have not been fully dissolved. In the face of the complex and
changeable international situation and the economic recovery in
Mainland China at the initial stage, the Group should remain
vigilant on market changes. We will continuously strive to
consolidate cash inflows in the course of operation and maintain
a sound financial position to safeguard the orderly business
development.

Wang Guangyuan
Chairman

30 March 2023

£ ) B 22 1R AN 7] 4 480 Y 4E 5 4 26 RGBS & 4 R
B A 7 BLAR A A B2 o TR M B AR 2E U5 0 & 1F B 3R
9 7 BT 2 i B A AT B - 3 R A AR
B AT 85 o T AM BN O ofn w22 B R g 4n ey %
$ER 00 I 1 i PR B o AL R R A AT RE T o

A HAT P NS EA TN & R R
FRAM TE FE i 2 1 057 7 48 AL Ak #.203,200°F 75 K 1)
N R NS =T E NN
201 B9 BE > DL A N BE T R AR R A ) R

s
Ui ©

R A M A TR AR B SR WA B B R e
(TIMF J) A — H 8 R0 [ A 48 7 B 2 | 5
IR 9T B20234F 1 AL i R 2 5.2% o B PR
T RS R RA RS BN IR &t
JEE AN e VARG A% AT A — IR g > 3iF 4 Hb &% BUYE A
8 ZEER o VY 7 2 (R AR R Y A IR R P s AR
PE [ 548975 2 B TE 51 84% 1Y 48 75 4 it 20234
1) 3 Ji 7K S A 20224F (9 /K - (H#T H i &
SRAT 51 B9 4 MhoT 5 R B i R o8 2 b >
WA 22 5 A R S R AN 1A b 8 TR A AT B T
A B B 4R AT T T 45 1 B AL AR B o AN
S A A B R R P B A T I A
FERRME MY BB IR UL DAGR I 6T W B P 8 & -
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ORGANIC WINE AWARD INTERNATIONAL PIWI WINE AWARD INTERNATIONAL

URKUNDE - CERTIFICATE LR “Tontine Red Ice Wine — Yaaru Valley No. 17 (H§
Bk VTR 23 195 » 4T VK % %5 7 ) won the gold medals
at the 2022PAR® International PAR Organic Wine
Award (Autumn), an international renowned wine
competition, and 2022 PIWI International Anti-
Fungal Organic Wine Competition (Autumn).

&

W 2ok V00T 25 1555 o AT UK 8 260 T ) 7 I3 % 26 4% 7 4 T K
25 -2022PAR® I B [ 5 A5 4% ) 25 G 48 K 28 (BkZR)
J%20224F PTWT B [ 41 B 12 A3 56 1 75 7 w00 K 28 (K
) S A .

“Tontgtian Hong ¢ Black Chokeberry Mountain
Wine” won the gold medal at the 7th China
International Wine & Spirits Challenge (CIWC).

[ K AL « AN A5 L4 400 ) 8 56 -6 Je v R [0 RS
I B U B BOK 3 (CIWC) S 4 42 88 -
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2022 KEY EVENTS
“EC A EESEN

“Tontine Sweet White Wine (Bamboo)”
won the silver medal at the 7th China
International Wine & Spirits Challenge (CIWC).

[0 K & v (FF) )R 56 & e ep B s R
5 i 78 8 M B kR OK 2E (CIWC) 4 7 41

“Tontgtian Late Harvest Red Mountain
(Chrysanthemum)” won the bronze medal at
the 7th China International Wine & Spirits
Challenge (CIWC).

[ % W A 0L A (40 ) 0 5 L o
B 5 2 09 2 000 96 K 26 (CTWIC) 2
35185

“Tontgtian After Frost Premium Mountain
Wine (Orchid)” won the bronze medal at
the 7th China International Wine & Spirits
Challenge (CIWC).

[ %8 K 76 4% = s Ll 3 287 (Rl | 28 & e e
I3 (3 5% A o 2 T B 2V Pk Bk OK 2E (CTWC)
SEAE S 48 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B o e o A

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Entering into the third year of the pandemic, the economic growth
has slowed down considerably due to the repeated impact from
multiple unexpected factors such as the sporadic outbreaks of the
pandemic in various regions and extreme and abnormal weather,
coupled with the trade tensions across the Sino-US relation and
weakened domestic demands. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics, based on preliminary calculations, the GDP of China
reached RMBI21 trillion in 2022, representing an increase of 3%
at constant price levels as compared to the last year. 'The year
2022 remained an exceedingly difficult year for the wine industry,
which entered a downturn period, and the wine market was under
adverse impact of the economic downward pressure and the
pandemic.

In 2022, most domestic provinces and cities, including Zhengzhou,
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Beijing, Chengdu and Jilin,
were impacted by the pandemic, which resulted in tightened
control and management measures in various regions coupled with
normalization of lockdown and suspension of social activities.
Wine production and sales fell under pressure due to restrictions
on epidemic control and prevention. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics, the domestic wine production from January
to December 2022 was 214,000 kiloliters, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 21.9%, among which 32,000 kiloliters were
produced in December, representing a year-on-year decrease of
23.8%. *The wine consumption market contracted significantly
once again in 2022. The Mid-Autumn Festival and National
Day, which used to be prime wine sales seasons, were no longer
favored in 2022 for consumer sentiments, with the wine market
encountering a cold spell.

There was a “reduction in both sales and volume”, as imported
wine also remained gloomy. According to the latest data of
General Administration of Customs, the total volume of imported
wine in 2022 was 340 million liters, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 21.1%, and the import amount was RMB9.6 billion,
representing a decrease of 12.5% which was also a record-low in
recent years, and such data was already “slashed in half” from
the peak of wine import in 2017. 3The overall decline in both
imported wine and domestic wine figures was evidenced by the
weakened wine industry in 2022.

; https://economy.caixin.com/2023-01-17/101989831.html
2 https://www.sohu.com/a/647212525_121124458
% https://www.yicai.com/news/101660084.html

TEY A

A EE S =4 B R AL 2 R £ AR
PR ity S K GRS 2o B R T TR R I Al
kw22 ) AR B AR~ TN T O K > A8 B
EAE - BB XA AR BIRE N > BB A
20224F A 4F H 8] GDP 2 2121 B & o0 > % A E
M w8 >t B AR R3% o 120224F HH A AT T £ A
SR AT 2 Ky SR ) — 4F > A 7 T AT 2 AR
PRI BRI R AT B B P R A A T
o

20224F > B N Z A8 T AL RE EEON - B I
JEN > Aot ES s MR B R K
b B 1R 4 4 4 i R o RN R RS B R B
RE AL B 2 5 il o 32 2 156 5 14 BR ) > ) 70 3 ZE i B
B AR R 7 B ) o B R S wE R G G R > 2022
AE1-12 7 4 50 3 40 T B B 21.49 T I [\ B R
21.9% Hod > 12 7 2B 4000 4328 T 7
6] L6 BE23.8% o 2 4 9 1 22 1 35 i 20224 7
YR WY B 2 A o v Rk R RN B BE 45 LA 2
BEEENE ZE R E F - FA20224F 8515 A R FE15 IE > 4
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A VP T O S 25 4B 5 A i B TR A A
(1 B0 G2 > 5t 30T g TR B SR > 20224F 24 1 A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B o s S o

In December 2022, China optimized the epidemic prevention
and control by issuing “Notice on Further Optimizing the
Implementation of the Prevention and Control Measures for the
Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia Outbreak™( (BN #E—# E L%
BB ok Al 9 B I B FE S M A3 AN) ) (the “New Ten Standards™),
further easing the control of epidemic control and prevention.
The new epidemic prevention policy will undoubtedly serve as a
propeller for the consumer market. There will be a remarkable
rebound favored for the catering industry, and the recovery of
offline consumption scenario is expected to drive the growth of
the wine consuming market and bring favorable effects to wine
manufacturers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic remained recurring and surging
in 2022, and several regions in mainland China faced with
stringent closure measures due to sporadic outbreaks of the
pandemic. The disruption of production activities and frequent
interruptions in the personnel movement and cargo flow due to
control requirements in various regions have made impact on the
economic performance and consumer sentiment in the Mainland
China.

The Group’s production base in Tonghua, Jilin Province was
subject to various degrees of closure control during the year,
which had a relatively severe impact on production operations and
goods logistics, resulting in a significant downward adjustment in
production and sales during the Year Under Review, and hence
the overall results presented a substantial adjustment.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year Under Review”),
the Group’s output was 5,186 tonnes, representing a decrease
of 25.1% as compared to last year. During the Year Under
Review, the Group recorded a total revenue of RMB146,118,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 29.9% as compared to
last year. Among which, the sales revenue of sweet wine and dry
wine accounted for approximately 82.0% of the total revenue
of the Group together during the Year Under Review. The sales
revenue of brandy and other wine products (including ice wine,
Chinese liquor and ginseng wine) accounted for 18.0% of its
revenue.

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a gross
profit of RMB35,874,000, representing a significant decrease
as compared to last year. The decrease was mainly due to the
followings: 1) affected by the pandemic and weak consumption
desire of the residents, the sales of products with higher gross
profit during the Year Under Review decreased more significantly,
which correspondingly affected the overall gross profit of the
Group; 2) the production and sales volume decreased in the
current year, but no corresponding adjustment in fixed expenses,
including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, hence the unit cost allocated to each product
increased, which correspondingly affected the gross profit of
products; 3) the Group made a provision of approximately
RMB7,265,000 for impairment of inventories (included in cost of
sales) during the current year. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased to 24.6% as a result of the above reasons.
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The following table shows the Group’s gross profit, gross profit N R ALK - F - 4+ "H=+—H
margin and change for the twelve months ended 31 December 2022: B+ A AEEEF - BH R R :

Twelve months ended 31 December
BET-A=T—HIL+ZMA

Year-on-year

2022 2021 change

St —F—F SEAER L

Overall gross profit (RMB 000) WEEMN (ARETIL) 35,874 67,395 -46.8%
Overall gross profit margin HEEA R 24.6% 32.3% -1.7
percentage points

NERi g

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s total cost of sales [0l i 4E B (A - SE B S BE A FH A AR
amounted to RMBI110,244,000, representing a year-on-year  110,244,0007C > [/ bt F& £921.8% > & 22 iy Ji% [1]
decrease of approximately 21.8%, mainly due to significant B 4F B g 4 [ A9 85 5 & F0 85 B 40 1 BRIk > A
decrease in the Group’s sales volume and sales during the Year 9 & & B ARt T B Lo 0 & 25 o 45 [ A4 % 5 45
Under Review. The main raw materials required by the Group 8 FT 75 12 B JF b R 45 & 4 71 & 6 4 kL - 1]
for the production of wine include grape juice and packaging B 4F £ (A - & [ JBU A R A A £ A I 588,582,000
materials. During the Year Under Review, the Group’s cost of  JC > [f] tb T ¥ £120.7% > A5 45 [H 42 & B pl A 4848
raw materials amounted to RMB88,582,000, representing a year-  #J80.4% °

on-year decrease of approximately 20.7% and accounting for

approximately 80.4% of the Group’s total cost of sales.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the costs required N R ARLE@MP —F -4+ H=+—H
for production by the Group for the twelve months ended 31 1k —flil A 4 & B 5 45 JE A ¢
December 2022:

Twelve months ended 31 December
BET-AZ1+—HIL+ZMA

Percentage of

2022 2021 Change
SR B Stk WAL
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(ANR¥TE)  (ARWTIL)

88,582 111,742 -20.7%
4,349 - 5,06
17,313

al cost of raw materials

b KL 4
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During the Year Under Review, the Group’s selling and distribution
expenses amounted to RMB33,698,000. During the Year Under
Review, the Group further broadened its online marketing channels
to effectively engage into the younger generation of consumer
group and expand the customer base of the Group’s products
through “promoting sales by internet celebrities”. During the year,
advertising and marketing expenses amounted to RMB23,995,000,
representing a significant increase at both as compared to the last
year. This was mainly due to the rebound in consumer sentiment in
the second half of the year, especially in the fourth quarter, and the
general expectation of the easing of the pandemic and loosening
of management and control measures will bring vibrancy to the
overall economic activities. The Group increased its investment in
advertising and marketing in the second half of the year, including
advertising on provincial TV stations to enhance brand building, so
that the Group could effectively capture the opportunities brought
by the revival of consumption power. The Group also increased its
investment in sales platforms and distribution channels to prepare
for the improvement of product sales.

The Group recorded a decrease in sales for the year due to
the aforesaid reasons. In addition, the Group recorded total
comprehensive expense of RMB27,554,000 for the year due to the
write-off of certain obsolete and unsalable inventories, provision
on impairment losses for right-of-use assets, property, plant and
equipment and expected credit losses on trade receivables, as well
as a significant increase in selling and distribution expenses.

OPERATION REVIEW

In 2022, the pandemic flared up in a number of provinces and
cities, spreading throughout the country. Tonghua City, Jilin
Province, one of the Group’s production bases, was severely
affected. Due to the massive city-wide closure measures,
production was halted for several months resulting in a significant
reduction in production volume. Sales were once at a standstill
due to logistics and transportation restrictions.

In 2022, total retail sales of consumer goods amounted to
RMB43.9733 trillion, representing a decrease of 0.2% as compared
to the last year; of which, commodity retail sales increased by 0.5%
and restaurant revenues decreased by 6.3%. The frequent outbreaks
of the pandemic had a greater impact on the recovery of the
consumer market. *Amidst the impact of the pandemic, the Group
was moving ahead under pressure as it faced the severe challenges of
weak consumer sentiment and declining sales. During the Year Under
Review, the Group has laid out its business strategies in various
aspects, actively seeking strategic cooperation externally, researching
product development internally, intensifying marketing efforts and
improving its brand awareness.

4 http://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/sjjd/202302/t20230202_1896741.html
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Subsequent to the signing of a strategic cooperation agreement
with Ji Yao Fang Zhou (Guangdong) Technological Company
Limited (425 7 /% (B ) B AW A7) (“Ji Yao Fang
Zhou”) in 2021, the Group joined hands with Ji Yao Fang Zhou
to establish Ark Times Health Industry Holdings (Shenzhen)
Group Co., Ltd. (7 fFRpAR e 2 22 i (R 2E A BRA 7))
(“Ark Time”) during the Year Under Review. The Group and Ji
Yao Fang Zhou hold 51% and 49% interests in such subsidiary,
respectively. The two new products that supply herbal wine for
speciality, “Ark No. 1” and “Ark No. 27, jointly developed by the
Group and Ji Yao Fang Zhou, will be in mass production, and
thus to promote the new healthy concept of “Happy Life and
Nourish Health” for drinking wine.

During the Year Under Review, the Group made advance planning
to prepare for the market rebound by increasing its investment in
advertising and marketing, placing TV commercials on a number
of provincial stations to increase the brand exposure and enhance
consumers’ impression on the products of the Group, thereby
solidifying its market share. In order to cater to the consumption
habits of the new generation of consumers, the Group continued
to adhere to the online marketing promotion mode. The Group
launched promotional videos on various online platforms, and
promoted its products and brand market awareness in a more
cost-effective manner through activities such as live-streaming
sales. The Group focused on a synergized marketing model both
online and offline, to effectively penetrate its product market.

As one of the “Top 10 Brands of Chinese Wine Industry in
China”, Tontine Wines is committed to producing high quality
wine and maintaining its reputation and market recognition. It
had been awarded numerous honors in international authoritative
wine competitions. In 2022, the Group’s “Tontine Red Ice Wine
— Yaaru Valley No. 17 (BE&R7LM 45155 o 4L VK7 %75 ) won the
gold medals at the 2022PAR® International PAR Organic Wine
Award (Autumn), an international renowned wine competition,
and 2022 PIWI International Anti-Fungal Organic Wine
Competition (Autumn), which once again showed the world the
strength of Chinese organic wine. At the 7th China International
Wine & Spirits Challenge (CIWC) held in January 2023, the
Group’s “Tontgtian Hong * Black Chokeberry Mountain Wine” (%
REL « &% IFZEE) , “Tontine Sweet White Wine (Bamboo)” (4
KA E #4598 (77) ), “Tontgtian Late Harvest Red Mountain
(Chrysanthemum)” (%8 K Ml 4T 1L %57 (49) ) and “Tontgtian
After Frost Premium Mountain Wine (Orchid)” (% K7 1% & 8%
11145 % 7% (B) ) won the gold medal, silver medal and bronze
medal, respectively.
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Production base and distribution network in 2022

2022 FAEEMWR D HMPEK

Heilongjiang %
ERET

Liaoning ¥
Beijing % B E
k=

Ji'an City, known

— for the cultivation
Hebei % )
e of mountain grapes
N Shanxi / ¥ e
Qinghai % £2m o UEE

i ’ ; St

Sichuan%
7l

Yunnan¥ &g
£/ - Guangxi ¥
B

Hainan
yisiea)
Notes:

. North-East Region includes the Provinces of Heilongjiang, Jilin and Liaoning.
REMERFEREILIS SMEREEE-
2, . Northern Region includes the Provinces of Hebei, Shanxi and city of Beijing.
EEEETILE - IUAE RIERT -

. Eastern Region includes the Provinces of Anhui, Fujian, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Shandong, Zhejiang
and city of Shanghai.
ERMEBFELHE RBEE IHE IHELE LWRE MIERLET-
4. South-Central Region includes the Provinces of Guangdong, Hainan, Henan, Hubei and Hunan.

HEMESIEERSE BEE UEE L E RAEE -

o ’ South-West Region includes the Provinces of Qinghai, Sichuan, Yunnan, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region and city of Chongging.
AEBERESEE W4 EHE BEALKEAEREEM-

6. Distribution Network.
P IHAR A o
7 Production Base.

AEEE M o



OUTPUT VOLUME AND SALES

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the output of all
categories of products manufactured by the two production
bases of the Group located in Tonghua, Jilin Province and
Baiyanghe, Shandong, reached a total of 5,186 tonnes. Among
them, the output of Tonghua production base was 2,953 tonnes,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 31.8%. The decline in
output production was due to the several closures for pandemic
outbreaks in Jilin during the Year Under Review, which disrupted
production activities and shipments from the Tonghua Base.

The Group mainly distributes its grape wine products to third-
party retailers through distributors, including supermarkets,
cigarette and liquor specialty stores, food and beverage outlets
such as restaurants and hotel restaurants. These distributors
may also sell and distribute products directly to end consumers
and other distributors. Amidst the gradual improvement from
the impact of the pandemic, the Group is fully prepared for
the recovery of the consumer market. The Group increased its
investment in traditional advertising channels during the Year
Under Review. While strengthening new marketing scenarios built
on new media platforms, the Group also extensively applies social
platforms to enhance product exposure.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s products
were sold through 86 distributors located in 19 provinces, one
autonomous region, and three direct-controlled municipalities in
China.

The breakdown of revenues from different regional markets of the
Group in 2022 and 2021 is set out below:
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REGIONAL MARKET PERFORMANCE

During the Year Under Review, the Eastern Region remained the
largest market of the Group given that the economy is relatively
well developed and the wine consumption culture is mature in the
region, and its per capita income and consumption power were
among the top of the country. During the Year Under Review,
the Group recorded a revenue of RMB39,601,000 in the Eastern
Region market, accounting for approximately 27.1% of the total

revenue.

Over the years, the Group has set up a dedicated team to exploit
the market in the South-Central Region, where the Group’s brands
and products have established a high recognition and popularity,
became the second largest market for the Group’s products.
During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB36,388,000 in the South-Central Region market, accounting
for approximately 24.9% of the total revenue.

The North-East Region is where the production base of Tonghua,
Jilin is located. Due to the outbreak of the pandemic in the local
region and its control and prevention measures, the production,
sales and logistics supply of products were blocked. The stern
closure and control measures also constrained social gatherings
and related consumption. During the Year Under Review, the
region recorded a revenue of RMB25,537,000, accounting for
17.5% of the total revenue.

During the Year Under Review, sales revenue from the South-West
Region was RMB24,821,000, accounting for 17.0% of the total
revenue. During the Year Under Review, the Northern Region
market achieved a sales revenue of RMB19,771,000, accounting
for 13.5% of the total revenue.

BUSINESS INDICATOR REVIEW

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

The inventory turnover days of the Group at the end of the year
stood at approximately 748 days, as compared to 553 days of
last year. This was mainly because a portion of the raw materials
purchased in previous years were still pending for production and
sales as at the end of the current year due to the impact of the
pandemic on the Group’s sales during the Year Under Review,
resulting in higher inventory balance.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES TURNOVER DAYS

As at 31 December 2022, the trade receivables turnover days
of the Group stood at 314 days, and the trade receivables was
RMB132,485,000. During the Year Under Review, the Group
made a provision of RMB2,348.000 for expected credit losses on
trade receivables. The receivables turnover days increased by 152
days compared to the last year mainly due to the decrease in sales
of the Group during the Year Under Review.

OPERATION ANALYSIS BY PRODUCT

The breakdown of revenue from different wine products of the
Group in 2022 and 2021 is set out below:

13.5%
o

45% ®

®362% 35%e

45.7% @

21.2% o

34.1%®

B 5 K MR k3 L34
MoE - —HE+ A=+ —H - AEHEHE
i B AR A R B A314H - B 5 EUIR OB AR
#5132,485,0007T © [0] B 4F B 0 > 45 [ 2 B 5 B Ik
W TR (5 0 s 1R A A N IR 652,348,000 7T ©
Wi R R R B 25 4F B 152K 3 B E A [
AFBE A A T 0 B D BT R -

7 i 88 2y B
AEEFWBEMR —F AR T DA
U A A 4 T

® 41.2%

@ Sweet wines @ Dry wines @ Brandy  Other products
HEEH LEEN = pauh HithEm
DRY WINES LA R

The Group’s sales revenue from dry wine products during the

Year Under Review amounted to RMB66,815,000, which became

the product category with the highest sales revenue during the

Year Under Review, accounting for 45.7% of its total revenue.

The gross profit of the product was RMB24,853,000 with a gross
it margin of 37.2%.
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BRANDY

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s sales revenue from
brandy amounted to RMB6,625,000, accounting for 4.5% of its
total revenue. The gross profit of the product was RMB2,131,000
with a gross profit margin of 32.2%. The “Apple-type” brandy
marketed by the Group has been well received by the market.

OTHER PRODUCTS

The Group’s other wine products include high-end ice wines and
Chinese liquor (Yaaru Liquor (fiE#E ) ) and the newly launched
ginseng wine products with healthcare benefits developed by the
Company. During the Period under Review, the sales revenue
of other products amounted to RMB19,718,000, accounting for
13.5% of its total revenue. The gross profit of other products was
RMB5,803,000 with a gross profit margin of 29.4%.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

With the fading of the pandemic and the full easing of epidemic
control measures, the Group believed that the wine consumption
market would usher into a new chapter and has made advance
planning for the recovery of the market. The Group adhered to
the multi-channel and synergized marketing modes by cooperating
with a number of new leisure and social platforms, and the Group
has successfully constructed “online + offline” three-dimensional
consumption scenarios to better meet the needs of the new
generation of consumer group and self-drinking consumption.
Through advertising on TV and other media, the Group’s
products and brands further increased their recognition, for which
more online platforms in different fields and “Internet celebrities
promoting sales” are becoming more welling to seek cooperative
relationship with the Group.

The “Spring Food and Drinks Fair” (FZ M &) to be held in
Chengdu in April is the largest offline exhibition in the industry
and has always been regarded as the paradigm of the domestic
alcoholic beverage industry. The Spring Food and Drinks Fair
will be held in 2023 as scheduled after experiencing cancellations,
postponements and other frustrations over the past three years
since the pandemic outbreak. The Group will further enhance
its brand awareness and tap into new development opportunities
through the Spring Food and Drinks Fair and other offline
exhibition channels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B s S o

Recognizing that product innovation is one of the core dynamics
driving brand development, the Group has been developing new
products in recent years to meet the needs of different consumer
bases. Due to the catalytic effect of the pandemic over the years,
people’s health awareness has risen and health care products have
been favored by consumers, with the big health industry gaining
momentum. Facing the emerging health conscious trend in the
wine industry, the Group has grasped the opportunity in timely
manner to develop its health ginseng wine, which has been well
recognized in the consumer market and has become a milestone in

its journey of innovation and development.

Two new products, “Ark No. 1”7 and “Ark No. 27, jointly
developed by the Group and Ji Yao Fang Zhou, will be launched
soon. The Group also reached a strategic cooperation with café
chain Partner Coffee, and will jointly operate the urban pub chain
project in the future. The Group will be responsible for supplying
a variety of its premium alcoholic beverages to these physical
platforms. Going forward, the Group will continue to seek
opportunities for strategic cooperation with other enterprises.

With the introduction of the “New Ten Standards” policy for
epidemic prevention and control in late 2022, people are no longer
restricted from traveling, and social consumption is gradually
picking up its momentum, the wine market is expected to revive
from a slump. After the release of the new policy, according to
the National Bureau of Statistics, from January to February 2023,
the total retail sales of consumer goods amounted to RMB7,706.7
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.5%. In terms
of consumption type, the retail sales of goods amounted to
RMB6,863.8 billion, representing an increase of 2.9%, while
the revenue from food and beverage amounted to RMB842.9
billion, representing an increase of 9.2%. SAs the wine industry
is approaching a turning point, the Group will seize the market
opportunity, innovate its business philosophy, continue to optimize
its management system, thereby to build a premium brand value
and facilitate the revitalization of the industry.

e http://www.stats.gov.cn/sj/zxfb/202303/t20230315_1937190.html
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Guangyuan ( EJ:%E) , aged 61, was appointed as our
executive Director on 8 September 2008. He is also the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of our Board and
the chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Wang is one of
the founding management team members of Tonghua Tongtian
Winery Co., Ltd* (b K EH R A A)
Tongtian™) since its establishment in 2001. He is responsible for

(“Tonghua

the overall business strategy, development and management of our
Group. Prior to establishing our Group, from November 1986 to
August 2000, he served with Tonhwa Winery Limited (% k7 %5
A PR F]) , a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and in September 1995, he was promoted as a
deputy general manager. Mr. Wang is currently a member of the
People’s Representative of Tonghua City 8th People’s Congress
G b Vs AR AR K E) and a member of the Standing
Committee of Tonghua County 16th People’s Congress ( #H{t #%
R EANRMAREFERGMRFERNZE), the Chairman of Tonghua
County Industry and Commerce Association (%L 4§ T P4 25 46 )
and the Vice-Chairman of Jilin Chamber of Commerce ( MR €r) .
Mr. Wang was awarded as the “Outstanding Worker of Tonghua
County 1996-2001" (1996-20014F 4 1k §% %5 By #5 i) by People’s
Government of Tonghua County (#{b# AR BUM) in October
2002. He was also conferred with the title of “Excellent Sales
Manager” ({875 858 #44¢3) jointly by China Winery Industry
Association Grape Wine Sub-branch ( A [ B T 2 1 6 % 45 78
/%) and China Agriculture Association Grape Sub-branch (H
B F2 22 @ 3 45 4> €7 ) in June 2006. He was certified as a senior
economist by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC ( H ¥ A [ 4t
FER B4 B ) on 29 May 2003. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in business management from Jilin University (3% #k K
£L) in July 1993. Mr. Wang is the brother of Ms. Wang Lijun, an
executive Director of our Company.

Mr. Wang is beneficially interested in the 51% of the issued share
capital of Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”), a
substantial shareholder of our Company, and is also a director of
Up Mount.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Hebin (iR f1#) , aged 62, was appointed as our
executive Director on 8 September 2008. He is one of the
founding management team members of Tonghua Tongtian since
its establishment in 2001. Prior to May 2011, he was primarily
responsible for sales, marketing and products promotion of our
Group. Since May 2011, he has assumed responsibility for and is
in charge of the merger and acquisition activities of our Group.
Prior to joining our Group, from April 1984 to August 2000,
he worked with Tonhwa Winery Limited (%81t 7 %5 5 % 43 A R
/AT]) , a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and in February 1986, he was promoted as a district
sales manager. He obtained a junior college diploma of economic
management from the Party School of Jilin Province Government ( 7
M Z M) and graduated in July 1991.

Ms. Wang Lijun (ERFE ), aged 55, was appointed as our
executive Director on 2 May 2017. She joined our Group in
January 2010 as executive manager. In December 2010, she was
promoted to deputy general manager and is responsible for
administration and human resources matters of all the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. Prior to joining our Company, from
August 2006 to September 2009, she worked in Dubon Property
and Casualty Insurance Company Limited Jilin branch ( #8FB
7 R B B 03 A BR 22 7] 3 Ak 3 22 ) as business general manager
and was responsible for business management. From July 1994 to
August 2006, she was the deputy general manager in China Pacific
Life Insurance Company Limited Tonghua branch (B K -F
N B I A BR 2 ) AL A0 A F]) and responsible for
administration matters. Ms. Wang graduated from Jilin Industry
University ( % # L2 K £) with a bachelor’s degree in accounting

in July 1998. Ms. Wang is the sister of Mr. Wang Guangyuan,
the chairman of our Board, the chief executive officer and an
executive Director of our Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jerry Y. (Z25i#) , aged 24, was appointed as our non-
executive direction on 31 August 2022. He graduated from the
University of Sydney in Australia with a Bachelor degree of
Science, majoring in Nutrition and Metabolism. From September
2021, Mr. Li served as the vice general manager of Shenzhen
Sanshun Pharmaceutical Limited* (I = IH R 25 BR A w)) .

Mr. Li is one of the members and directors of Sky Source
International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds
49% of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited (“Up
Mount”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Minghui (& B ) , aged 24, was appointed as our non-
executive direction on 31 August 2022. He graduated from Bryant
University in the United States of America, with a Bachelor
degree of Science in Business Administration, majoring in Finance
and Economics. Mr. Zhu is currently the Investment Manager in
Shenzhen Maoanyuan Investments Company Limited* ( &3l T /%

LZRBERRLFA)

Mr. Zhu is one of the members and directors of Sky Source
International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds
49% of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited (“Up
Mount”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Vincent (¥ 5 #%) , aged 59, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 17 November 2018. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of our Board. Dr. Cheng obtained a doctorate
degree in Business Administration from European University
in Switzerland in October 2016, a master’s degree in Business
Administration from Deakin University in Australia (as a joint
program of Deakin University and CPA Australia) in May 2003
and a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong (formerly known as City Polytechnic
of Hong Kong) in November 1993. Dr. Cheng was admitted as a
fellow of CPA Australia in December 2000, a fellow of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute in October 2000, a fellow
of HKICPA in April 2008 and a fellow of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong in September 2010. He was also recognised by the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong as a Chartered Tax Adviser (CTA
HK) in September 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Vincent has years of experience in the fields of finance
and accountancy. From December 1987 to September 2000,
Dr. Cheng was employed with a financial planning firm and
was promoted to chief accountant (Hong Kong) before he left.
During October 2000 to February 2002, Dr. Cheng had been
a project manager responsible for fund raising activities and
relationship management in a company in Australia which is
principally engaged in chemical and pharmaceutical business and
was subsequently listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (now
known as GEM) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). From May 2003 to July 2010, Dr. Cheng
had joined Continental Holdings Limited, a company engaged
in consumer goods business and listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 513), and had held various positions
(including project manager, head of finance and accounts
department, company secretary and qualified accountant) during
his tenure of service. In January 2011, Dr. Cheng was appointed
as the deputy finance director of a multi-disciplinary architecture

firm and is currently its finance director.

Dr. Cheng had been the independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3332)) from
August 2013 to October 2018. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Flying Financial Service Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8030)).

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (&%) , aged 61, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 28 October 2009. He
is also the chairman of the nomination committee, as well as a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
of our Board. Mr. Lai has over 30 years’ experience in the jewelry
industry. He had worked for and held key management positions
in various established jewelry companies, both listed and private,
in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Lai has rich experience in sales
management, marketing, distribution channel and resource
planning strategies.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Qiang (#3%) , aged 62, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 15 January 2016. He
is also a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of our Board. Mr. Yang
holds a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from Beijing
Institute of Technology (dL 5T ¥ T. k&) | He is experienced in the
wine industry in the PRC and has been serving as the secretary of
the expert committee of the Grape and Fruit Wine of the China
National Food Industry Association ( H [ £ 5 T 2 15 & %5 7 ~
R H K Z B ) for many years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Jun ( EH) | aged 60, has been appointed as the chief
winemaker of our Company since 1 January 2017. Prior to joining
our Group, from August 1985 to January 2014, he served various
positions in Tonhwa Winery Limited ( %t 75 2 /5 i > A PR A ) |
a wine company currently listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
including director of chief engineer’s office, director of research
office, head of technical division, director of research institute
and general manager. In 2014, Mr. Wang joined Hangzhou
Oriental Culture Tourism Group (HTH H 77 AL FEiRELEE) as
general manager of one of its subsidiaries, Liaoning Northern
Latitude 41 Degrees Wine Company Limited ( 7 % b #4135 5 3%
HIRAF]) . He has been a member of the China Alcoholic Drinks
Association ( 1B %1€ ) , China Food Industry Association (
B & L2 &) , Wine Expert Panel of National Wine Quality
Inspection Center ([ % % % W B fg b O B A W B X 4) and a
national liquor judge since 1997. Mr. Wang was appointed as an
international judge by Union Internationale des Oenologues ([
4% B2 375 BT B 24 ) in 2008, certified as the first batch of state level
senior winemaker (= #% BEVE i) and first-class sommelier (— %K
AhiB AT ) in 2012, and elected as a member of the First National
Wine Brewing Standard Technology Committee Grape Wine
Sub-branch ( & & 4 [ 1 A% YE AL 452 1lf 25 B & #4579 20 &) in
2014. He graduated from Food Science & Engineering of Dalian
Institute of Light Industry (K T2EELRE) (currently known
as Dalian Polytechnic University (K% T3 K £ ) ) with a college
diploma of industrial fermentation in August 1985.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Zhao Dan (#J}) , aged 43, is the chief financial officer and
the deputy general manager of our Company. She joined our
Group in September 2001 and was promoted to the position of
deputy general manager in December 2014. She was the chief
financial officer of our Group from December 2014 to December
2015, and was re-appointed as the chief financial officer of our
Group from July 2018. She is responsible for the financial and
accounting management of our Group. Ms. Zhao graduated from
Jilin University (# MK £ ) with a higher diploma in finance
and accounting in July 2000. She obtained her qualification of
mid-level accountant in May 2005.

Mr. Zhang Xuexin (R 2 #) , aged 41, is a deputy general
manager of our Company. He joined our Group in December
2001 and is responsible for project management of the Group. In
December 2010, Mr. Zhang was promoted from project manager
to his current position. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin University
(F MK EL) with a higher diploma in economics in July 2002.

Mr. Lou Hong Bin (H %) , aged 52, has joined the Company
since 2019 as our Investment and Financing Officer and has
also become Vice President of the Company since October 2021.
During 1994 to 2003, Mr. Lou served as the assistant to general
manager of the fifth international trade division of Fujian
Jiuzhou Group Company Limited (48 @ Ju M 4 B B A R A
A B M 5 fLEB) . From 2004 to 2012, Mr. Lou served as the
general manager of the third international trade division of
Fujian Chaoda Group Limited (%2 ¥ K £ 45 FR /A &) B Bk & 5
—=#B) . From 2013 to 2019, Mr. LOU served as the investment and
financing manager of Beijing Zhongrun Guosheng Technology
Limited (b3 o BB &R A BRA R ) . Mr. Lou graduated from
Beijing Jiaotong University (-t 3% 3¢ % K £ ) with a Bachelor’s
degree majoring in International Trading.

WA R .

M L 4350 A R E R M EE KR A
HoHR ZFT —FESLAMAREME IR =
Z-WEF_ABFERIBKHE G R F
—WEFZAZRZF-AFE T _ABREALEE
MBS E it = F— NEEARENEE
A E M E WA ALY ke
APEE BT TR FFTFELARERE MK
KE BHERBEXE - BN _FFHELAE
A A o

WEBELA > 450 A0 A B AR - R —F
FoETZAMAFRER ARAFEBNIHE
MR T —FE+ T H R EHER KM
B H AR RS RN R L
B ETA T RO B - A 3 B2 R R SCIR

BRI - S5 B A T — LRI A AL
AEERBEERmEAE e —F - —4F+A
EIRAA R A B KR AN EEZRF
SUAE ST M O A O AT A R LU 4R TR A BR
2 ) IR I B T A A B B B o i T 4
BT AR MR O AT A K AR
AR v B B 5 = AR A o i — = AR
BE U A A 0 AT e i
B A7 R 2 ] 45 il 0 40 B o 0 S A B R b
BB > R R S B B




30

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

N A P

SENTOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tian Fu Yuan (FH##%8) , aged 60, has been appointed as the
vice-president of the Company’s subsidiary, Tonghua Tongtian
Winery Co., Ltd. from December 2021, overseeing the Company’s
joint strategic operation with Ji Yao Fang Zhou (Guangdong)
Technological Company Limited (425 /i (FE#) BHEARAF) .
He was the section chief of Bureau office research section and
deputy manager of public relations section at Liaoling Fushun
Mining Bureau (%% #IH% %5 /5 ) from December 1980 till June
1990. He has been the vice chairman of labour union of Liaoling
Fushun Mining Bureau from July 1990 to November 2001. During
December 2001 to November 2013, Mr. Tian served as the general
manager of the Liaoling Fushun Center Subbranch of Taikang
Insurance Group Company Limited (Z i AR A R EHAL A
A E M)A .0 XA F]) . From August 2014 till now, Mr. Tian
served as the general manager of the North-eastern Region and
then the chairman of the strategy execution committee of a high
technology company in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Tian
graduated from CPC Liaoning Weidangxiao ( /3L 2 8 25 2 %A%
with a Bachelor’s degree majoring in Business Administration.

Mr. Zhang Hansong (R 1) , aged 39, was appointed as the
Company’s Chief Strategic Officer from 21 January 2022. He has
worked in several large multinational group companies, experience
covers management consulting, investment analysis, strategic
management, and other fields. He has a strong industrial judgment
and communication skills with government departments with
forward-looking international vision and thinking. Mr. Zhang is
fully responsible for the Company’s strategic planning, business
development, financing, and other work, and reports directly to
the Company’s board of directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Shuk Man, Lora (B ¥ %) was appointed as the
Company secretary of the Company from 22 January 2021.
She obtained a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in
Accounting (Hon.) from the Coventry University and a MBA (Banking)
from the University of Stirling in the United Kingdom and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Chartered Tax Adviser
(Hong Kong). She has over 25 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, banking and financial management.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) is pleased
to present the Directors’ Report together with the annual report
(the “Annual Report”) and the audited financial statements
of China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group continue to be the production and sales
of grape wine in the mainland China. Revenue and contribution
to operating profit are mainly derived from activities carried out
in the mainland China. Particulars of the principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 184.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend to shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the additions of approximately RMB27,653,000
in property, plant and equipment was mainly for the expansion
and enhancement of the Group’s production capability. Details
of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
ements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige

the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2009 Share Option
Scheme”) adopted on 19 November 2009 was terminated on 10
May 2019 upon the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“2019 Share Option Scheme”) by the Company’s shareholders at
the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2019, which enables
the Company to offer to grant options to subscribe for ordinary
shares (the “Shares”) of HK$0.01 each in the Company.

Consequent upon its termination, no further options can be
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme but the subsisting
options granted prior to its termination will continue to be valid
and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the terms on
which they were granted, the provisions of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™).

On 10 May 2019, the shareholders approved at the annual general
meeting of the Company the termination of the 2009 Share

Option Scheme.
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2019 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The principal terms of the 2019 Share Option Scheme are

summarised below.

@

(i)

The purpose of the 2019 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to subscribe for Shares to
eligible participants (as stated below) to recognize and
reward them, or as incentives for retaining them, for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group for its
long-term growth and development.

Eligible participants of the 2019 Share Option Scheme
include: (a) any employee (whether full time or part
time, including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest;
(b) any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to
the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (h) any other group or classes of
participants who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the Group,

and, for the purposes of the 2019 Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of option(s) may be made to any
company wholly owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.
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(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

R

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 201,301,800 Shares,
representing 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company
as at the date of passing the relevant resolution adopting
the 2019 Share Option Scheme (the “2019 General Scheme
Limit”). Subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
the 2019 General Scheme Limit may be renewed with prior
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2019 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.

Unless approved by shareholders in a general meeting, the
total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted to any eligible
participant under the 2019 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Group in the 12-month
period up to and including such further grant must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being.

Any grant of options under the 2019 Share Option Scheme
to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who
is the grantee of the options). In addition, any grant to a
substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant) in excess of HKS$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
of the Company in a general meeting.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option. A nominal consideration of HKS$I is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

of the 2019 Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the
date of the grant) to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee.

The subscription price per Share under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer for grant (which
must be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a Share.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in
the offer of the grant of option(s) to an eligible participant,
there is no minimum period required under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

Subject to the early termination by an ordinary resolution
in general meeting of shareholders, the 2019 Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date of adoption (that is, until
9 May 2029), after which period no further options shall
be granted but the provisions of the 2019 Share Option

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

(viil) MM HEn

(ix)

(x)

(xi)
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o - i .f'
During the Year, the movements in the options granted by the  4F & A » A A A MR —F — JLAF B B4 51 81 3%

Company under the 2019 Share Option Scheme were as follows: HE T B 5 ) B ) G
Number of options
T B W H
Outstanding Outstanding
Closing price as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Exercisable Exercise price  per Share on 1 January ~ Granted during during during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant ~ Vesting date  period per Share date of grant 2022 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2022
-
- +ZA
TE B —A—R Zt-H
REAEH A BERA AR BERATHR Rk WATHE  ERARE  ERAE ERRRE ERRRR WAL
(ddmmfyyyy)  (ddimmlyyyy) (dd/mmlyyyy) HKS HKS
(R/R/%)  (B/R/%) (B/R/%) -y BT
Directors 21/09/2021 230972021 23/09/2021 - 0.1 0.089 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 - - -
L 22/09/2022
Employees 21/09/2021 230972021 23/09/2021 - 0.1 0.089 160,000,000 - 160,000,000 - - -
{3 20/09/2022
Total 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 - - -




The total number of Shares granted and exercised on 30 May 2022
under the share option schemes disclosed above is 200,000,000 (2009
Share Option Scheme: Nil Shares and 2019 Share Option Scheme:
200,000,000 Share), representing approximately 6.80% of the total
number of Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue upon exercise
of options not yet granted under the share option schemes
disclosed above is 1,301,800 Shares (2009 Share Option Scheme:
Nil Share and 2019 Share Option Scheme: 1,301,800 Shares),
representing approximately 0.044% of the total number of Shares
in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

Options granted under the Company’s share option schemes were
recognized as expenses of the Company in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated
financial statements. The determination of the fair value of the
options is set out in note 30 to the audited consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 114.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB127,594,000 (2021:
RMB110,932,000).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results containing information on
the Group’s assets and liabilities for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 2 to 4. The summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors comprising the Board during the Year and up to the
date of the Annual Report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Wang Guangyuan (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhang Hebin

Ms. Wang Lijun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Jerry Y.
Mr. Zhu Minghui

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Dr. Cheng Vincent

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert

Mr. Yang Qiang

The Company’s bye-laws provide that, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. Further, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Board will hold office until the next following general meeting of
the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the existing Board), unless re-elected by the
shareholders. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he/she retires. Every Director is therefore subject himself/
herself to the absolute and free choice of the shareholders for
re-election at the annual general meetings.

The Board comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors play an important role on formulating
the Group’s objectives and strategies and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standard of corporate governance. The Company
has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr.
Cheng Vincent, Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert, and Mr. Yang
Qiang pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered all of its independent non-executive Directors were
independent during the Year and as at the date of the Annual
Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEM
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 30 of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements for the Year constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the

management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND/OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF

THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES
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(THE “SHARES”) OF HK$0.01 EACH IN THE (Ml 2% 8
COMPANY
Approximate
Name of Group member/ Number of percentage of
Name of Director associated corporation Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
AL E AW,
EHEH Wk 2 % R /98 £1:3:t Pl E  BAREEE
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(Wtzt1) (Ktit3)
Mr. Wang Guangyuan The Company Interest of a controlled 495,178,720 16.84%
Fot ek /N corporation Shares (L)
S T A R A (Note 2)
JBE M (L)
(Htiz2)
Mr. Li Jerry Y. The Company Interest of a controlled 695,178,720 23.64%
2= Fi U S P/ corporation Shares (L)
32V 35 ] B (Note 3)
JBEJBE A7 (L)
(Hit3)
Mr. Zhu The Company Interest of a controlled 695,178,720 23.64%

Minghui

/N




(2)

(3)

4

The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

These Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) and whose issued share capital is owned by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (51%) and Sky Source International
Investments Limited (49%).

As at 31 December 2022, Sky Source held a total number
of 695,178,720 Shares of the Company, representing
approximately 23.64% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Both Mr. Li Jerry Y. and Mr. Zhu Minghui
are members and directors of Sky Source International
Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) which holds 49%
of shareholding of Up Mount International Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis
of 2,940,548,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND/OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF

THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

(2) INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS OF THE

COMPANY

Exercisable Date of
Name of Director Date of grant  period Exercise
HHEH A (ki e:] Fife H A

Mr. Zhang Hebin 21/09/2021 23/09/2021 - 30/05/2022

R SEAE 22/09/2022

Ms. Wang Li Jun 21/09/2021 23/09/2021 —  30/05/2022
TEELL 22/09/2022

Note:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
2.,940,548,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying

shares in or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31
December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INT
IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following parties, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, as being
directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name

£ V8 X2

Sky Source International Investments Limited
(Note 2)
RUEE B BCE A AT (M at2)

Up Mount International Limited (Note 3)
bR BB RN (HE3)

Ms. Zhang Min (Note 4)
R (M at4)

Bon Voyage Development Limited (Note 5)
e ik 3% Je AT BRN 7 (B AES)

Mr. Yu Xinxin
T s eAk

Mr. Yan Shaohua

# 4

RESTS

Capacity/Nature of
interest

L2/ 08 3

Interest in a controlled
corporation

3218 1 i P HE AR

Beneficial owner

HanHEA A

Beneficial owner

HEHEA A

Interest of spouse

i i 1 2

Beneficial owner

HaEHA N

Beneficial owner

HasAa N

Beneficial owner

Number of
Shares held

Jt ¥ ik 8 H
(Note 1)
(Htat1)

495,178,720 (L)

200,000,000 (L)

495,178,720 (L)

495,178,720 (L)

400,000,000 (L)

277,530,000 (L)

237,582,000 (L)

W ZAEF A=t —H BT E R
AT EEATECN B BT A AR 4 AR 8 R 2R
A0 91 265 3 3600 A L ) 6 T AT T Bk B AT A
A NE EEB A R R A AR
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Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares

5 BB AT Ik
B4 4 e
(Note 6)
(HFte)

16.84%

6.80%

16.84%

16.84%

13.60%

9.44%

8.08%



Notes:

1) The Letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares.

?2) Sky Source International Investments Limited (“Sky Source”) is
a company incorporated in the Samoa. It is beneficially owned by
Mr. Li Jerry Y. (50%) and Mr. Zhu Minghui (50%), non-executive
directors of the Company. Sky Source holds 49% of shareholding
of Up Mount, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

3) Up Mount International Limited (“Up Mount”) is a company
incorporated in the BVI, and is beneficially owned by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (51%), the chairman, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company and Sky Source
International Investments Limited (49%).

4) Ms. Zhang Min is the spouse of Mr. Wang Guangyuan and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr.
Wang Guangyuan (through Up Mount International Limited) by
virtue of the SFO.

(5) Bon Voyage Development Limited is a company incorporated in
the BVL.

(6) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
2.,940,548,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as the options granted under the Company’s share option
scheme(s) disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for its qualifying employees
in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the government of the People’s Republic of China
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INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group or the provision of services to the
Group to which any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, or in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of the Annual Report, no
Directors were considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY, EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Quality and dedicated staff are our most important assets and
are indispensable to our success in the competitive market. As
part of our corporate culture, we strive to ensure a strong team
spirit among our employees for them to contribute towards our
corporate objectives. In achieving the goal, we offer competitive
remuneration packages commensurate with the industry level
and provide various fringe benefits, including trainings, medical,
insurance coverage as well as retirement benefits to the employees
in Hong Kong and in China. The Company has also adopted
share option scheme with the primary purpose of motivating
employees of the Group to optimize their contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their performance and dedications.
Employees are encouraged to enroll in external professional and
technical seminars, and other training programs and courses to
update their technical knowledge and skills, enhance their market
awareness and improve their business acumen. The Group reviews
its human resources and remuneration policies periodically with
reference to local legislation, market conditions, industry practice
and assessment of the performance of the Group and individual
employees (including Directors).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a work force of
263 (excluding Directors) in Hong Kong and in China (2021: a
work force of 318). The total salaries and related costs (including
the Directors’ fee) for the Year amounted to approximately
RMBI18,059,000 (2021: RMB23,423,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
around 19.1% and 42.5% of the total sales and purchases of the
Group respectively. The Group’s largest customer and supplier
accounted for around 5.5% and 10.9% of the total sales and
purchases of the Group for the Year respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established its audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) which comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors (namely, Dr. Cheng Vincent, Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert,
and Mr. Yang Qiang).

The Audit Committee had reviewed the accounting principles,
accounting standards and methods adopted by the Company
together with the management, discussed the matters concerning
the Group’s risk management and internal controls systems, as
well as reviewed the Group’s audited annual results for the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of the Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every Director, secretary and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses or other liabilities (to the extent
allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties in respect of their respective offices or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage to indemnify
the Directors and officers of the Group, and such indemnity was
in force during the year ended 31 December 2022 and remain
effective as at the date of the Annual Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
LEGAL COMPLIANCE

The Company is committed to protecting the environment where
it operates and ensuring that it complies with the environmental
protection standards applicable to the Group and its business
operation from time to time.

During the Year and to the best of our Directors’ knowledge,
the Group had obtained the required permits and environmental
approvals for its business and production facilities, and had
complied with such laws, rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, its business and operations.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
contained in the Annual Report for further information on the
work done and efforts made by the Company on environmental
protection, legal compliance and other aspects for the sustainable
growth and development of the business of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH BUSINESS
PARTNERS AND CUSTOMERS

We value our relationships, and have been maintaining good
relationships, with our business partners (including farmers,
suppliers and distributors), customers and the employees of the
Group. We believe that building long-term beneficial relationships
with each of them is of paramount importance to establish
mutual trust, loyalty and business development, and on which the
Company’s success and sustainability depend.

AUDITOR

PROPOSED RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the existing auditor of the
Company, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM?”) of the Company and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment
of the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed from on
the date of holding the annual general meeting (the “AGM™) and
three business days before holding the AGM (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates should be lodged for registration with
the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited by 4:30 p.m. on the
fourth business day before the AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wang Guangyuan

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of the
Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) formulates
and reviews the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance to keep their effectiveness from time to time in order
to meet the rising expectations of shareholders, to comply with
the increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill
its commitment to excel in corporate governance. The Board
is committed to maintaining a good standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) have been followed
by the Company to shape its corporate governance structure. The
CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices
namely, “code provisions” that a listed company is to comply
with or explain its decision if there is any deviation from the
code provisions, and “recommended best practices” that a listed
company is encouraged to comply with but need not explain if it
does not.

The Company had complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”),
save for the following:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer (the “CEQ”) should be segregated and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, the Company does
not have a separate chairman and CEO and Mr. Wang Guangyuan
currently performs these two roles. Mr. Wang is responsible for
the overall business strategy and development and management
of the Group. The Board considers that Mr. Wang, by serving
as the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company, is
able to lead the Board in major business decision making for the
Group and enables the Board’s decision to be effectively made,
which is beneficial to the management and the development of the
Group’s business. Therefore, Mr. Wang assumes the dual roles of
being the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company
notwithstanding the aforementioned deviation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Group. The Directors, both individually
and collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board
is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitoring and evaluating its operations,
financial performance, compliance controls and reviewing the
corporate governance standard of the Group. It also decides
(after considering the recommendations from time to time from
various committees established by the Board) on matters such
as annual and interim results, major transactions, appointment
or re-appointment of Directors, and dividend and accounting
policies. The profiles of the Directors are set out in this report.

Senior management is delegated with the responsibility for the
execution of the business plans and strategies adopted by the
Board, assisting the Board in the preparation of the financial
statements for approval by the Board, the implementation of
adequate procedures as put forward by the Board and/or the
committees established by the Board regarding, among others,
internal control and risk management and reporting regularly to
and seeking approval from the Board on important matters from
time to time.

The Directors acknowledge that, notwithstanding the delegation,
it is the responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial results
of the Group.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions of the Company, which are set out in the written
terms of reference. The Board had, among others, reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
their effectiveness, reviewed the Group’s compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations, reviewed and monitored the
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management of the Group and reviewed this corporate
governance report in the discharge of its corporate governance
functions and to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain Board = = & £\ % 45
committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration 5% EE &

Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board [#EH & &€ |)

Committees”).

I T e

Our Board comprises 3 executive Directors, 2 non-executive KMMWEFGH LA ITEHF WL FEAITE
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors. During Ml =& 8 7 JE 9178 H AL - £ N > # H &
the Year, the Board had meetings regularly to discuss the overall & ] & 8117 & 5% DL 5 i A% 48 [0 % 8 Oy &~ &

strategy, the operational and financial performance and the FIEfHSRBILL KA EE G-

corporate governance of the Group. The attendance record of  FLER#H R 3£ :

each of the Directors is tabulated as follows:

Name 24

Number of meeting(s) R B
Executive Directors WATE G

Mr. Wang Guangyuan (Chairman and CEQ) F iR 64 (£ i 77 BL#E # )
Mr. Zhang Hebin RN S A

Ms. Wang Lijun EBE L L
Non-executive Directors JEHAT #EF

Mr. Li Jerry Y. 2R AR

Mr. Zhu Minghui KB
Independent Non-executive Directors B JE AT R
Dr. Cheng Vincent W AR L

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert BGEEE A

Mr. Yang Qiang 5 56 e

Annual general
meeting held
on May 2022
/I Y 3
A

BATH

JBe 38 4R K &

1/1
1/1
1/1

0/0
0/0

1/1
1/1
0/1

3

Number of
board meetings
attended/held
during the Year
EEN
BT
HEH
B

14

14/14
13/14
13/14

2/3
2/3

13/14
13/14
13/14

Save for the sibling relationship between Mr. Wang Guangyuan F§ T T ot# Jo 4k B F B H &0 A W bk B &5
and Ms. Wang Lijun, the Board members have no financial, §$@ﬁ§ ﬁﬁ]fﬁﬁﬁﬁa‘ﬁ EH %{ﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

iness, family or other relationships with each other. Each of




)

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e L

Since the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 19 November 2009, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding board meetings regularly for at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings
will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a
regular board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice to provide relevant
materials to all Directors relating to the matters brought before
the meetings. All the Directors will be provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable request,
the Directors will be able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. Each
of the Directors will have the opportunity and is encouraged to
include matters which he/she deems appropriate in the agenda for
Board meetings.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a specific term of three years, and is
renewable automatically thereafter for successive terms of one
year subject to termination in accordance with the provisions of
the service contract or by either party giving the other not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a specific term of two
years, which is renewable automatically for successive terms of one
year each commencing from the date next after the expiry of the
then current term of his appointment and is subject to termination
in accordance with the provisions of the service contract or by
either party giving the other not less than one month’s prior
written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, each year, one-third
of the Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) for the time being will retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the general
meeting of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices, the
Board established the Board Committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board Committees are
governed by the respective written terms of reference approved by
the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee has been established by the Board with
clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code,
which clearly define the role, authority and function of the Audit
Committee and are available on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, the members of the Audit Committee were Dr.
Cheng Vincent (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lai Chi
Keung, Albert and Mr. Yang Qiang, who were all independent
non-executive Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has the appropriate professional qualification as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process and assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems. It is
also responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and removal of external auditor. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the accounting principles, accounting
standards and methods adopted by the Company together with
the management, discussed the matters concerning the Group’s
risk management and internal controls, adequacy of resources

for performing the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions, provided recommendation to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of external auditor, as well
as reviewed the Group’s annual and interim results for the Year.
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The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of its review
of the engagement, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of
the external auditor engaged by the Company.

Attendance of meetings
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year.

The attendance record of each Audit Committee member during
the Year is set out below.

Directors W

Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman) W AR L (L)

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert BGE W A
Mr. Yang Qiang o8 e Ak

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board
with clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, which clearly define the role, authority and function of the
Remuneration Committee and are available on both the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, the members of the Remuneration Committee
were Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert and Mr. Yang Qiang,
who were all independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure, as well as the
remuneration packages, relating to all the Directors and senior
management of our Group; reviewing their remuneration packages
with reference to corporate goals and objectives of the Company
so as to attain such levels as is sufficient to attract, retain and
incentivise them to make positive contribution to the long-term
development of the Group, and ensuring that none of the
Directors determine his/her own remuneration. During the Year,
the works performed by the Remuneration Committee mainly
comprised assessing the performance of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, reviewing the terms of the service
agreements governing the appointment of the Directors and senior
management of the Group and recommending to the Board their
remuneration packages.
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Details of the remuneration paid to members of senior
management of the Group (inclusive of executive Directors) by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BE-Z-— ft
A T TR RS B (IS AT ) M
A8 48 B P T

Number of

senior management

"R BLE

Remuneration band i B i ANB
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 JC A 7
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % JC ££2,000,000%: I 1

Further particulars of the remuneration of the Directors (both
executive and independent non-executive Directors) for the Year
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements for
the Year.

Attendance of meetings
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.

The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member
during the Year is set out below.

Directors W

Dr. Cheng Vincent (Chairman) g Am L (L)
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert RE A

Mr. Yang Qiang 0 Se A

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee has been established by the Board

with clear written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code, which clearly define the role, authority and function of the
Nomination Committee and are available on both the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Diversity policy

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include,
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board
regarding candidates for directorship, either to fill vacancies on or
appoint additional Directors to the Board, the structure, size and
composition of the Board and succession planning for Directors.
In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee will take into account the diversity policy of the
Company, which has been in place since August 2013 and reviewed
by the Nomination Committee from time to time. The diversity
policy includes the consideration of various elements including
gender, age, culture, qualification, ability, work experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates and against
the objective criteria set out by the Board. These elements were
recognised and were taken into account of in the composition of
the existing diverse Board.

Nomination policy and procedures

To ensure the composition of the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, the Company has, with
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, adopted a
formal, considered and transparent procedures for the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors. The criteria to be
taken into account when considering the suitability of a candidate
will be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the
Board (based on the diversity policy adopted by the Company)
as well as the effective carrying out of the responsibilities of the
Board, in particular, the following:

(a) bringing an independent judgment and make constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and/or other
committee(s) as may be established by the Board from time
to time, if invited;
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(d) devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any
Committee(s) on which he or she serves so as to allow
them to benefit from his or her skills, expertise, and
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity
through attendance and participation in the Board and/or
Committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the
reporting of performance;

(f) ensuring the Committees on which he or she serves to
perform their powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

(2) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitutional documents of the Company
or imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed or offers himself
or herself to be re-appointed as an independent non-executive
Director (INED), his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the
totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she has the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise for filling the office of an INED
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Annual confirmation on independence is sought from each INED
to re-assess his/her independence.

Prior to the issue of this report, the Nomination Committee,
having reviewed the Board’s structure, size and composition,
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Attendance of meetings

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year
in which, among other things, the structure, size, composition
and diversity of the Board, the nomination policy, the diversity
policy and its implementation, the suitability of the Directors who
stood for re-election by the shareholders at the last annual general

meeting of the Company and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors were reviewed and its recommendations
were put forward to the Board for consideration and approval.

The attendance record of each Nomination Committee member
during the Year is set out below.

Directors e

Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert (Chairman) WSS (L)
Mr. Wang Guangyuan Foa A

Mr. Yang Qiang e e A

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company encourages its Directors to acquaint themselves

with the general duties of directors as well as up-to-date
knowledge so as to discharge their duties.
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During the Year, the Directors were advised to attend director
training webcast and other e-learning programs, which were
readily accessible from the website of the Stock Exchange
and other sources, and provided with materials covering legal,
regulatory, corporate governance and/or other aspects (including
but not limited to updates on the Listing Rules and guidance
letters for listed issuers issued by the Stock Exchange) for
reference/self-reading. The level of participation by each Director
is briefly set out below:

Name of Directors HHEA

Mr. Wang Guangyuan Tt e
Mr. Zhang Hebin SRAM A
Ms. Wang Lijun EBA L+
Mr. Li Jerry Y. HR A
Mr. Zhu Minghui KB
Dr. Cheng Vincent 5% A8 1
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert RE A
Mr. Yang Qiang i Se A

The Company also encouraged all Directors to participate from
time to time seminars, presentations and courses which they

considered relevant at the costs of the Company so as to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills for better fulfillment of
their duties as directors of a listed issuer.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is the principal
administrative officer of the Company and is responsible for
(including) organizing meetings of the Directors and Shareholders
of the Company and ensuring that all procedures for convening
and conducting such meetings comply with the bye-laws of the
Company and the laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Company. During the Year, the Company Secretary had conducted
15 hours of professional training to update and develop his/her
knowledge and skills.

Ms. Chan Shuk Man, Lora has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effect from 22 January 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has in place a dividend
policy. Under the dividend policy, the Company may distribute
dividends by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. Any proposed distribution of dividends is
subject to the discretion of the Board and, where applicable, the
approval of the Shareholders. The Board will consider various
factors before declaring or recommending any payment of
dividends which factors include the results of operation of the
business of the Group, the retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the members of the Group,
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance, the general
business conditions and strategies, the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans, the general
economic conditions and business cycle of the Group’s business,
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment

of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has
overall responsibilities for maintaining good and effective risk
management and internal controls of the Group. During the Year,
the Board conducted an annual review of the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, covering financial, operational, compliance control
and risk management functions for the year ended 31 December
2022 after the end of such financial year. The Group’s system of
internal control includes the setting up of a management structure
with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, protect its assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
mis-statement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives. After reviewing
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, the
Board considers that the systems are effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole. The Board further considers that (i) there
was no material issue relating to the Group’s risk management and
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group; and (ii)
that there were adequate staff with appropriate and adequate
qualifications and experience, resources for accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year. The control
and compliance department of the Company plays a major role
in monitoring the risk management and internal controls of
the Group and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has
full access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk
management and internal controls. All types of audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management, which
will follow up on any actions and measures taken to improve risk
management and internal controls on the recommendations of the
control and compliance department.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. In preparing the accounts for the Year, the Directors
had selected suitable accounting policies and had applied them
consistently, adopted appropriate accounting standards which
were pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgments and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable, and had prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The statement of the auditor of the Company, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the Group
were as follows:
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors and relevant employees of the
Group who, because of office or employment, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Group’s securities. The Directors and such relevant employees
are required to strictly follow the Model Code when dealing in
the securities of the Company. The Directors and such relevant
employees, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING (THE
“SGM”)

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s
bye-laws, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended or
supplemented from time to time (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulation.

1. Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the Company’s principal office of business
in Hong Kong at Unit no. 2910-11, 29/F, Prosperity
Millennia Plaza, No. 663 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require a SGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
general meeting, signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of those Shareholders.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to

all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the

requisition is invalid, the Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not
be convened as requeste

RS &AL

LN AR A B RSO R A )

JB At A
BB SEA K (TIRRAF k€ ])

THIRFHZ AN F RN F MBS E
—NN—HRARE (BARETSEME) (2
FIHE ) B R R R L A o

1. AR A8 R RE A B A RE I R BE IR
EARAFBREKR G R E AL A
JE AR R D A 4k 2 — Y R RE 1) A%
7y A L O (M hE %% Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda) & A A A] 7 s F 2245 £ 1
B (HhE 2 7 W 0 e S 5L 66355 A &
E 2T 52012010-11% ) H# 2 T
RAFRMAFRE (TAFAME] WER
Al oK > BEORHE E H B R R R & DLE
PREZ 7 5K T 4] BA 04 AT AT S 5 o

2. K& A TR ISR % 2 1 3 T R b ZH T A
B S SRR & 1) B RG> B m] B A ] — A XY
Z K B XA~ LR E B %%
e R % -

3. fisl sZ TR A B AR M E M ERER G
R 3 S BEOR 1) A E RO RO R 2
9 38 0 > 3 B R K B o 2 i %
R OR AN & B> i &5 SR 45 A BRSO >
LR A € 45 R 4 B R Bl K e



The notice period to be given to all the registered
Shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by
the Shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM varies according to
the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if
the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company, which cannot be amended other than to
a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error;
and

. at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.

PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

1.

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to move a
resolution at an annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company or circulate a statement at any general
meeting of the Company. Under section 79 of the
Companies Act, at the expense of the requisitionists unless
the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of the
Company on the requisition in writing by such number of
Shareholders:—

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words
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The number of Shareholders necessary to make the
above-mentioned requisitions to the Company shall be:—

6) either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or

(i)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall
be given to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the
general effect of the resolution in any manner permitted
for giving him notice of meeting of the Company, provided
that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as
notice of the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it
to be served or given at that time, it shall be served or given
as soon as practicable thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions
to be met before the Company is bound to give any notice
of resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not
be bound to give notice of any resolution or to circulate
any statement as mentioned in paragraph 3 above unless:—

(a) a copy of the requisition signed by the

requisitionists, or two or more copies which
between them contain the signatures of all the
requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office
of the Company:—
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(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect to the procedures in
paragraph 1 above (i.e. the giving of notice of
resolution and/or circulation of statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

PROPOSED A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR AT AN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Company has an established procedures for shareholders
of the Company to propose a person for election as a Director
and the procedures are published at the Company’s website at
http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk.

The Company welcomes enquiries from its shareholders. The
Board or designated senior management of the Company will
review shareholders’ enquiries on a regular basis. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in

writing to the Board or the Company Secretary by e-mail
(info@corporatelink.com.hk) or at the address of the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATIONS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with shareholders and investors in general.
The various channels via which the Company communicates with
its shareholders include interim and annual reports, circulars,
notices, financial reports, information posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company, and general meetings.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general
meetings where the Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees (as appropriate) are invited to
attend to answer questions. Notice of the annual general meeting
of the Company and related papers are sent to shareholders of
the Company at least 21 clear business days before the meeting
and such notice is also made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue. Poll results of the meeting
will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange on the day
of the meeting. The financial and other information relating to
the Group is disclosed on the Company’s website, http://www.
tontine-wines.com.hk.

In order to facilitate the communication with shareholders of
the Company, the Group has maintained the Company’s website
as a channel to provide the latest information and to strengthen
communication with its shareholder and the investing public. The
Group’s corporate correspondence and information will also be
published on the website in a timely manner.

The above communication policy is reviewed by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness.
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ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This is the environmental, social and governance report (the
“ESG Report”) issued by China Tontine Wines Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “We”), which contains
the sustainable development policy implemented by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”) and the
Group’s performance in social governance and corporate civic
responsibilities under the practice of the concept of sustainable
development.

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report covers the overall environmental and social
performance of the core business of the Group located in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “Mainland China”).

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
requirements set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) under Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
cross reference between content index of the ESG Reporting
Guide and the ESG Report is set out in the ESG Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group has been cooperating with its stakeholders in
understanding and focusing on their needs through various
channels and through feedbacks to assist us to have a better
understanding of the level of the Group’s current environmental,
social and governance development. The ESG Report was
prepared by different departments of the Group. The information
we gathered was not only the summary of the environmental,
social and governance work carried out by the Group during the
Year, but also formed the basis for us to formulate short and long
terms sustainable development strategies.

INFORMATION AND FEEDBACKS

For detailed information regarding the financial performance and
corporate governance of the Group during the Year, please refer
to the official website (http://www.tontine-wines.com.hk) and the
annual report of the Group.

Your opinions will be highly valued by us. If you have any suggestions
or comments, please email at info@corporatelink.com.hk or write to
the principal business place of the Group in Hong Kong.
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BOARD APPROVAL
The board of directors (the “Board™) of the Group approved the
ESG Report on 30 March 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group adheres to the
concept of sustainable development, actively fulfils its corporate
social responsibilities and incorporates environmental protection
and environmental management into its business decisions. In
addition, the Group has been focusing on maintaining closer
connections with different stakeholders, listening to the voices of
all parties, caring for and growing with its employees, and taking

on more social responsibilities.

The Group has established a governance structure to enhance its
efforts in environmental, social and governance related works. The
Board has overall responsibility for the environmental, social and
governance strategies and reporting issues of the Group and fully
monitors the related risks and opportunities. The Board conducts
enterprise risk assessment at least once a year to identify, assess
and monitor environmental, social and governance related risks
in the ordinary course of business. The Board is also responsible
for formulating the Group’s environmental, social and governance
related management approach, strategies and objectives, regularly
reviewing the objectives set by the Group and its performance
regarding such objectives and revising its strategies as appropriate.
To carry through the concept of sustainable development
and effectively manage environmental, social and governance
issues, the Group has established an environmental, social and
governance working group to assist the Board in overseeing
and promoting the implementation of various environmental,
social and governance strategies. The environmental, social and
governance working group is also responsible for assisting the
Board to identify and prioritise important issues, reporting to
the Board regularly on the effectiveness of the environmental,
social and governance system and the performance of the Group
in relation to environment and social key performance indicators,
and preparing the annual environmental, social and governance
report.

Going forward, the Board will continue to oversee and refine the
Group’s measures and performance on sustainable development
in order to create long-term value for all stakeholders and the
communities in which we operate.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

‘i

The Board is responsible for overseeing and managing environmental,
social and governance related issues, including formulating relevant

policies and strategies.
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Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Working Group

social and governance issues.

The working group is responsible for assisting the Board in
implementing various daily management works for environmental,
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Each functional department is responsible for implementing various
Functional measures formulated by the Group in connection with environmental,

Departments social and governance issues.
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STAKEHOLDER IDENTIFICATION AND
COMMUNICATION

In the course of its operations, the Group continues to pay
attention to the major issues that the stakeholders are concerned
about. The Group understands the expectations and needs
of its stakeholders through comprehensive and transparent
communication, and continues to improve the Group’s sustainable
development strategies and plans based on the opinions of its
stakeholders, so as to consolidate mutual trust and cooperative
relationships, jointly realise its sustainable development plans,
and create a future with the coexistence of sustainable economic
growth, friendly environment and social development.
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INFORMATION ON STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholders
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Governments
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Suppliers
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Investors

Media

Bpe

Customers
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Employees
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Community
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Possible incidental issues
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Compliance with the Listing Rules, publishing
of announcements in a timely and accurate
manner
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Compliance with laws and regulations, social
welfare and prevention of tax evasion
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Payment schedule, supply stability
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Corporate governance system, business
strategies and performance, investment return
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Corporate governance, environmental
protection and human rights
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Product/service quality, fair and reasonable
pricing, value of service, protection for the
labour force and work safety
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Rights and benefits, employee salaries,
training and development, working hours and
working environment
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Community environment, employment and
community development and social welfare
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Communication and response
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Meetings, trainings, seminars,
programmes, updating of website and
announcements
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Interactions and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information
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On-site research
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Organization and participation of
conferences, interviews, general
meetings, provision of financial reports
or business updates for investors, press
and analysts
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Posting of communications on the
company website
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Site visits and after-sale services
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Conducting team activities, training,
interviews, issue of staff manual and
internal memorandum
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Organizing community activities,
employees volunteering activities and
community welfare, sponsorship and
donations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to ensure that this report has fully covered and responded
to the key matters of concern to stakeholders, in addition to
regular communication with stakeholders, the Group has made
reference to certain resources such as the issues covered in
environmental, social and governance report of the previous
year, internal policies of the Company, industry trends and the
Materiality Map introduced by the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board, to identify issues that have potential and actual
impact on the sustainable development of the Group.

The Group has performed materiality assessment on the identified
environmental, social and governance issues based on certain
factors such as its strategies, development and objectives, and the
results are as follows:

o 28 Pk R A

F AR AR S 4 L 4 T TR 2 % ) O R i A B 2
T B2 T BT 2 B B 45 A0 B & v 4k
KEWINSZHE T FEERE g LERRA
ST 2 R A R A BB AT R DL I
K #8 &r 1¥E I 2% B & (Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board) 9 5 2 1 & 75 6 45 T & I > DA
ik il 6 A B2 [ W] RE AR R BLR T AR IR B Y 2
HZEH -

AR EAR S SR AR ER THRERED
a3 P BRI ~ Ak R VA SR AT AR AT AN
RORIR

Identified Environmental, Social and Governance Issues
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® Air and greenhouse gas emissions
® Energy consumption

® Climate change
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THE GROUP AND THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group sources the supply of grapes for its production from
Ji’An region, which is one of the major production sources in
Mainland China. Ji’An region is the Chinese Demonstration Zone
of agricultural standardised green food and the standardised
production base of green food material. It is also among the few
regions worldwide cultivating the vitis amurensis variety of grapes.
Over the years of development and enhancement, the production
model of the Group has been gradually improved with our plants
equipped with the whole set of professional production lines
of cleaning, destemming, crushing and pressing. The Group’s
industrial parks were classified as the National 4A Grade Tourism
District.

® Employees’ health and safety

® Employees’ development and training
® Supply chain management

® Product responsibility
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND LEGAL
COMPLIANCE

The Group has been in compliance with local laws and regulations
related to environmental protection in the PRC, including but not
limited to the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC ({1 3 A & I F0 [ 7K ¥5 4 B i3 75 )) , the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({3 A & 3t
0B K S5 Y4B iAE)) , the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ({1 %
N B G ] i 8 8% 4 75 e 3R BE B IR 75)) |, the Cleaner Production
Promotion Law of the PRC (<3 A [ A Bl 75 8 AR B R HE VL)) |
and the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({3 A R It
R BR B IR D))

The Group strictly complied with a series of local and national
regulations in respect of environment protection when conducting
its business activities and production process. During the Year,
the Group obtained all the necessary local and national-level
licenses, as well as a series of approval and authorization on
discharge, including but not limited to the national industrial
product production permit, the waste discharge license, the water
intake permit, the hygiene permit, and all the legal liabilities and
requirements related to corporate business and normal operation.

During the Year, the Group had complied with all the regulations
related to environment protection and there was no confirmed
violations related to environment protection that had significant
impacts on the Group.

POLLUTANT DISCHARGE

Greenhouse Gas Emission

The greenhouse gas directly emitted by the Group is mainly from
the burning fossil fuel in the production process and the use
of commercial vehicles of the Group, and the greenhouse gas
indirectly emitted is mainly produced by the use of outsourced
electricity. For the sake of afforestation, the Group had planted
trees in the production base in Tonghua City to reduce the
greenhouse gas emission.

The fossil fuel is mainly burnt by the boiler in the production
base in Tonghua City. The boiler is used in winter to maintain the
indoor temperature required for the grape treatment and brewing,
in addition to the heating and distillation in the production. At
present, the Group adopts such coal with higher combustion value
to reduce the emission of carbon dioxide (“CO,”). The production
base in Baiyanghe replaces coal with electricity in response to the
environment protection requirements of the Yantai Municipal
Government.

BB B ik W L

A A B R I RO T Rk BB A R
T > AR BRAY b2 N RILAN B K 35 3L B iR
)~ (P EENRICABI R RIS R BiRE) - (F
N R 3L B [ R 35 e BRI B IR L)~ (R
N RIEF B R A ERERE) - (R AR
B BR 5 R e ik ) S AR Bk IR R

A 45 LE P A R S T B AN AR A O AR b R R ST
— F DI 1B A0 i T R Y BR I AR Ak A o A
£ B AR B N AT T B A 6 JEL Y i 5 R B K S
AR FF A [ RF AR S — AR B PRk 7 T H e
(14 HHE T 452 HE o 72 40 b o 15 B B A (EL AN PR 2
T2 b AR E R AT A R B R TR UK FF
] R~ A AR R AT R DL I A A R 3 SR
IEW SN — RINEHEAEMER .

AR BEA S A A B NT i A BRLER DR AR B IS R I
Je o K B ER 55 (R R A R T 3 AS 4R A EOR R B
) E e 8 R A

5 B P

= 58 Pk ik

A £ ) 2 B A SR PR T B AR A R
R v A AL MR A 5 LA I S5 ) e 5 o ) D
17 i 342 PR I JU) £ 20 [ A1 o8 T B (A

Rk B 498 958 5 A S A AL T A EE 2 R 6
S o SR TR EE W A BR R RP RO im0 28
o> e e & R E NI > DL B
7] Ji B0 TR A A i B2 R o B [ B IR O T 0K A
L 92 1R 9 B LBk D — SR ALk B PR R S R A
T AR R b ) 2 R AR S T O R R BR R O
H9 LR > 28 i TE BE AR B AU R R B -



74

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - A KA

The exhaust gas is the flue gas produced during the operation of
the boiler, the main pollutants of which are nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulphur oxides (SO,) and Particulate Matter (PM). After being
filtered by equipment for desulfurization, denitrification and dust
removal, the flue gas will be emitted through a high chimney, to
ensure that the exhaust gas can meet emission standards. As the
factories of the Group are located in the northeast and northern
regions of Mainland China, there is a need for heating in winter.
In order to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases emitted
directly from the burning fuel, the Group implements different
boiler operation modes by season, namely independent operation
of gas production equipment in summer and combined operation
of heating system and gas production equipment in winter. The
dust and slag ash from chimney and dust removal equipment will
be processed according to the waste recycling process disclosed in
below section headed “Waste Recycling and Forwarding”.

Due to the alleviation of the COVID-19 pandemic, sales orders
have been gradually increased. The group’s total carbon dioxide
emissions during the Year have been increased to 3,870 tons (2021:
5,085 tons). The total CO, emission intensity increased slightly by
8.3% and did not meet the target set in the previous year. During
the Year, the total Co, emission has dropped by 24%. However,
the group's decrease in operation was comparatively significant.
Therefore the CO, emission intensity has slightly increased. The
Group is committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and
aims to achieve the goal of maintaining or reducing the total CO,
emission density in the next reporting year with the same in 2022
as a baseline based on energy conservation policies and green
measures.

Waste Recycling and Forwarding

During the process of grapes treatment and wine production, only
a small amount of innocuous wastes will be generated, mainly
including the grape stem which is generated after destemming and
crushing, the seeds and skins of grapes which are generated after
pressing as well as the solid portion which are generated during
change of tanks and ageing. To mitigate the environment issues
caused by any mislaid of waste disposal, the Group forwards the
grape stem and solid portion to the farmers in the neighbourhood
for use as fuel. Other innocuous wastes are collected by the
municipal waste treatment facilities for centralised treatment.
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% (NO) - ALY (SO, ) RERY (PM) - 4
S0 % B I e R 9 7 2

VB i » 59 SR ) R o g 8 A 4 T
TR G S R L R &
T EUE o A T 0 1 R B A R o B A 0 R
R - A S A 42 7 R () 1 90 A
30 BV B 7 4 P 0t SR 35 B S O 1
3o A T IR AR R 200 B A 0 R B i
777 3K o 8 1 K % B W B8 A7 00 0 B L0 0 >
4 ST B8 S [ R 5 ) — B 4 5
% 200 [ R R 2

A T 3 0 A A8 TR BUR T & 0 58 - o b
1% B 8 S BTS2 B K R S RS EL AR
JE A A8 R Al B PR iR ) &3,870ME (L E
T A 0 5,085MF ) o {H A8 AL ik PR R0 BE
8.3% KA EH LAFEFEMHE £ 5T
BE A > A8 A AL B PR AR N F24% > SR T AR [ 2K
G N Y oy NS A X = W (R /£ 7 3 e
JE R b T o A 45 1B By WA UL S P 5
FHH B REVRBOR kst atit B EEHU F
DA AR E S AR N R R AR R A A S0
AR AR YRR Y H AR -

V% 52 9y 1 W A D e o

AR REAEAGELNEREE
JBE W) - R A A B A AR A A A A R
VAR A Y R R A R RE o DA D B I R R
A R A I R A o J TRl B S ) T A Y
BRI 1) AL > A AR I s o ) A S 8 B A
AR B AR OB > i At 4R 2 5 2 Rl 7@
A T BT 3 B R AT A R A



o R R B A A ] SRR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - A e KA

In accordance with national regulations, the Group delivers a
small amount of hazardous waste to the designated garbage
recycler for subsequent treatment to ensure that no secondary
contamination occurs. The Group collects wastes and delivers
them to the enterprises with secondary recycling capability for
treatment, for example, the slag is disposed by the brick plants,
e-wastes and ink boxes are disposed by computer companies. Due
to high utilisation of the aforesaid garbage in PRC, the Group
provides the wastes to enterprises in need of them for free, so as
to minimise the waste emission.

Since the innocuous wastes and hazardous wastes of the Group
had been recycled and forwarded, the Group didn’t record the
total quantity of the innocuous and hazardous wastes.

RESOURCE USAGE

In compliance with the internal energy-saving measures of the
Group, energy-saving lights are adopted currently. The Group
strictly requires that all landscape lighting must be closed at 10
p.-m. every night except on holidays. The control system of the
landscape lighting is located in the main office building of the
production base in Tonghua City, which is closed by the guard on
duty. Except for the necessary facilities, duty officers will turn off
the power supply of office building, while employees need to turn
off the power supply of office equipment before leaving work, so
as to save electricity. As a result of the above measures, the Group
has maintained a relatively low level of electricity consumption
and this level does not have a significant impact on the
environment and society. Due to the alleviation of the COVID-19
pandemic in China, the demand for products has increased.
During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 910,179 (2021:
1,096,313) kWh. The Group’s main resources include coal,
diesel, gasoline and electricity. During the year, the Group’s
total energy consumption was 9,653,849 (2021: 12,765,235)
kWh, with total energy consumption The density was 66 (2021:
61) kWh/revenue per 1,000 yuan. During the Year, total energy
consumption decreased by 24% but the total energy consumption
density increased slightly to 8.2%. The Group continues to aim to
maintain or reduce total energy consumption density in the next
reporting year, based on the records of 2022.
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In terms of water consumption, the Group has not encountered
any difficulties in finding suitable water sources. The Group
uses underground water, and its wastewater mainly comes from
domestic wastewater and production wastewater, including water
used for canteen, equipment cleaning, glass bottles washing and
cleaning. With an aim to save water, the Group uses glass bottles
with high sanitary standards. After collection, the wastewater
will be purified by the Group through a sewage treatment system,
the quality of water discharged from which is designed to meet
relevant standards of Tonghua Municipal Government. Such water
is not drinkable, and will be used for garden plants irrigation, so
as to save water.

In response to environmental protection, the Group has used
recyclable materials for packaging, such as recycled and used
paper box, reducing the use of new paper box. The wine corks
of the Group are made of natural oaks. Soft oaks consist of two
layers of bark. The inner bark can be vitalized and provides the
basis for the growth of new bark each year. Therefore, the cork
used by the Group will only pick withered outer bark during
the process of picking the oaks, so as not to affect the continual
growth of trees.

Despite the increase in carbon dioxide emissions during the
Year, the packaging materials used for finished products of the
Group were reduced to 5,019 tonnes (2021: 5,730 tonnes) due
to differences in the products and specifications produced from
previous years.

In addition, following the principle of sustainable development,
the vineyards of the Group perform a fallow period of over four
months in the cold winter each year to maintain soil fertility, so as
to continually provide abundant nutrition for the grapes.
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TOTAL ENERGY CONSUMPTION il U5 4 F6 1

Type of Energy Unit

i 5 LA DA

Coal kWh 8,612,579 11,469,331
4% T B IR

Diesel fuel kWh 11,300 25,361
S T FC R

Gasoline kWh 119,791 174,230
1l T B R

Electricity kWh 910,179 1,096,313
B T L IR

Total Energy Consumption kWh 9,653,849 12,765,235
REVR AR & T FC IR

Total energy consumption density kWh/RMB’000 of income 66 61

REJR AR AE B X AR LIACR P &
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DATA OF AIR EMISSION )% SR 9k T v

Data of emissions generated from the boiler | 7€ E £ % ¥ H it 8 %

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AAY (NO,) 17 22
Sulphur oxides (SO,) AL (SO,) 17 23
Particulate Matter (PM) R (PM) 10 14

Vehicle emission data® B i BPRS

Nitrogen oxides (NO) AAY (NO,) 11.93 49.63

Sulphur oxides (SO) i AL (SO,) 0.20 0.30

Particulate Matter (PM) ALY (PM) 1.01 4.65
DATA OF GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION it 2 5FL T e W 9

Data of Greenhouse Gas emission 2 R R

Scope 1! Boiler 3,314 4,361
! o
Vehicle 36 55
HL I
Scope 22 Electricity used 519 669
i[5 22 ME
Scope 3° Employees travel for business by Air 1 -
i [#3° 1 B 3T A e i Sh 3 5
Total Total CO, emissions 3,870 5,085
M A Ak BE

Total CO, Emission Intensity
(tons of CO,/earnings in
thousands of RMB?) 0.026 0.024

B SR Bk PE U
(WAL iR T o4
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! Scope 1: The greenhouse gas emission refers to the direct emission
from fuel burning in the fixed emission sources. The figures stated
only include the coal consumption, presented in the carbon dioxide
equivalent (CO_e).

2 Scope 2: The greenhouse gas emission refers to the indirect
emission of energy. The figures stated only include the electricity
purchased from the power companies, presented in CO,e. The
calculation method is quoted from the “China Regional Grid
Baseline Emission Factors in 2019 (<2019+ 5 i I, 75 44 5L & 4% JE
JCE F)) 7 promulgated by the National Development and Reform
Commission.

g Scope 3: GHG emissions refer to other indirect emissions from
energy and are presented in carbon dioxide equivalent.

DATA OF PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

2 i [E2

! i 1 - T SR BR A T B R AR R
T 1) BB B T 2 B T A R
i DL = AL Bk B R o

Sl S SRR PR A RE R B R Dk BT 2
B o A8 5 1) R D s R RLEK) R D i A
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S % S PR s T R LR S AR R — R
w2 A PR A T o

2 i 3 - U A SRCHE PR A RE R At ] 4 P ik
T B 58T DL T AL R R R OR

SR it T L A 2 b R R

Type

Carton e 651 710
Bottle i 4,349 4,989
Cork A JE 19 31
Total BT 5,019 5,730

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group does not have a significant impact on the environment
or natural resources in its day-to-day operations. In the course
of its business, the Group has always adhered to the principle
of protecting the environment and natural resources, adhered to
environmental, social and governance policies and procedures,
adopted corresponding energy-saving policies and green
measures, and is committed to avoiding significant impact on the
environment or excessive consumption of natural resources.

BB B R AR B

A AR A F e Sl S R 5 K AR R
SRR B AR H e R — H BT
DR BR BT Je K AR TR SR AU B Sy BR O - A
B IR R AR T o BROT AR I ) B A RE TR BUR I
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CHANGE OF CLIMATE 3 Y[ o

In response to the international community’s concerns about Pl i [ % 4 & 35 54 28 (L 00 B 7 > AL 2 o
climate change, the Group has included climate change-related 515 % 1k AH B B g 4 A BR 5% ~ 4k & 145 76 R A
risks in one of the environmental, social and governance £ — > M AR 45 50165 AH B B4 5 48 2% 1T /N AL (Task
issues and made such disclosures in accordance with the Force on Cli nanci

recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures.

The Group’s analysis and response strategy for the potential ZIK% e
financial risks posed by climate change are as follows: JiE 3 S W

Potential Financial Impact

B BEMB

category )
BB .L&w l|ed|::m

Short term | Medium term | Long term
(this reporting (1 to 3 years) (4to 10 years)

period)
= (MZE+5)

] (F3|EH)

ik
(—2=f)

Acute

The loss of assets (including crops)
or disruptions to supply chain due
to extreme weather conditions
such as intensive flooding

=M

18 % KRBT 207k SN Bl i B
BEE  BEEEDMNIELDS
Physical it
risks

B

Chronic

The increase in electricity
consumption due to weather
changes such as persistent hot or
cold weather, and its subsequent
impact on operating costs

B’

AREML - LB FHER A
RLAREIFEE S8 M - #
M BE A

Policies and regulations

More stringent climate policies and
regulations (such as more stringent
electricity restrictions) may
increase compliance and operating
costs

BrREEH

B RRIR AR BUR ELE AR (0
ERKRNRES)FIEMER
Transitional | p§ 7<% & 358 S
risks

18 L B

Market

Consumers switching to products
that more actively incorporate
environmental concepts,
resulting in lower income

Lk d
HEBEEEOEREGRARRE
SHER  BHRATE

s i

Response strategy

|

Developing safety code and contingen-
cy plans to deal with extreme weather
conditions . If the current supply chain is
affected, the Group will temporarily use
other suppliers

FIE R 2RI R ESTT R UL

IMARER - BEAHEREZY
g FEEKEREOREHER

Adopting energy saving policies and
green measures to avoid excessive
consumption of natural resources

RAMEEREER R - B
RBEFERARRER

Strictly implementing emission
reduction measures (e.g. vehicle
management measures and different
boiler operation modes by season) to
maintain low emissions

A EATRE SR B AV e

(S EEEREE R EFHEET
EHREETAR) - REHEBERK
K

The Group adheres to the concept of
sustainable development and strictly
controls its product manufacturing
process, such as using recyclable
materials for packaging and using
coal with higher combustion value to
reduce emissions
SESFAHFERRES  BRIRE
ZEmEUERE - W04 R E W
BRBENREBREERSHE
LURL A BEBR
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Although the climate change risks identified by the Group will
not have a significant impact on its business, the Group will also
review the potential impact of climate change on its business
annually and adopt appropriate measures to mitigate any potential
risks.

SOCIETY

HUMAN RESOURCE OVERVIEW

The Group is committed to protecting the legal interests of all its
employees and in strict compliance with a series of labour laws of
the People’s Republic of China, such as the Employment Contract
Law of the PRC ((H# AN RILH B 55 %) 5 [F35)) , the Labour
Law of the PRC ({3 A\ AL A B 25 H 5 )) and the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC (<73 A [ 2L B0 41 & R B %)) .

During the Year, the Group focused on talent cultivation,
strengthened the development of human resource, and selected
talents according to the needs of long-term development and
the policy of “morality first”. We have introduced a system with
a series of human resource policies, including but not limited
to procedures concerning wages of employees, talent evaluation
and selection and human resource management. The Group has
established a diversified position system and promotion path for
management, professional, technical and supporting specialists
according to the latest market standards, in order to maintain
the impetus of employees. Our human resource development plan
includes following strategies:

. Promoting the selection of senior management of the
Company

C Attracting talents with great potential

. Cultivating reserve personnel

. Enhancing talent exchange

. Regularly evaluating the work performance of employees

. Maintaining fair and reasonable competition mechanism

Employees of the Group have different religious belief and
background. There is no any discrimination against gender, age,
race, religious belief or physical disability during our recruitment
process.

The Group complies with the Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour (<% - ffi H # THIE)) of the PRC. A strict
background check is adopted during the recruitment process to
avoid employing child labour inadvertently. In addition, we would
never force any employee to work by means of violence, threats, or
illegal restriction of personal freedom during the business process.
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The Group implements standard working hours for its employees,
which is no more than eight hours per day and no more than forty
hours per week. In addition to statutory holidays, employees are
also entitled to other holidays including home leave, marriage
and compassionate leave, maternity leave and paid annual leave,
with strict compliance to rules of the country. The Group also
contributes various social insurance premiums for all employees,
including unemployment, medical care, maternity, work injury,
pension, housing provident fund, etc.. Prior to joining or leaving
the Group, employees need to take health examinations organized
by the Group, in order to guarantee the personal health of
employees and a safe production environment. Concerned with
physical and mental health of employees, we actively encourage
employees to participate in sports activities to improve their
physical quality and enhance the vigor of the Group. In order
to help the employees strike a balance between work and health,
the Group also held tasting events and celebration parties for its
employees and organized sports teams to participate in events
held by governments, such as basketball matches and sports
games, helping them maintain their physical and psychological
health. However, due to the impact of the coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic, the Group did not hold cultural and sports activities to
protect the health and safety of employees and the community.
We will continue to explore opportunities, invest resources and
encourage our employees to participate in activities to maintain
their physical and psychological health.

The Group had 263 employees in total as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
318). All the employees have long-term labour contracts with the
Group. The structure is as follows:

Age group

A B AL

Total number

BB

AL B R OB YE Tl TAE® P A THR T
AE IR T KR A /\ /N TR A1 - 45 9 T AF Ry ] BRI+
/IR AT o A S [ A R ST B X B E > TR B T
3P A i E H R DL R R e B AR A
AR SE R A IR 43 BT A B T80 k36~ B
EFE-TH BEREREABEEE —RIHaR
Box o Ty Wl OR B (RN RR DA B B A 22 &2 AR
B BT A B T A TR e ik Al 4% 2 B R 42 3
AL A B0 {2 PR AR A o RAM BRI BRI TE B T 5 0 f
JF > A M 5 M B T2 B R R B RN Y R 4R
S e EE - ALEES B THERTE
SHL A 3% -7 > ELAR BE A >l R 52 15T 2 e SR
FENE R Sy AR B T Rt e (@ R B A
AR B R A B SO A K B TS B o FRAM & A A
RS A GRS 8 T 2 8{E 8 LR
7 B T A 2 R0 B i e

MRoF - ZHE+_H=+—H  A%EHALAH263
(ZFE - —FE 3L B L A E LAEAREH
BHALHE T DLF A4iH:

146 159
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Gender of employment

B 5 1k 5 o> ffi

Male employees
FrEfE 8 125 147

Female employees

LR B 138 171

Type of employment

i 5 2 2
Full time
&R 263 318
Part time
ek 0 0

Location of employment
3t [85 8) 43
PRC

rh 260 316
Hong Kong
7 3 2
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Statistics of employee turnover are set out as follows: PLR 2 0 B s st -

Employee turnover rate

& B ¥ 2k b &
Total turnover

R K

Turnover rate by gender

I 23 A

Male 19% 5%
51

Female 24% 8%
7

Turnover rate by age

AR W 73 A

<25 0% 0%
25-29 200% 33%
30-39 4% 8%
40-49 12% 3%
> 50 51% 10%

Turnover rate by region

$ 3 1 A 14 R B O N B

Mainland China 22% 6%

FH R A i

Hong Kong 0% 0%

RS

' The employee turnover rate for the reporting year was disclosed — * A AR BE R BT K LL R R 4 BRI SR B <

in accordance with the Stock Exchange’s Annex 3: Social KPI = 4L & KPIH & 5]) &% H E—HE
Reporting Guide and was different from the calculation method AR BE BRI RO FT S 5  OR ] R UG AR R A
used in the previous reporting year, so the relevant figures for P02 4 A i AR B PR IO R S E R R A o

the previous year were recalculated according to the calculation
method adopted in the current reporting year.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group complies with the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Treatment of Infectious Diseases (H & A [ 3 Al [5] {8 4L 4
Biifi%L)) , the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases ({H' % A R 3t 3 Bk 2 9% D5 6 15))
the Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of Labour
Protection Articles (45 ) B & i i B B & JE ML £ )) and the
Regulations Concerning the Labour Protection of Female Staff
and Workers (CZ B T4 B RFEHBIED) . In order to enhance
occupational safety, improve working conditions, safeguard
employee’s personal interests and ensure protection of life and
property, the Group has formulated its internal production safety
regulations. The Group has been committed to the principle of “Safety
First, Prevention is a Priority” which requires that our productions
should meet the safety requirements, with an aim to implementing
safe production, sophisticated management and maintaining a
clean and hygienic production site. Inter-departmental meetings
will be held regularly to review the safety and efficiency of work
routines, remind employees of each department to keep the office
clean and tidy, and always bear in mind the safe production during
work.

Interviewees shall provide relevant qualification certificates when
recruited for special positions. The Group requires that employees
whose positions are exposed to occupational hazards should
accept a complete set of responsibility system for occupational
diseases prevention, and support the management measures for
the prevention of occupational diseases. All the employees of the
Group shall take annual health examination as well as health and
safety trainings, and a record of their examination results shall be
kept to demonstrate the importance we place on the knowledge on
occupational health of employees as a whole. The Group requires
that the production and technical workers should be health
certificate holders before commencement of work. In addition,
the Group has taken several measures to prevent accidents, which
require personnel engaged in machinery repair and maintenance
to use gloves and wear a series of safety equipment in machinery
maintenance, and to pay attention to managing and monitoring
plants and offering safety management and education for
employees. During the year, the Group conducted management
system and corporate culture training, safety production and
fire safety training and safety production and safety education
knowledge training, and held occupational health office meetings
to publicize and implement relevant national laws and regulations,
and do a good job in occupational health supervision and
inspection.

The Group has not experienced any work-related injuries or
fatalities in the past three years, including the current year.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group pays great attention to personnel trainings. Therefore,
the Group formulates a comprehensive training program every
year to enhance the professional knowledge and ethics of the
staff, and help them produce high-quality wine products through
the provision of education and training on professional ethics and
relevant rules and regulations. According to the needs of different
positions, the training plan of the Group in the Year covered
wine knowledge, company management system, corporate culture,
safe production, fire safety and production technology. The
trainings on professional knowledge have effectively enhanced the
employees’ detailed understanding of the production process, the
Company’s management culture and safety measures, etc. In order
to guarantee product quality, the Group strengthens the training
on the professional knowledge and technology for the personnel
in the key production positions, so that employees can possess
sufficient knowledge and corresponding supporting capability.

During the Year, the Group held symposiums in order to create
closer relationship between the enterprise and employees, superiors
and subordinates, and among employees themselves, offer
opportunities for employees to voice their opinions, and enhance
the sense of belonging of employees through communication.
During the Year, the average hours of training of each male
employee and female employee are 0.14 hours (2021: 5.76 hours)
and 0.25 hours (2021: 3.44 hours), respectively. During the year,
total number of staff participated the Group’s in-house training
amounted to 26 (2021: 209), which was 10% of the Group’s total
employees. The group of staff participating. During the year, 13
staff from entry-level posts (50 per cent of trainees) and 13 from
mid-and high-level positions (50 per cent of trainees) participated
in the training. The total number of training hours is 52 hours.
During the year, junior staff received an average of 0.11 hours of
training, while mid-level and senior staff received an average of 0.78
hours.
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Details of the training during the year are as follows: RN BRI FEE AR

% of total employees
i B A\ % i 4808 B N BA o e
Total number of staff trained 26 10%
ST FEUN

Staff Training
B TH:I

Gender
g il
No. of staff % of trained employees
Male 9 35%
F 1
Female 17 65%
E g
Type of employees
1 B 28 1
% of trained employees
=P HEREINREE NEHE T
Junior grade 13 50%
P E T
Middle and Senior Grade 13 50%
o g K g B T
Training hours
35 9l Ry
Total number of hours (hours) 52
R (/)
Average training time (hours) 0.20

-39 32 Il E B (/)

Average trained time (by gender)

F 35 2 56 B A e 8 ()

Male (hour) 0.14
FBAE (/)
Female (hour) 0.25
Lt (/)

Average trained time (by employees category)

F 3 & 58 B I 9 (08 E R )

Junior grade (hour) 0.11
W B T (/)
Middle & Senior grade (hour) 0.78

8 % % B T (/B
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to protecting the human rights of
employees in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations.
It is forbidden to employ forced labour and child labour,
and candidates are required to provide certificate of identity,
professional certificate and the severance certificate issued by
former employer for identity verification during the recruitment.

If the Company is found to employ child labour or forced labour
in violation of regulations, the Company will immediately
terminate the labour contract, investigate into the reasons and
liabilities, and impose due punishments on faulty employees.
During the Year, the Group had no incidents of forced labour or
child labour related-employment.

OPERATION PRACTICE

PRODUCT AND SERVICE

The Group is committed to researching, developing and launching
diversified new products. In order to satisfy different needs of
customers, the Group has launched grape wines of different prices
and levels. In terms of the sales mode, the Group continues to
depend on the traditional distribution channel, while proactively
develops and expands the online consumption platform. Since
2016, it has begun to sell grape wine products online to give full
play to the market potential of the e-commerce model, develop
diversified distribution channels, and expand the sales scope.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group always aims to provide high-quality products to its
customers. In order to manage the potential risks arising from
our suppliers, before entering into contracts with them, the Group
will carry out specific risk analysis. In addition to the quality
of goods, the Group also focuses on whether there are negative
reports on the environmental and social performance of our
suppliers. If any relevant reports are found, the Group will inquire
relevant suppliers, submit the review proposals to the supplier,
and consider whether there is any need for replacement for new
suppliers. It will also dispatch management staff to carry out strict
investigation in the production base of the supplier, and randomly
inspect documents of the supplier such as written records, in order
to guarantee each supplier can satisfy the conditions stipulated
by the Group prior to the signing of contracts. The management
staff of the Group will make a detailed evaluation on the products
and risks of its suppliers once more at least one month prior to
the expiry of the contracts to determine whether to renew the
cooperative relationship.
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As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of 37 suppliers. All are
from the PRC.

STRICT PRODUCTION PROCESS

The Group owns a full set of professional production line
and a professional winemaking management team to provide
comprehensive quality instruction and control on each bottle of
wine produced. The Group has obtained Food Production License
and QS Certificate. From the first process of wine manufacturing,
the grapes that we use are hand-picked and selected according to
a high-standard requirement. With the professional instruction
of winemakers and our advanced equipment, the grapes are
gone through a number of general processes such as washing,
stem removing, squashing, canning, temperature-controlled
fermentation, base wine ageing, base wine adjustment, laboratory
test, sterilization, bottling, packing, finished products, storage,
transportation and so on and finally become wine in which we are
fully confident.

During the Year, there were no return of products of the Group
that had been sold or delivered due to safety and health problems,
or receipt of any complaints on products and services.

Emphasis on Quality

The Group attaches great importance to its product quality with
strict quality management system in place and has been awarded
ISO9001 Quality Management System Certification. The mountain
grapes cultivated and the mountain grape wine produced in the
Group’s organic grape production base in Ji’an City has obtained
GB/T19630.1-2011 Organic Products (Part I: Production)
Certification and GB/T19630.2-2011 Organic Products (Part II:
Processing) Certification, and also obtained GB/T19630.3-2011
Organic Products (Part III: Identification and Sales) Certification
and GB/T19630.4-2011 Organic Products (Part IV: Management
System) Certification. At the same time, certain wines of the
Group have been awarded certifications by China Green Food
Development Center, including Mountain Grape Wine, Dry Wine,
Ice Wine, Hong Full Juice Mountain Grape Wine and Original
and Wild Mountain Grape Wine, which are in line with the Green
Product-Class A Standards and have been recognised as Green
Food-Class A Products. The Group’s great efforts on quality
control was evident by the above achievements.
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To ensure the stability of the Group’s production supply, the
departments of sales, production and supply will hold meetings
to formulate production plan before mass production. For the
grapes cultivated in vineyard, before procurement period of
each year, inspectors from the Group will first check the grape
maturity, and then complete the glucose checklist to confirm
whether they are qualified for brewing. When the squeezed grapes
are transported to production workshops, inspectors will perform
quality test on the grapes first, and then they will carry out sugar
content detection occasionally to ensure the quality of grape juice.
Meanwhile, winemakers will adjust the brewing formula according
to the sugar content of grape juice to guarantee the consistent
quality of all the finished products. In addition, the grape juice
outsourced by the Group will be carried out testing inspection by
technical department, and then delivered to manufacturing site
after passing the inspection.

Production will not commence unless the samples taken by the
Group’s inspectors from the raw materials purchased and delivered
to the workshop have passed the physical and chemical indicators
test in laboratory. Unqualified raw materials will be taken out and
returned to suppliers. Throughout the whole production process,
inspectors will sample and test the product in progress or finished
product in warehouse irregularly, and record the inspection results
to ensure the quality of the wines produced meet the standards.

Emphasis on Safety

The Group has formulated a management system in various
aspects such as personnel, equipment, raw materials, packaging
materials, purchase inspection, product technical standards,
detection standards and production environment control, and
required the personnel of relevant departments to strictly comply
with and implement relevant guidelines.

The production process of the Group complies with the
Regulation on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of
the PRC (R EE N R ILANE & & & 2 H MR F1)) . Tt is required
that the production sites should keep clean at all time to ensure
food safety. Raw materials shall be processed according to the
requirements of health standards and containers of raw materials
shall be cleaned regularly to prevent contamination. The Group
has set stringent requirements for workers to enter production
sites. Before entering the production sites, workers are required
to conduct hand disinfection and pass the footbath pool; after
entering the production sites, workers are required to wear neat
work clothes, pants and hats, and uniforms shall be cleaned
regularly. Tools, production equipment and containers shall also
be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected both before and after use.
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Emphasis on Reputation

The Group has been committed to building a long-term
relationship of mutual trust with our customers. Therefore,
all the Group’s employees have been required to enter into a
confidentiality agreement, covenanting that they will keep and
handle the confidential information of customers with due care
without disclosing confidential information to third parties.
At the same time, in order to further safeguard our customers’
information, the Group requires that outsiders and vehicles must
be registered to reduce the leak risk of the assets of customers
and the Company.

As a responsible enterprise and partner, the Group strictly
complies with the process of the existing Finished Goods
Inventory Management (< f & & #)) with an aim to sell
products in the best condition through a prudent storage
method. Products shall be stored by categories and managed on a
quantitative basis. In addition, products should be inspected and
maintained on a daily or regular basis according to their varieties,
characteristics and storage conditions, including recording
temperature, humidity and other indicators in the warehouse to
prevent products from getting deteriorated, moldy, expired or
damaged. The Group will conduct final check prior to delivery to
ensure that products sold pass the quality management test.

Furthermore, the Group has also developed a complete return
process. If quality problems are identified in raw materials or
packaging materials, such materials will be immediately returned
to suppliers as the Group refuses to use substandard materials.
Meanwhile, the Group accepts products that need to be returned
due to quality problems so as to provide quality services to
customers.

Emphasis on Management

To improve the management of the Group, we regularly conduct
comprehensive review on corporate environmental sanitation and
disciplines. If any non-compliance is identified in the process of
review, the relevant issues will be reported to the corresponding
department’s manager for handling timely. Besides, the Group
maintains frequent communication with its staff. All working
procedures in the Group shall be performed with law and rule
being abided by, any violation being investigated into with basis
and solution to resort to, in order to improve the service quality.
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In terms of sales of products, the Group carefully chooses
distributors by evaluating their marketing approaches and
creditworthiness, and only cooperates with the most appropriate
ones after prudent consideration. By managing and monitoring
the performance of our distributors, the Group ensures that
customers are provided with quality services.

Pursuant to the Advertising Law of the PRC ({1 #& A R I 5] &
#¥£)) and other laws and regulations, the Group carries out strict
review procedures on the policies and regulation about advertising
and labeling and conducts cross-checking of electronic files with
cooperation partners, in order to ensure that the public can have a
good and correct understanding of the product information.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group strictly adheres to the Criminal Law of the PRC
(e NRALFIEIT %)) , the Anti-Money Laundering Law of
the PRC (< % A B 4L B 2 ¥ 88 7%:)) and the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (B IE i B 5 451)) of Hong Kong. Our staff
is prohibited from participating in any illegal behaviors by taking
advantage of their positions, including but not limited to bribery,
fraud, and illegally obtaining or accepting properties from others.

The Group also severely cracks down on any money laundering
activities conducted through public account or private account,
in order to prevent any corruption or bribery within the Group.
If any suspected corruption case is found, employees may report
to the relevant managers of the Group or the local competent
authority via phone, email, letters and other means.

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the potential risk of
corruption was not high, so no relevant training was held during
the Year. The Group will arrange anti-corruption training for
directors and staff when necessary according to actual needs.

During the Year, there were no lawsuits or allegations of
corruption involving the Group or its employees.

CHARITY CAMPAIGNS

In the past, the Group organised a volunteer group to visit a
welfare home in Tonghua City to care and encourage children in
the welfare home by donating books, fruits and donations. We
deeply acknowledge the importance of giving back to the society
and spare no effort in providing help to the community. During
the Year, due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in order
to protect the health and safety of employees and the society, the
Group did not hold social welfare activities. We will continue to
explore opportunities, dedicate resources and encourage employees
to participate in community activities.
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General Disclosure

— M R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

A B SR I i 2 SR B K B s BN B R

B AR E B I B S Y

Environmental protection and
legal compliance, Pollutant
discharge

BRI O B ik 5 B 15 e B
jid

Indirect (Scope 2) Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Density
HH (R KaeIR M (HE2)
T 2 S8 B i

(a) BUR S
(b)  ESFEEAT AR B B AR B
(&R
Al.l The types of emissions and Pollutant discharge, Data of air
respective emission data emission
Be it 8 B AR B P A R 15 3 490 B > B SR B TR
Al2 Direct (Scope 1) and Energy Data of greenhouse gas emission

1 % 5 PR




Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
BH B 2 1 4
(KPI)

ESG Report
CRBE- A AR )

Disclosure Section

1 9% 7 i

Notes
i sk

A. Environmental

A BB

Al3 Total hazardous waste produced Waste recycling and forwarding
EEAERREEE Jo% 5 9y [ S ) R e

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste Waste recycling and forwarding
produced JoE 3 T R P o
P E AR

AlS Describe the emission targets set Greenhouse gas emission
and the steps taken to achieve them | i % B PE i
AR T RT SL A R H R B 253 3] | Resource usage
fa 48 H AR BT B U 2 R R

Al.6 Description of how hazardous and | Waste recycling and forwarding
non-hazardous wastes are handled, | JB§ 347 [0 e B F % i g

reduction initiatives and results
achieved

kR A E R EREEYN
T~ WA AR R I AR R




Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
BH B
(KPI)

ESG Report
CRBE- A& AR )

Disclosure Section

1 9% 7 i

Notes
fli sk

A. Environmental

A BB

A2: Use of Resources

JE T A2 R

General Disclosure

— M B

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including

energy, water and other raw materials.

AR B (R A R IR~ 7K B A SRR ) F B o

Resource usage

R

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect total energy | Resource usage
consumption by type B
F UL 2 10 e R B TR
G
A22 Water consumption in total and N/A The Group has obtained the
intensity N State’s permit(s) for water intake
HFEK B K and sewage discharge which
stipulate the amount of water
that can be extracted for usage.
A% B [ LIRS R 6 T 3 R R K A
A I 8 T ] 2 A ) BROK B 75
AKPERGER & P RUE THUKE
A23 Describe the energy efficiency Resource usage
targets set and the steps taken to R A
achieve them
8420 T 5T 32 B4 RE R FH 8045 B AR B
TRIH 20 B}
A2.4 Description of whether there is any | Resource usage

issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency targets
established and the steps taken to
achieve them

BB




Key Performance

Indicators (KPI)

PR BEEE | ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (B & REREA) o g T 0 i ik
A. Environmental

A BEE

A2.5 Total packaging material used for Data of packaging materials used

finished products and the portion
per production unit

SR ih BT P % R B R B A A
EE RO A

by finished products
SR i B B R R

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JET A3 : BRI KRB

General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.

R AT 3B 3R 5 T R AR R R R B B

Environment and natural
resources

BRI R R IAE R

A3.1 Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage
them

i 0 S5 0 B B I R AR IR Y
HRHE RO R A BB
T8

Environment and natural
resources

BRI R K IRE

A4: Climate Change
JE 1 A4 FAREEAL

General Disclosure

— M R

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

T Ko JRE S L 8 K vl AR € B BT AR AR B R
58 A B 25 L ) BORE

Change of climate

EX03 2

A4l

Description of the significant
climate-related issues which have
- impa ‘those which may

ﬂ he act

Change of climate

SR




Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
PR | ESG Report
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=

Disclosure Section

1 9% 7 i

Notes
fli sk

B. Social
B.i#&

B1: Employment
JE I B1 : 1R

General Disclosure

— B R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

A T % 80 ~ AR R T AR R R P4

g 2ol - A LR A R 8 RAR Y

(a) Bk &

(b)  BEST AT A O B B S
i) &R o

Human resource overview

AT BN

Bl.1 Total workforce by gender,
employment type, age group and
geographical region

Fe P~ AR AR~ A i AR st
[ 31 7 ) R 48

Human resource overview

AT BN

Bl1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region
e I ~ A B AL B 3 e ) £ 1R
o i % e 2

Human resource overview

AT BB




Key Performance
Indicators (KPI)
PR A | ESG Report

(KPI) (BB G RERBA)

Disclosure Section

1 9% 7 i

Notes
i sk

B. Social
B.i#&

B2: Health and Safety
& TH B2 - f R Bl A2 4

General Disclosure

— R R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to provision of a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

A B PR A % 2 TR R B % DR A A0 SR e S i 1) -

Health and safety
il e B 4 2

(a)  BUK: R
(b)  HESFEEAT A B R A B S
i) R o

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and safety
fatalities ik FfE Bl %2 4
[ LA B AR T A8 T N L 3

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and safety
B THE% T/ A il e B 27 2

B2.3 Description of occupational health | Health and safety
and safety measures adopted, and | fH Bl % 4

how they are implemented and
monitored

i 2 T R A A 2 (R B
T » DA B A B AT B B 4 0y i
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Indicators (KPI)
PR | ESG Report

(KPI) (R G LB BB

Disclosure Section

1 % 5 B

Notes
fli sk

B. Social
B.i#&

B3: Development and Training

J& T B3 : B & KKl

General Disclosure

— B R

Policies on improving employees’” knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

A BB TR B AT AR B R0 e B Y R - A
2t 15 3 ) o

Development and training

BRI

B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category
SRR K 08 BT 3123 10 32 91 8 B
Pl

Development and training

B KA

B3.2 Average training hours completed
per employee by gender and
employee category

ek Rl AR B BT B 2 B4 R A
52 32 Al 1 F 2 15

Development and training

B L




Key Performance

Indicators (KPI)

S IEEE | ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) (R~ g RERHRE) 15 % 1 6 iRk
B. Social

B. i &

B4: Labour Standards

JE T B4 - 55 THEH

General Disclosure

— JBCd 2R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Labour standards

B THER

A BB 1 B 25 R

(@ HOR: R

(b)  BESFEEAT A O B A B LA

iR -

B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour standards
employment practices to avoid B TR
child and forced labour
4 20 A ot 418 WAL 091 ) 4 s DA e e
TR g 45 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to Labour standards

eliminate such practices when
discovered

84 20 7E % B LIV DL IR R A R A
DLIT PR BRI 25 B

% THERI
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Indicators (KPI)
PR | ESG Report
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Disclosure Section
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Notes
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B. Social
B.#: &

BS: Supply Chain Management
J&@ T BS - e o A HE

General Disclosure

— M

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

B LM B 1) R 5 AL L B UK

Supply chain management

e g 1

B5.1 Number of suppliers by Supply chain management All suppliers are from mainland
geographical region 4 R A B China.
iz 3t [ ) 43 1 A48 A i 8 i A R R 3 e R ot 3 fRE
o
B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply chain management

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

i 2 A B SR 36 AR 491 )
AT A B O E R B H - LR
A B B4 I B T

kg 2

B5.3 Describe practices for identifying
environmental and social risks at
every step of the supply chain, as
well as relevant enforcement and
monitoring methods

8470 A ok P A AR 1 B 6 Y 3R
B8 R AL e R e 6 1L - DA SRR B
(G339

Supply chain management

8 e g 7

B5.4 Describe practices in selecting
suppliers to promote the use of
green products and services, as
well as related implementation and

Supply chain management

e g A 2L
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PR A | ESG Report
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Disclosure Section

1 9% 7 i

Notes
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B. Social
B.i#&

B6: Product Responsibility
J& T B6 : 7 fi F AT

General Disclosure

— i

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

A TR BT SR AR RS B e R B 2 2 B B

LB B LD R A RO TR B

Operation practice
B

(@)  BUOK: R
(b)  ESFEEATAH B B B A AR
B R o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold Operation practice

or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons

OB RE MNP E T2
e 38l 11 288 [e WA H) 4 T

BEE

B6.2 Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

MR B I 7 o B AR S 9 45 SR B H LA
P33 winS

Operation practice

HEE




Key Performance

Indicators (KPI) o
PG BEEE | ESG Report Disclosure Section Notes
(KPI) CRE & RAEREAE) g fii ik
B. Social
B. it
B6.3 Description of practices relating N/A The Group mainly engages in
to observing and protecting N3 the production of wine products

intellectual property rights
i gt 5 A A R o A0 A R
1 51

without any intellectual property
rights under management.

A S T DA R o A T R

A B R
B6.4 Description of quality assurance Operation practice
process and recall procedures B A )
14 20 A R I o R KRR
B6.5 Description of consumer data Operation practice

protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored

i 20 3 e RO B % FL R BUK >
DA B AR BRAT B B 55 07 1

BEE
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Notes
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B. Social
B.i#&

B7: Anti-corruption

JE®BT : R &5

General Disclosure

— R R

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.

A BB I R T Bk PR R

(a)  BUK: R

(b)  HESFEEAT A B R A B S
i) R o

Anti-corruption

R A5

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and
outcomes of the cases

7 B 0 A0 3 47 N S AR B 4R
ff B 45 £ A s R AR BOE R
EE/SES

Anti-corruption
R

B7.2 Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and

monitored
Ful 3t By A 45 il B SRR AR T > DA B AH
BAHLAT I B ik

Anti-corruption

RETS
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Notes
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B. Social
B.i#&

B8: Community Investment

& T B8 : At [ 4% &

General Disclosure

— R R

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

A B LAAL I 2 B T i B 0 T A AL [ 7 T R LR
505 By & 5 8 AL R R 45 09 B

Charity campaigns
Nt

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Charity campaigns
R E R AR Nt

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus | Charity campaigns
area N
TE B R HRE BT E) T AR
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CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B S A% B o

ol

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA TONTINE WINES
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 111 to 184, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

INVENTORIES

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of inventories for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of inventories of approximately RMB170,332,000 as at
31 December 2022 and write off of inventories of approximately
RMB7,265,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on ordering and holding
of inventories;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing the marketability of the inventories;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventories;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the inventories; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the inventories.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for inventories is
supported by the available evidence.

I B 5 e 2 -
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of RMBI141,228,000
and RMB36,986,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022 and
the provision for impairment losses on the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately RMB7,776,000
and RMB2,036,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2022 are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures for those using value-in-use calculations
included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates); and

- Checking impairment data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are supported by the

available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s

website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-
views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
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2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi 5E AR ¥ T oo PN e
Revenue & 7 146,118 208,371
Cost of sales 8B A (110,244) (140,976)
Gross profit E A 35,874 67,395
Other income, gains and losses HAb A~ diess K48 9 4,270 3,707
Selling and distribution expenses BB By 8 B 2 (33,698) (15,812)
Administrative and other operating AT 1B B o Ath 58 75 B 5C
expenses (36,100) (39,159)
Impairment loss on property, plant and UE R G &SRR N i
equipment (7,776) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 55T ) REE L (LA 1 (2,036) =
Change in fair value of biological assets WG E T B ) 19 12,049 4,299
Change in fair value of convertible bonds  AJ # i fif % A 28 - % B 28 - (724)
Share-based payments DR 03 70 5 B8 19 £S5 3K 30 = (2,334)
Finance costs Rl & LA 10 137 (156)
(Loss)/profit before tax bR BinT (EIE) Bl (27,554) 17,216
Income tax expense T3 B 32 11 = =
Total comprehensive (expense)/income ENEE (X)W
for the year ikl 12 (27,554) 17,216
Total comprehensive (expense)/income WA 4 9 22T (B ) 7
for the year attributable to: W 4 A
Owners of the Company Ao aElHEA N (26,403) 11,336
Non-controlling interests I FE BEHE 25 1,151) 5,880
(27,554) 17,216
(Loss)/earnings per share ik (EiE) B8R 16
Basic (RMB cents) HA (NRH) (0.90) 0.55

diluted (RMB cents)

(RIS

0.47



2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R 5k ANR¥F ANR¥F ot
Non-current assets I i By B s
Property, plant and equipment L ESY SN ] 17 141,228 137,039
Right-of-use assets i FH B & 18 36,986 41,974
Biological assets A W) 19 43,703 33,461
Prepayments TE AT R IA 22 1,600 4,450
223,517 216,924
Current assets i B e
Inventories 78 20 170,332 210,314
Trade receivables B 5 eI 3K 21 132,485 118,741
Other receivables, deposits and H A R ORI e K
prepayments FEAT KA 22 4,296 8,443
Current tax recoverable BIVHA AT i (5] B IE 5,551 5,551
Bank and cash balances SRAT I Bl 4 & 23 70,893 85,866
383,557 428,915
Current liabilities i B £
Trade payables B 5y AT B 24 2,221 17,985
Other payables and accruals HCAth BB AS) R TE % E T 25 19,972 30,552
Amount due to a substantial shareholder M — 4% 32 B ik o 3k JE 26 6,301 5,929
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder M Ik 4% it I H R IH 26 = 1,089
Lease liabilities & A fE 27 754 794
Current tax liabilities B HA B TH & 9,961 9,961
39,209 66,310
Net current assets it B & A A 344,348 362,605
Total assets less current liabilities HA U 7 T B £ 579,529

567,865

e




2022

fnt- Sastant: R4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3 AR¥T o PN e
Non-current liabilities IE Wi B £ 1K
Lease liabilities 1% A 1K 27 159 786
NET ASSETS A 567,706 578,743
Capital and reserves B A B ik
Share capital A 29 25,216 22,748
Reserves bt 458,418 470,772
Equity attributable to owners of AN IR N AL A A
the Company 483,634 493,520
Non-controlling interests I FE B HE 45 84,072 85,223
TOTAL EQUITY HE £ 4878 567,706 578,743

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 184 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Guangyuan Zhang Hebin
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o 131k 7

#HH HH

FEEN X ZFEHAH=+HHHEX
PERET B 111 B 184 EH W45 MBS 56 -

DAY N AW E S
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - —4F+_H =+ —H L4

Share Non-
Share Share Special Statutory options Other ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
Bk RGEE RRBE RERA BRERE  RRRE  RHEH it RS it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFE  ARMTE  AR¥TE  AR¥TT  ARWTE  ARETT  AR%Tx AREFn  ARETxX  ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mzka) (Hstb)
At [ January 2021 REZZ—4—H—H 17,624 910,541 86,360 135,088 4617 - (736,882) 417,348 77,545 494,893
Total comprehensive income for 42 E i A5
the year - - - - - - 11,336 11,336 5,880 17,216
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13) WM E Al (HzE13) 1,857 15,4 - - - 13,143 - 30,04 1,798 2,00
Convertible bonds converted (note 28) H#it AT 75 (H:128) 3,61 9,011 - = - - - 218 - 0.0
Share option lapsed (note 30) BB (HE3E30) = - - - (4,617) - 4617 = = =
Share option granted (note 30) BRER (R0 - - - - 2334 - - 2334 S 2334
Transfer to statutory reserves HEREEE R - - = 684 - = (684) 3 = =
At Decenber 202 ROBS-EPCASE-R M 9T %30 IS LM L4 (NG S0 s i
At [ January 2022 R-Z-"%-H—H 2,748 954,776 86,360 135,12 2,334 13,143 (721,613) 493,520 85,3 578,143
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ERAH (HL) /REEH
income for the year - - - - - - (26,403) (26,403) (1,151) (27,554)
Consideration shares allotted and ~ FL % R 3172 LB MR
issued (note 13) (W3t) 816 6,691 - - - (7,507) - - - -
Share option exercised (note 30) B ATIEBEICHE (Jf3k30) 1,652 17,199 - - (2,334) - - 16,517 = 16,517
At 31 December 2022 RoF=f
TZAZ+-H 25216 978,666 86,360 135,712 - 5,636 (748,016) 483,634 84,072 567,706
Notes: B 5
(a) Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value  (a) o A ARt AR A8 AR N W I AE S 2S5 BT
of the shares of the Company issued and the aggregate of the R ) (THE 3 T 1) b Tl iy 2oy o 4R 1 28
nominal value of the issued shares and the share premium of the I HEAT A 25 8 A IR > A0 |) & 8847 e 4 Y T (B
holding company for which the shares of the Company have been B e 8 W) o SR 4 AR A WD B AT I Y E
issued in exchange upon a corporate reorganisation to rationalise AT e 3 T {1 B O 19 Vi 55 T 5 AR 2 ) 1 25 o
the group structure prior to listing of the Company’s share on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).
(b) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the  (b) WP N RICHE ([ ]) A REREER

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are
required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including enterprise
expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of appropriations
from its net profit (based on the PRC statutory financial
statements of the subsidiaries) but before dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
board of directors of the subsidiaries. The board of directors
shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated based on the
profitability of each subsidiary each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities. The general reserve fund may be used to
offset accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the
subsidiaries subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

o I B Ja 2 ] 2O O 4B i H sl B S 2 R T RY
FORI (2 778 B 28 w1 9 o 2R 32 72 B 5 4 3R 1)
o R 3 R (B A 2 Bl e 4 T — iR A A
Heg) AF 434 o

Jr A7 3] <5 1 £ 3 o B A D R EE ZE B
At o 3 3 ZE AR R 45 4F 4% I8 2> =) A9 &2 A
AE 3 Tl R S T 8 A A A

A 3 f A L < AT S A o R PR % R B B
35 A% » e ZE0 28 A B o I R ot o o — e £ £
L < FT P S 1K B B 2 R B 2 s 1 B0
R M AR > M ZHURE A7 B o (B SR 4 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F -4+ _H =+ —H L4

o R R B A A ] SRR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2022 2021
—B®-C4E B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ETE ANBR#T 0
Cash flows from operating activities KB B) P A B 4 &
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBiAT (E51) i Al (27,554) 17,216
Adjustments for: B 0 IE B A S
Interest income FLE A (244) (213)
Finance costs Rl & B A 137 156
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment S ERY NS R 15,683 14,937
Gain on disposal of property, plant and Y - S TR
equipment and right-of-use assets DL R A HE 2 Y i A (3,723) (23)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets o FH R 7 3,159 2,072
Impairment loss on property, plant and LUE NN O & R E
equipment 7,776 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o7 RE & 7 W (E s 4R 2,036 =
Write-off of inventories e & 7,265 =
Share-based payments DR A5y 7oy B 1) A5 K - 2,334
Gain on bargain purchase EAEEIe T - (3,932)
Loss allowances for trade receivables 2 5 RENT IR 3K 2 s 18 2,348 975
Change in fair value of biological assets ’T:% I N T {E A2 B (12,049) (4,299)
Change in fair value of convertible bonds AT A S A P S ) — 724
Operating cash flows before working capital A s W T Y
changes KeB g (5,166) 29,947
Change in biological assets A W) A (3,953) (1,533)
Change in inventories FHEEE) 38,477 29,394
Change in trade receivables & 5 ME IR 3k 8 &) (16,092) (53,990)
Change in other receivables, deposits and At JEE T T~ 4 T
prepayments TE A 3CIE A 8 6,047 (1,739)
Change in trade payables B 5y A W 3 5 (15,764) 12,642
Change in other payables and accruals At J8 AT K TH K
e 2 55 ) (10,580) 6,981
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEWNH (M)
operating activities e 45 B 4 5 A (7,031) 21,702
Cash flows from investing activities WE BN B SRR
Purchases of property, plant and equipment Wi B 2 - R B kM (23,399) (6,152)
Interest received EALE PSS 244 213
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and B - MR R
equipment T 5 3K H 2,045 26
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries i % [t J& 2 7] B ¥ B & A = 1
Net cash used in investing activities % 0 By i A B 4 iR (21,110) (5.912)
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2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWF o ANR¥T T
Cash flows from financing activities il 5 95 B T A5 M B U B
Advance from a substantial shareholder R K 372 2,160
(Repayment to)/advance from non-controlling (R T RERBRER)
shareholder I 72 8 e TR AR (1,089) 16
Repayment of lease liabilities BB AR (2,632) (1,744)
Net proceeds from exercise of share options A7 (1 05 3 HEE Jor 5 3 T VR 16,517 =
Net proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BEAT O] M A 5 T A AR R AR = 32,197
Net cash generated from financing activities il 0 Y A5 B A R A 13,168 32,629
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents & KR E&%EW (W)
B4 i (14,973) 48,419
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year A B4 K B4 S ) 85,866 37,447
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERMEE R E&SEY 70,893 85,866
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBEEHD 5N
Bank and cash balances SRAT S Bl 4 & ik 70,893 85,866
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Tontine Wines Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a public limited Company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the
Group. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2022. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

BEZZ- A=+ —HIEFE

o B R A B R A ] R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AR EEBARAR ([ARAF])
5y — KR A 5 EE GRS BT A R
8w H A i E U B G 38 5 T A R A
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Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
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R S kR DLAS 8 Y T RE B N IR
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AHE AR EREE T
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e
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BUJSIf 48 4> A 4R ) 2 @t BUR - AR ARG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of biological assets which are carried at their
fair values less costs to sell which are carried at their fair
values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise the judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

K it BoR

IS5 B T 5 R TS AR o s R A
O B REA B T s s i A Y J LA R B 52
Jiv w8 25 b i AR R A s O m AR (T2 )
o o1l 1) AR5 H) 28 FH i 2% i A 4

Wb A A B 5 3R L 1 R S A 1
B Sl AE B A 1 20 (B R B A W R E
o F(E B B 1 85 45 AR T A BT

A8 7 i T 5 S Y U A A S
RER AT EEZ B LAl FE - IR 2R E
SETE R A& FTECROR AR AR R e 9
B SGEEMBEREAERE B BR
FeAtiwt 2 20 R W RE4 B -

i R AR S MBS IRR T B E e
FEECRHESIT -

AaMkH

B B AR AL AE AR ) K LK B A A
WE+ A=+ H LR B R E - B
NEIFE A R T o E AR ER %
HNEAZHEEETEN M BARE
3385 2t FC T A 0 HE ) R 2B A S (] R R
SUJ A S5 T 42 1) 2 P o A SR T P B A
J1 8T HH A A B SRR (RDOR R R
TR ] R SE S ) R R A B R
BEAT(EES] -

TE S Al 422 1 HE IR - A 4R [ 6 25 HL VR AE 42
SEE DA S oAt N 5 A B0 TR B SR AE S LA
fift AE LR 17 A T o TE R A N REERE
ATV B RERY B DL > 07 & 5 i L
A o

Wi JB8 2 A1 1 HG A MR RS T AR 4R O H
AR A AMR > Sl P i HEA AR R TAR
N
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&E_-F - “4F+_H =+ —H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - CONTINUED
CONSOLIDATION - CONTINUED
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of total comprehensive income or expense
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

o R R B A A ] SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION -

CONTINUED

(b)

()

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements — continued

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Group’s presentation currency are
translated into the Group’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. wAAEH
POLICIES - CONTINUED

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W3k ~ B Bk

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less W~ W IE B DAL (0 2 B w8
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. KA 4R 51 U -

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying AR WA AE BL 3% TH B A B Y R 2R 4R s
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, A 2 AR AT RE R AAS 4R F > T a% T H A BE
only when it is probable that future economic benefits A]BERH & IRE - 7 RN A R T (B S RE R
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the ST E E (&) o i A H A4S
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs R AR A A A A AR ) 0 TR 8 2 TR R R o

and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated W3~ R B T 7 FAG wH AT AR
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual PR DAl 8 L A ek R R B (E 2 LR
values over the estimated useful lifes on a straight-line DIE BB A - FEAERNT

basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings and structures 4%, or over the terms of lease, whichever is shorter

T KA SEY) 4% SR THE B > AR 3 fy e

Plant and machinery 5% — 10%

o [ e 5%—10%

Fixtures and office equipment 20%

[6] 7 4% B KN = B 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

RE 20%

Bearer plants Over the term of leased land

A Y i 1+ 3t A B

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method o B A~ T A 00 7 8 O TR A & R
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of 3 8 R 7 DAR oI TR UL TR
each reporting period. R o

dings under

Construction in progress represents buil

e TR 7 5 e M B £ 0

i il
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — CONTINUED

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Biological assets comprise ginseng planted and grapes
growing on bearer plants in the PRC which are measured
on initial recognition and at the end of reporting period
at the fair value less costs to sell, with any resultant
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which it arises. Fair value is based on the present value of
expected net cash flows from the ginseng and grapes. Costs
to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to
the disposals of an asset, mainly transportation cost and
excluding income taxes.

The related costs including picking cost and fertilisers and
pesticide cost incurred for harvest of ginseng and grapes
are capitalised, until such time the ginseng and grapes are
harvested.

LEASES

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold lands 2% — 10%
T T 2% — 10%
Office premise 50%
b /NEL T/ ES 50%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or
otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term
leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets are assets of value below US$5,000.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade

date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — CONTINUED

LOSS ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSSES

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life
of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses™) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

o R R B A A ] SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5K 6wt BOR — 4
T A5 £ 45 2 s 45988 4

7 B2 [ 2 0 G AN TR R B T 2 TH
i Bl R 2 s iR - I E BB R AR
BRI SRR AR W2 A
B gk 2% o HE % R R o

TR A5 S B R > 74 4 B AR 4 i TR 4R R
i H 2 &R e TR 2 kR 8 >
A B R4 S0 1R R BT A AT RE R i
o B oy e WO K 2 < Bl TR 2 AR )
NBELEANFHIMZ M TAZEE
JE e 1 0 A R DA S O Wi 3 o i B ([ A7
mUEMEREER]D -

i S R R IH e M TR (5 5 Bk
BRECBR AN 2 A5 BER B B 904 ffE R DA A
R W 20 > AR SR [ 9 AR 45 S TS 0 A A
HMEHRERZEEFREZeM TR
T 198 A4 BV RZ <6 Pl LRI A A B4R
1218 A A 8% 2R & ) S 1R TR B0 G
HEiA o

AR E RS WS E sl Rz
s 1848 A AR R B PT ELT 48 B) 2
P 18 it e R 5 B Wi A AR 48

Ble&RBESHY

MG eERERNS > Ble Be%FHE
Y5 SRAT B TF BB 4 ~ SRAT BH: A < A
0 1) 35 S99 47 S B mT B B N OB Y B
Lo A WY B (i 5 ) JeL By 9 0 0 e L )
VB o M8 TR (2 I R A SR Bl e
B —HB 2 ) BRAT B 30> TR et A Bl K Bl
&5 EY AR

o



126

CHINA TONTINE WINES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - CONTINUED

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the
customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - CONTINUED
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - CONTINUED

the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue

is recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the product or service.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees, consultants and distributors.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non
market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants and
distributors are measured at the fair value of the services
rendered or if the fair value of the services rendered
cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

TAXATION
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED
TAXATION - CONTINUED

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

SEGMENT REPORTING - CONTINUED
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
productions processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(1))  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)
if any of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i1) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

RELATED PARTIES - CONTINUED

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity)

if any of the following conditions applies: —
continued

) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vil) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets except inventories and receivables to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS - CONTINUED

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - CONTINUED

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES - CONTINUED

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

KEY ESTIMATES

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(A) ESTIMATED ALLOWANCES FOR

INVENTORIES

The management estimates the net realisable value
of inventories based primarily on the estimated
selling prices and current market conditions. Where
the expectation on the net realisable value is lower
than the cost, an impairment may arise. The Group
carries out an inventory review at end of the
reporting period and RMB7,265,000 (2021: no writes
off) on obsolete and slow moving items to their net
realisable values during the year ended 31 December
2022. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of inventories is approximately RMB170,332,000 (2021:
approximately RMB210,314,000).
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4.

KEY ESTIMATES - CONTINUED

(B)

(©)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
with reference to the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected or there are unfavourable events
and change in facts and circumstance which result
in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

On the above basis, the Group is of the view that
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are RMB7,776,000 and
RMB2,036,000 respectively (2021: no impairment
loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets) are charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

USEFUL LIVES OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

In applying the accounting policy on property,
plant and equipment with respect to depreciation,
the management estimates the useful lives of
various categories of property, plant and equipment
according to the industrial experiences over the
usage of property, plant and equipment and also
by reference to the relevant industrial norm. If the

actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
is less than the original estimate useful lives due
to changes in commercial and technological
ironment, such difference will impact t
i e for the remaini
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4.

KEY ESTIMATES - CONTINUED

(D)

(E)

IMPAIRMENT LOSS FOR BAD AND
DOUBTFUL DEBTS

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

AND VALUATION PROCESSES OF
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The biological assets of the Group are measured at
fair value less costs to sell for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of biological
assets, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation team
works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The chief financial officer
reports the valuation team’s findings to the board
of directors of the Company every six months to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of
the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value less costs to sell of
the biological assets. Note 19 provides detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.
The change in fair value of biological assets
amounting to approximately RMB12,049,000 (2021:
approximately RMB4,299,000) was credited to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
biological assets is approximately RMB43,703,000
(2021: approximately RMB33,461,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Certain transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”) which is different from
the functional currency of the Group entities, i.e.
RMB, which expose the Group to currency risk.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency
risk. The management manages its foreign currency
risk by monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against HKS$ with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss after
tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB1,090,000 be higher/lower (2021: profit after
tax of approximately RMB906,000 be lower/
higher) arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange differences on other payables and accruals
denominated in HKS.

(B) CREDIT RISK

The carrying amount of bank and cash balances,
other receivables, deposits and trade receivables

included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED
(B)

CREDIT RISK - CONTINUED

In order to minimise credit risk, the directors
have delegated a team to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the
directors review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (if available);

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its

obligations;
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED
(B)

CREDIT RISK- CONTINUED

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if
a debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for

h category and adjusts for forward looking data
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -

CONTINUED
(C) LIQUIDITY RISK (C) LBy % 4l &
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEEZHRTIEMEREA R
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that TE 2 I B T oK o DR fR LA
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its R 2 4 B4 A o DA AT 9 0 R R
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. RHARBESFHK-
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial A T i B AR R BB A N
liabilities is as follow:
Less than
1 year or Between Total
repayable 1to2 undiscounted Carrying
on demand years cash flow amounts
—EN K A BB
B K I A —EWE birkegek iR T £

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFE  AREFE  ARETE  ARETE

At 31 December 2022 R4+ -A=+—H
Trade payables B 5 BEAT IR K 2,221 = 2,221 2,221
Other payables and accruals A A5 T I R 13,845 = 13,845 13,845
Amount due to a substantial A — % F B R IE

shareholder 6,301 - 6,301 6,301
Lease liabilities M AR 832 161 993 913

23,199 161 23,360 23,280

At 31 December 2021 R-FZ—-H+-H=+—H
Trade payables B 5 B A IR 17,985 = 17,985 17,985
Other payables and accruals AT T M T 16,298 - 16,298 16,298
Amount due to a substantial JEAT — 4 3 B AR

shareholder 5,929 - 5,929 5,929
Amount due to non-controlling AT I 2 A SR T

shareholder 1,089 - 1,089 1,089
Lease liabilities B A 872 800 1,672 1,580

42,173 800 42,973 42,881




FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -

5. BB A P — A (&)
CONTINUED
(D) INTEREST RATE RISK (D) # % Wl B&
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate AR Bk SR AT & R R 2@ AT T 5
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market ) 25 3 8 5 | B 2 B 4 T R 25 L B o
interest rate on bank balances.
The Group considered interest rate risk on bank 7 B2 [ 5 2 SRAT &5 Bk 2 R R R B
balances is insignificant. | %N
(E) FAIR VALUES (E) AV
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AN A SR A S IR DL AR T BT Sk -
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the AEEZERMEERERARBZ
consolidated statement of financial position MR (B B A 5 A T (E A -
approximate their respective fair values.
(F) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (F) BRT-A=Z1+—HWE&@ITHR
INSTRUMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER B
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#n T T
Financial assets: S E
Financial assets at amortised cost TS LA TR 2
(including cash and cash equivalents) BREE (HEB S K
HEFEY) 205,890 205,007
Financial liabilities: 4 0
Financial liabilities at amortised cost % #ff §§ A 51 & < &l & fiF 23,280 42,881




FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an WNE & H 2
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 728 G o AT A B Bl
between market participants at the measurement date. The TATHE RS o R B A TAE R = DR 5 A%
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair N SFAE w8 T 22 A (B O Rk e A 4
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs BB = A8 55 S A TAE R A%

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

O — B A

Level 2 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

FUH R F 0 AT DL A AR R B R B TG I A CRACTEEE) o

inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

5 AR AE T BB R T e W B i A (58— ARON RS R BR AL ) -

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

EEN T PN O AR B A -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and A A [ 1 BOR 2 A 48 SOMHE Y R S
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the W AE 1 H O E SR = S AR S R A

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. R o




6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -
CONTINUED
(A) DISCLOSURES OF LEVEL IN FAIR

6. AVl — &
(A RTFZHA=+—HBAPHE

VALUE HIERARCHY AT 31 DECEMBER: B -
Fair value measurements using:
O FAR T 55 et i
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2022
At
B8 B8 B CROOE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF  ARBTRE AR®TE ARWTxR
Recurring fair value BH A TG
measurements:
Biological assets — Ginseng ENEE- N2 - - 41,230 41,230
Grapes A = = 2,473 2,473
- - 43,703 43,703
Fair value measurements using:
NTERT SRR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2021
At
- o LY SR Satais
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥ETT  AR¥TT  AR®TH
Recurring fair value R AT GHE
measurements:
Biological assets - Ginseng EYEE- NS - = 30,840 30,840
Grapes K = = 2,621 2,621
- - 33,461 33,461

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 or
)] out of Level 3

WRE F T A=

EIJJ:QEB'“:W ‘éﬁ B %&Zﬁﬁ



6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -
CONTINUED
(B) RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS

(B) #5508 = B 40 ik 35t i ¥ 2 19

MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BASED R :
ON LEVEL 3:
Biological
assets
2022
W& E
RMB’000
ANR¥ T 5
At 1 January 2022 Wo_F__4#—H—H 33,461
Increase due to cultivation B A T B0 3,953
Transfer to inventories A (5,760)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss (#) A8 2% TR 2 B R AR (#) 12,049
At 31 December 2022 W_EF __H+_H=1+—H 43,703
(#) include gains or losses for assets held (#) BIE 7 At A AR R 1
at end of reporting period R I B 12,049
Biological
assets
2021
WG
RMB’000
ANR¥TF It
At 1 January 2021 W_F_—4—H—H 2,642
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13) Wi P o ) (BfFRE13) 30,840
Increase due to cultivation B AE T B 1,533
Transfer to inventories [L GNP (5,853)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss (#) A8 2 T R 2 T R KR (#) 4,299

At 31 Decembe 21

RoZE=—#E+=A=t—H

3,461




FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -
CONTINUED

(B)

(@)

RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE BASED
ON LEVEL 3: - CONTINUED

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

DISCLOSURE OF VALUATION
PROCESS USED BY THE GROUP

AND VALUATION TECHNIQUES

AND INPUTS USED IN FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER:
The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The chief financial
officer reports directly to directors for these fair
value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the chief
financial officer and directors at least twice a year.

As at the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has engaged an independent valuer,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
to determine the fair values of the ginseng and

grapes.
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS -

CONTINUED
(©)

DISCLOSURE OF VALUATION
PROCESS USED BY THE GROUP
AND VALUATION TECHNIQUES
AND INPUTS USED IN FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER: -
CONTINUED

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value

(© FHEALHRTZHA=+—H
P £ i1 o A R R 3 DL B 4 T
w32k e 4R I 0 A L 90 % i
AL B 5%« — 4

B AFHEFEEAZ EFEA

measurements are mainly: IR -'E-3 DNEEE
Effect on
fair value
for increase Fair value Fair value
Description ~ Valuation technique and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Range of inputs w1 2021
WALH S AHE A
ik [if 61 E3 1IN BARTRERAL L MHEZEE ot Swiat 3 R
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥F N a v
Ginseng Income approach
A%
The key inputs are:
TERAER:
(1) Effective cultivated arca; (1) Total effective cultivated area of ginseng planted in the 304.8mu (2021: 304.8mu) Increase
farm land.
() HEHEED: () RRAEEASHHERGREER - 30488 (2B —4 30488 i
(2)  Production quantity; (1) Production quantity of kilogram (“kg”) per mu of 1420kg/mu (2021: 1420kg/mu) Increase
ginseng in effective cultivated area when ginseng aged 5.
o & 0 HHEEERASREEAZTA (1) EE- LT/ (R~ 0T 5/00 #in
(3)  Market price per kg of ginseng aged 5; (3)  Market price of ginseng aged 5. RMBI40 per kg (2021: RMBI40 per kg) Increase
and
() BTREFASMEE R ) TEASHWR: BFRARKUOL (R4 B
BTRARKM0L)
(4)  Discount rate (4)  Discount rate, taking into account of nature of ginseng 18% (2021: 19%) Decrease
industry and ginseng plantation market condition.
W = @) FRE(EEEASHENERURASERMTR) - 100 (CFZ-F:19%) w
41,30 30,840
Grapes Income approach
(L] WA
The key inputs are:
TERAER:
(1) Growth rate of average production (1) Growth rate of average production quantity per grape -25% to 1% (2021: 0%) Increase
quantity per grape tree; tree taking into account of life cycle of grapevine.
() BREGHTHERNME: ()  SREGHTHERNNE ZRTERLRN) - DS%E (ZFZ—F:0%) i
(2)  Production quantity per grape tree; (2)  Production quantity per grape tree. 1.33kg to 6.15kg (2021: 1.32kg to 8.17kg) Increase
0 SREGHEER O SREGHNEE. IBTRECISTH Hin
(ZF2-F: 1 0TRE )
(3)  Market price per kg of grapes; and (3)  Market price of grapes. RMB2.80 per kg to RMBIT.00 per kg Increase
(2021: RMB3.00 per kg
to RMBIT.00 per kg)
0 BFmwEHHE R () - GFRARMLOCEGTRARKI 0L i

(ZZZ-FBTHARM00LE
GTRARKIOL) :



REVENUE

The Group manufactures and sells wine products to
the customers. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products
and the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of
90 to 180 days (2021: 30 to 180 days). For new customers,
deposits or cash on delivery may be required. Deposits
received are recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
to the customers as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its reportable and operating
segments based on internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e. the executive directors) of
the Company in order to allocate the resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have
been aggregated in arising at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sales of wine products. The Group is

organised based on the region of wine products delivered.

L&

A A 0 A SN 1 2 I o E
FEE il ) 2 7 HE OB R (B AE S TR
F 2w BT RE A S X E M
W R EATHAE RF T CBEHCE M 5k
Fiv 5 HE IR > TR AR B 4 o

% FEH 2 88— A A F90H 180
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R WA R TS 16 % 5 2 AN B R e R > BRI
A8 — 20 B 4 - A K 2 B 9 4 JE IR 1] 9 0
H > BOSCIBAAR A 2% S A £
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A% 44 0 AR 958 7 A S T L A 4 10 7O
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S0P IR A A S O 1 T 75 T 24
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SEGMENT INFORMATION -

CONTINUED

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified based on
different geographical zones of wine products delivered in
the PRC: North-East Region, Northern Region, Eastern
Region, South-Central Region and South-West Region.

- North-East Region includes the provinces of Jilin,
Heilongjiang and Liaoning.

- Northern Region includes provinces of Hebei,
Shanxi and city of Beijing.

- Eastern Region includes provinces of Anhui, Fujian,
Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Shandong, Zhejiang, and city of
Shanghai.

- South-Central Region includes provinces of
Guangdong, Hainan, Henan, Hubei and Hunan.

- South-West Region includes provinces of Qinghali,
Sichuan, Yunnan, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region and city of Chongqing.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies.

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer amounted to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s
total revenue.

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and all
revenue from external customers and non-current assets are
attributed to and located in the PRC.

7S AR 4 7 o B S S SR R AR
PR AT R A B AL I T % R B
9 E ity B S [ 3 R D SR [ - FE L
M 6 ~ S SR 1~ Hh g b [ % PG g b [
Al o

- HRUL [ 45 5 MR R~ SREETL A K
EEE o

= e b ARSI E - LA &AL
HT o

- TR M [ AL L RE A T
MBIV A IR E WL E K&
EfgT o

- o b LA RO A W A
[ER=RRE A= SN A

- PmbECEEEREE WIE &
&~ PR YA R R EE

AECGE R EE SN e R EORE E e
FH B it AR (]

7 4 7E B B8 — S IR & S AT B 52 5 P
A5 06 A 4 T AL 25 10% B A B B 0 2 o

A4 (9 285 T 8 o B> T BT A AR A
HESRN LI E W E N NI N -9 F SEPENA
T H I o




SEGMENT INFORMATION -

8. ABER-#
CONTINUED
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets B AT R A v A B 1 - B
and liabilities: Z &R
North- South- South-
East Northern Eastern Central West
Region Region Region Region Region Total
edTl R ERE R HHE -Eif
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EFT  AR¥FT  AR%Tx  AR¥Fr  AR¥TT  ARBTR
For the year ended REZF- AT
31 December 2022 =t -HEEE
Segment revenue from RESMBE F A Bl g
external customer 25,537 19,771 39,601 36,388 24,821 146,118
Segment profit B A 137 2497 3,989 1,390 1,428 9,441
For the year ended BE_Z_—&
31 December 2021 FEAZ - BEE
Segment revenue from KA F G2 &
external customer 40,262 25,693 55,800 57,280 29,336 208,371
Segment profit MBI 8,901 8,891 13,344 15,866 4,579 51,581
As at 31 December 2022 REZZ2EFZR
=t-n
Segment assets NEEE 2,111 9,437 44213 33,299 23,621 132,681
Segment liabilities gl 817 633 1,267 1,165 795 4,677
As at 31 December 2021 /0 S Y |
=
Segment assets NEREE 20,437 13,182 49,199 25,925 16,453 125,196
Segment liabilities HEAR 3,009 1,920 4170 4281 2,193 15,573
RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE LE &P UE-RN-F 7 £ Rh:g:A
SEGMENT REVENUE, PROFIT OR LOSS,

LA B



SEGMENT INFORMATION - h
CONTINUED :

REVENUE - CONTINUED W 2% — 4
2022 2021
—m——  —E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 ANBEHTF oo
Profit or loss 1he A 5% i 48
Total profit of reportable segments GRS s B ) 9,441 51,581
Unallocated amounts: P e
Change in fair value of biological assets ) R AT A S ) 12,049 4,299
Change in fair value of convertible bonds W] i Ji {if 75 i) 23 1~ (B 52 B - (724)
Share-based payments DAy 27 R B8 114 £+F K - (2,334)
Other corporate income HAth A 2 A 4,270 4,168
Depreciation of property, plant and L/ERY: SN &L R
equipment (15,683) (14,937)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i RE G E T8 (3,159) (2,072)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W3~ RS B M W s 15
equipment (7,776) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets i ) REE P (L A 98 (2,036) =
Write off of inventories i 8 1 & (7,265) =
Loss allowances for trade receivables & Ty I A B R s 1 (2,348) (975)
Other corporate expenses Hoh A2 2 H (15,047) (21,790)
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the year ENGEA (B A (27,554) 17,216




SEGMENT INFORMATION -

CONTINUED
REVENUE - CONTINUED

Reportable and operating segment profit represented the
profit incurred by each segment without allocation of
depreciation, loss allowances for trade receivables, write off
of inventories, write off of right-of-use assets, impairment
on property, plant and equipment, impairment on right-
of-use assets, change in fair value of biological assets,

8. rEEM-#

Wi — 4

T B A8 oy SR 4 A 0y BUE R G
i > R O3 BT~ B B B B R R
B I A ol (L~ R R U AR
BT E) AT R R AP E
SR - R RS ~ DR 6 2 R B B9 AR

change in fair value of convertible bonds, finance costs, HoAth A 250 B H A U A o
share-based payments, other corporate expenses and other
corporate income.
2022 2021
g —E-—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T8 NS TH
Assets &E
Total assets of reportable segments AR R AR 132,681 125,196
Unallocated amounts: IR 43 i < R
Property, plant and equipment L/E Y =D& L] 141,228 137,039
Right-of-use assets 1 36,986 41,974
Biological assets A ) E 43,703 33,461
Inventories 78 170,332 210,314
Other receivables, deposits and Al B SR~ B I
prepayments FEAYRE 5,700 6,438
Current tax recoverable BV HA AT Y8 (=] B IE 5,551 5,551
Bank and cash balances SRAT I B4 &5 Bk 70,893 85,866
Consolidated total assets GEEEMAHE 607,074 645,839

Reportable and operating segment assets represent trade

receivables and prepaid other taxes.

B TR AR B H At B

T T KRy A E A 5 ME IR K



SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. M
CONTINUED

REVENUE - CONTINUED W 2% — 4
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 ANBEHTF oo
Liabilities £l
Total liabilities of reportable segments CIE e Rk 4,677 15,573
Unallocated amounts: P e
Trade payables B 5 AT HR K 2,221 17,985
Other payables and accruals L A 1 AT 5 T % R 2 15,295 14,979
Amount due to a substantial shareholder JEAT — 45 2 A K IE 6,301 5,929
Amount due to non-controlling JREAST I 428 i 1B TR 3K TH
shareholder - 1,089
Lease liabilities B A fE 913 1,580
Current tax liabilities RIS 5 2 9,961 9,961
Consolidated total liabilities A AEAE 39,368 67,096
Reportable and operating segment liabilities comprise AR R B AR T H A
certain other payables and accruals. A5 R K e o
REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS: BB EMAEEZ B
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from DA 2 A 2 9] 2 B 5 B A 2 iR o0 AT
its major products.
2022 2021
—Eo—g B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN R¥EF oo AR ¥T T
Sweet wines H 1 % 1 52,960 85,833
Dry wines Hiz 7] A0 66,815 71,086
Brandy =N pit 6,625 7,277
44,175

Others HAth 19,718

146,118




10.

[k

SEGMENT INFORMATION - 8. AE¥ER-#
CONTINUED
TIMING OF REVENUE RECOGNITION WG 2 e 58 Oy )
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T u N e
At a point in time A 7 IR [H] 146,118 208,371
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HAbWCA ~ Wtk BN 1
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F 8 ANR¥ET T
Bank interest income SRAT AR A 244 213
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SMEYL %5, (48 T8 303 (461)
Gain on bargain purchase (note 13) e B S A (BEREL3) = 3,932
Gain on disposal of property, plant and GiEE/E Y W& 1093
equipment and right-of-use assets B O i R 3,723 23
4,270 3,707
FINANCE COSTS 10. W& AR
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥TT
Lease interests LiER=¢ 1PN 137 156
11. PifaBLb 3%

%

A 4F BE R AR BN AR TR A
g R i A W BLIE g‘

)



11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - CONTINUED

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as the Group did not have assessable profit subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended 31
December 2022. Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax was made based on the estimated assessable profits
calculated in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries operated in the PRC for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The income tax expense for both years can be reconciled to
the (loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated statement

11.

P 143 L B 3 — 4
HRAEBRBEE_F _—_F+-A
= Ok A A b R A 2 BT A
A A R B i A e S 2R e R A 2 T A
LA ) 18 o v B £ S BT 15 B A R AR R
BE_F-—H+_H=+—HLEHE
R v AR Ja 2 ) R A B BT AR B
A I B M O T A

% W fI8 4F B 2 P 45 Bt B S BRLAR 5 R 4R
A 2 1T Wi 2 R A BRBLAT (s ) i A

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as BRI T
follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T oo N o

(Loss)/profit before tax PRBLET (K54H) % A (27,554) 17,216
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate % ' [8 4> 25 FIr 15 8 B %25%

of 25% (2021: 25%) (ZFE 4 1:25%)

w0 B (6,889) 4,304

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BB TE T A T BB IR A

purposes BlIHR (3,239) (3,542)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for LB TE T & A AT 40368 B S Y

tax purpose BLIE R 6,451 914
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o il 5 Bl T e 48 1) Bl T 52 3,677 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 8 1 R T RR 2 B T s 1R

recognised - (1,676)
Income tax expense B A5 B B 3 - -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB121,381,000 (2021:
RMB106,675,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset

has been recognised due to the

- il e

A R B oK AR 4R H) 22 oK B ) B JE S 1
# N R H121,381,0000C ( =& . —4F:
N R #106,675,0007T) 7] I i 41 85 7k 5K

A AR A i A1 I R A A 7

T




1

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after

charging the following:

SR O R) B
ALY OB/l RIS B DL R
IR

2022 2021
S —r—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 PN o
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BT N 4 1,370 1,680
Cost of inventories sold SRV N 85,666 116,803
Depreciation of property, plant and W BB I B AT
equipment 15,683 14,937
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {68 I HE 5 8 AT RS 4,563 3,514
Less: amounts included in property, W R AW R K
plant and equipment B LEX (1,404) (1,442)
3,159 2,072
Impairment loss on property, plant and Wy 3~ i B A W N 18
equipment 7,776 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 55 ) REE R (L M 1 2,036 =
Write off of inventories (included in cost SN 77 £ (6145 16 8 &
of sales) AR AT 7,265 =
Loss allowance for trade receivables T I I R 8 4 A 2,348 975
Staff costs (including directors’ BILMA (4G HEREM ) -
remuneration):
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind Bra o kR E YA 11,478 13,167
Sales commission S48 1 4 3,157 4,159
Retirement benefit scheme contributions FER NI I REL 3,424 3,763
Equity-settled share-based payments DIHE £ 48 53 DA A £
B3 IR /N - 2,334

18,059

23,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

o 7 B 5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&E_-F - “4F+_H =+ —H L4

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 3 November 2021, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) to acquire 100%
equity interest in Sino Trend International Limited (the “Target
Company”) at a consideration of HK$40,260,000 which
shall be settled by the allotment and issue of 402,600,000
new ordinary shares (the “Consideration Shares”) to the
Vendor. The Target Company owns 100% equity interest
in Tonghua Zhongbao Industrial Company Limited (the
“Zhongbao Industrial”) and Tonghua Hongshuo Industrial
Company Limited owned as to 95% by Zhongbao Industrial
and 5% by the Vendor, collectively referred to as the
“Target Group”. The principal activities of Target Group
are ginseng planting in leased farm land in Tonghua City
which commenced in 2020 and primary processing services
of agricultural products. The management considers that
the Target Group will act as the supplier of ginseng to
the Group for the production of ginseng wine products
so that the Group can have a secured source of ginseng
as core raw materials after the acquisition which will
facilitate the Group’s production of ginseng wine products
and hence enhance the Group’s overall profitability. The
acquisition was completed on 30 November 2021 (the
“Completion Date”). The transaction costs attributable to
this acquisition were approximately RMB274,000.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the total of 402,600,000
Consideration Shares shall be allotted and issued in
three batch. First batch of 227,530,000 Consideration
Shares, second batch of 100,000,000 Consideration Shares
and third batch of 75,070,000 Consideration Shares
shall be allotted and issued on the Completion Date,
first anniversary of the Completion Date and second
anniversary of the Completion Date, respectively. The
fair value of total Consideration Shares as at Completion
Date is approximately RMB30,224,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$37,039,000), with reference to the
valuation performed by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The Vendor guarantees that the actual
market value of ginseng planted at the time of October
2024 shall not be less than RMB60,000,000. If there is any
shortfall, the consideration shall be deemed to be reduced
by the same amount but subject to a cap of HK$7,500,000,
which shall be paid in cash by the Vendor to the Company
as compensation (the “Contingent receivables™). The
directors of the Company estimated the fair value
of Contingent receivables is minimal. First batch of
227,530,000 Consideration Shares were allotted and issued
to the Vendor on the Completion Date. Second batch of
100,000,000 consideration shares were allotted and issued
to the Vendor on 30 November 2022.

13.

B ik B )8 2 vl
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o v B (T ARAE Ay 1) 1 2Rk A o
HiEAAHEEBEILPEFTEARAA
(T 2E]) 2T HE > ik T 22 AE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - 13, Wi B 2 v — 4
CONTINUED
Target Group did not contribute revenue to the Group’s PR T —4E T = —
revenue and incurred loss of approximately RMB165,000 H I - B R AR NI 40 2 A 4R T A9 i 4 1
to the Group’s profit for the year respectively for the period H B JRRAH 3 AR 4R A AF TR R R B B0k 18
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2021. # N K ¥165,0007C -
If the acquisition of Target Group had been completed on MUl HEEER —F - —4F—H—H
1 January 2021, the Group’s total revenue and profit after 52 i o AS B R A A AR £ % B B AR ik )
tax for the year would have been RMB208,371,000 and 1 Bl A N R #5208,371,00000 B A R
RMB16,253,000 respectively. The proforma information 16,253,0007C ° f§ % & BHE L 51 > K 4
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an REBBFA ZF Z—4F—H— H ML
indication of the total revenue and income and loss after $il = T 9% A 4R (O O R 2 AR A - IR
tax of the Group that actually would have been achieved DL BB A% e 18 2 A6 AR - IR A HEVE R 2k 3
had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021, nor K=l
is intended to be a projection of future results.
The following summarises the fair value of total DA MR 20 7 i i S i I A O T
consideration and the fair value of assets acquired Az 1 BB 2 A~ P i A T T R
and liabilities assumed and goodwill arising from the L B=E /N SV
acquisition of Target Group at the acquisition date:
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Net assets acquired: it W il ¥ R
Property, plant and equipment W - W E TR A 2,442
Right-of-use assets il AHEE & 4,443
Biological assets A ) B E 30,840
Bank and cash balances SRAT T B 4 A5 B 1
Other payables and accruals L th JE AT S TE K R (699)
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JREASH 2 % e TR K TE (1,073)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value F N B R & AT Ak I E R A A 35,954
Non-controlling interest IF $E O HE 25 (1,798)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition* (note 9) e M i B i 4 ¢ (BREEE9) (3,932)
Total consideration HAE 30,224
Net cash inflow on acquisition for the year ended BE-_ELX - —4+-H=+—H
31 December 2021: E AP 3 oA B T B < U A TR AR
Cash consideration paid EAT L & AR -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired ST i B 3 46 e B4 SR AE 1
1
* The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of 3 AR G2 [ S5 G O o SR R A i i

approximately RMB3,932,000 in the business combination.
The gain is included in other income, gains and losses (note 9).

25 #) N B H3,932,0007T © 3% U £48 5F A
HoAl A ~ i 2s K es 1R (BEEE9) o



14. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. # %K1 [T PG, ko
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(A) THE REMUNERATION OF EACH (A)  HEFZH M
DIRECTOR
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed R 28 Y b T AR B R 2 D A5
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is B 5% = AR AN
as follows:
Salaries,
allowance Retirement Equity-
and benefits settled
benefits  Discretionary scheme  share-based
Fee in kind bonus  contributions payments Total
VAR £ 4551
Bl w R BIREA  EDRG A
K £ A WEfea atdlfa AR At

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTE  ARBTL  ARETE  ARETE  ARETE  ARETL

Executive Directors ES
Mr. Wang Guangyuan FhEEE - 1,660 - - - 1,660
Mr. Zhang Hebin A A = 601 = = = 601
Ms. Wang Lijun TEEL L - 564 - 17 - 581
Non-executive Directors FafES
Mr. Li Jerry Y.* ZHR S - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Minghui* RO * = = = = = =
Independent Non-executive B v HiT# H

Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert B &# e 155 - - - = 155
Mr. Yang Qiang F e E 120 - - - - 120
Dr. Cheng Vincent BEmlt 155 = = = = 155
Total for 2022 RO 430 2,825 - 17 - 3212
Executive Directors A ESH
Mr. Wang Guangyuan FhEEE - 1,586 - kYl 233 1,851
Mr. Zhang Hebin TRANM Fe A - 580 - - - 580
Ms. Wang Lijun TERLL = 544 = 16 233 793
Independent Non-executive B3 JE$A7 i 5

Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Keung, Albert & k£ 149 = = - - 149
Mr. Yang Qiang Lig 120 - - - - 120
Dr. Cheng Vincent BEREL 149 = - - - 149

al for 2021 T




14. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST 14. #EF RN fHdermHi AL 2ME -
PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS - |
CONTINUED
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B) T AaEmHEAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group FRALEEZ KA HRHFALA
during the year included three (2021: three) directors =2 (R =4 #FH
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis L 4 2 Wi B SC R 2 BTN e
presented above. The emoluments of the remaining BIMA (ZE - —F - WH) A
two (2021: two) individuals is set out below: Tz M s T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RHETF 8 N Y o
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind ¥4 ~ B HY 22 B ) 18 A 1,370 1,498
Retirement benefits scheme AR R A ] 43 R
contributions 31 46
1,401 1,544
The emoluments fell within the following band: P <55 B 7 DA -
2022 2021
No. of No. of
employees employees
-PN =N
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000%5 76 LA T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 76 &£
1,500,000 7T - 1
2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,

MBE_F __HER_FZ—F
R4 JE > A

+=A=+—"

—1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

16.

o 7 B 5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&E_-F - “4F+_H =+ —H L4

DIVIDENDS 15. KA
The directors do not recommend the payment of any HHAERABE T _F+ A
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). = —H L FERMME AT R (= —
4 ) o
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. B OFd), #A
BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE B IE A Ol 4, %A
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable RN FEHEA N R EA (BEER)
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year B T AR AR S R AN R A AR A
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately AN K #26,403,00000 (=& = —4F
RMB26,403,000 (2021: profit for the year attributable to BN/ K7 RS WY i B IS i NI
owners of the Company of approximately RMB11,336,000) 11,336,00075) B 4F 1A £ 547 3% 48 e 2
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of HESF- 45 #(2,933,974,000 8% ( — & — —4F:
2,933,974,000 (2021: 2,072,424,000) in issue during the year. 2,072,424,000/8% ) 515 -
DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE W (i) B
No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended BE_Z__H+A=t+—HILHFE,
31 December 2022 as the exercise of the Company’s B A AT (A 28 | 1 AR AT A 2 R RE AL
outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive. P B BT A 2 A I 4 T s A o
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the calculation of BE_F - HF+_H=+—HIL£4
diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the B AN B ON R AL A R4 B R T
Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to M4 A 28 A B A N HEAS AR A A A N
owners of the Company of approximately RMB11,417,000 R 11,417,00070 K 3% %8 B HE 7 ¥ 8%
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,404,073,000/% ( B 5+ & &5 B £ 4 2 )
2,404,073,000, being the weighted average number of ordinary e BT Al ) 2 4R 0 2 AT 3 A8 I RT3y
shares of 2,072,424,000 in issue during the year used in the #2,072,424,000/8 i - B E 7 5 AT H 9
basic earnings per share calculation plus the weighted average B 4 T 4 i i 5 B 5 R ME ST 1 B
number of ordinary shares of 330,959,000 assumed to have 330,959,000/8 Bz AR & i ¥ 2 1 K i R AT
been converted the convertible bonds at issue date and the 1 i 5 HRE e A0 A A 1 I 0 5 3 A7 1) 3K
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 690,000 JBE I HE ST 34 $2690,000 % ) 715 -
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise of the share options outstanding at the end of
the reporting period.
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWF 5 N Y T
(Loss)/earnings (E18) & F
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating  FH DA Ft & & [ JE A
basic (loss)/earnings per share (K518), B =2
(18),/ 2 F (26,403) 11,336
Expenses saving on conversion of convertible  ###f nJ # Ji {5 % i & 2
bonds B 3 - 81
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of calculating  F DA 75 &5 5 i
diluted (loss)/earnings per share (518, B F 2
(5 48) /& F (26,403) 11,417
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16.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE —

16. WBBEA (FEH) —H5

CONTINUED
DILUTED EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - HRBHAN OF#H) -8
CONTINUED
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares shares
0 8 H J&e 13 B H
’000 ’000
T B Tk
Weighted average number of ordinary FA CARHE B e A A
shares for the purpose of basic (E18) BF
(loss)/earnings per share 8 I R - 3 2,933,974 2,072,424
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TR TE 0 i 2 5
— Convertible bonds — ] # i % = 330,959
— Share options — I % = 690
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  fi PA5H5E & I i
for the purpose of diluted (loss)/earnings (FE8) BRIz
per share o0 T o T 2 8 2,933,974 2,404,073




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP

Buildings

and Plant and and office Motor Bearer Const.ruction
Structures machinery equipment vehicles plants in progress Total
BER JE 5 % B
WED  RRRES  RAERE W RS ERTH it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
AREFE  AR%TFE  AR¥TE AR¥TE AR¥Tr  AR¥TrE  AR¥TxR
Cost %S
At 1 January 2021 RZFZ—4F—H—H 496,750 407,521 16,285 4,009 37,721 8,550 970,836
Additions nE = 7,092 - 118 4,152 2 11,362
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13) WM HHE 2 7 (H5E13) 2,44 = = = = = 2442
Disposals e = (457) - (76) = - (533)
At 31 December 2021 REFZ-F+ZA=+—0 499,192 414,156 16,285 4,051 41873 8,550 984,107
Additions HE 11,298 368 = 122 4,206 11,659 27,653
Transfer i 11,009 = = = = (11,009) =
Disposals g (193) (48,562) = (131) = = (49,486)
At 31 December 2022 REFZZETZAZT—H 520,706 365,962 16,285 4,042 46,079 9,200 962,274
Accumulated depreciation and BRI E RWE
impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ—4F—H—H 414,112 382,407 12,998 3,627 17,997 1,520 832,661
Charge for the year LA & 7,345 3,710 175 126 3,581 = 14,937
Disposals i = (457 = (13) = = (530)
At 31 December 2021 REFZ—FTZA=Z1—H 421457 385,660 13,173 3,680 21,578 1,520 847,068
Charge for the year R 8,836 3,400 174 87 3,186 = 15,683
Transfer (-6 1,520 5 = = = (1,520) =
Disposals e (193) (48,562) = (126) = - (49,481)
Impairment loss BHEER 4,681 1,329 153 2 1112 480 7,176
At 31 December 2022 REFZZEFZAZT—H 435,701 341,827 13,500 3,662 25,876 480 821,046
Carrying amounts JE T (i
At 31 December 2022 REFZZEFZAZT—H 85,005 24,135 2,785 380 20,203 8,720 141,228
At 31 December 2021 REFZ-F+ZA=+—H 71,735 28,496 3,112 371 20,295 7,030 137,039




17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 17. 9%~ W5 Bk i — &1
CONTINUED
The buildings are situated on land in the PRC. MEMFEMRTE LM E o
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group BE_Z-__H#t+-_A=+—HILEE,
carried out review of the recoverable amount of its HAAREEED W T GEL  AEBCY
property, plant and equipment as a result of the W3~ BB B s A B0 AT [l i K E A AT
deterioration of the markets of the Group’s business. The o k3t 51 B4 N R ¥E7,776,0000C 1Y 8 (H
reviews led to an impairment losses of approximately BEHOA®RE X - _4F+ 4 =+—
RMB7,776,000 have been recognised in profit or loss H 1k 4F B (9 48 75 o e 52 o A BE & 09 m] [ml
for the year ended 31 December 2022. The recoverable Wi ZR TE N B 5 141,228,0000T )7 B B BL
amount of the relevant assets of RMB141,228,000 has B 4 Ok o vk R H e P (E A o BT IR
been determined on the basis of their value in use using MG A 13% o
discounted cashflow method. The discount rate used was
13 per cent.
LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. LS Ko £ J1 BB 2
Disclosures of lease-related items: WEEMEMBEA :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 PN Y o
At 31 December: R+_H=+—H:
Right-of-use assets 87 FHHE 5 E
— Leasehold lands —fHE i 35,395 40,091
— Office premise — WA EYE 1,591 1,883
36,986 41,974
The maturity analysis, based on A R B B B
undiscounted cash flows, of the AEFHHEAMGYN
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows: I H 3 Hran s
— Less than 1 year —— RN 832 872
— Between 1 and 2 years ——4EDL B EWAE LA 161 800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

Ak B 255 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #&E_-F - “4F+_H =+ —H L4

LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS -

18. LS B f A 2E 3 — &8

CONTINUED
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T 55 NS B
Year ended 31 December: BET_HA=Z1T—HIL4E:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  fii Ffl i & 2 B 47 # B 3¢
— Leasehold lands —fE i 2,530 2,154
— Office premise —WNEYE 2,033 1,360
Less: amounts included in property, Bl FEAZE - R B R A
plant and equipment A HH (1,404) (1,442)
3,159 2,072
Lease interests L& R & 137 156
Total cash outflow for leases HEME &0 E 8% 2,632 1,744
Addition of right-of-use assets o 1 HE S P O 1,828 =
Addition to right-of-use assets through 375 08 G I S A ] O
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13) i I REE E (BifsE13) = 4,443
Disposal of right-of-use assets — leasehold  H} 8 {f Jfl #E ¥ & — & + #b
lands 217 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets it ) RE ¢ 2 W (B A 1 2,036 =

The Group leases various leasehold lands and office
premise. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
carried out review of the recoverable amount of its right-
of-use assets as a result of the deterioration of the markets
of the Group’s business. The reviews led to an impairment
losses of approximately RMB2,036,000 have been
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2022. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of
RMB36,986,000 has been determined on the basis of
their value in use using discounted cashflow method. The
discount rate used was 13 per cent.

AEMHEZEHE LW EHAEYE-
AL 16 ok 19 181 € 299 BR 28 W 2523 504F - A
B R T o A ) R AT R - AL A
N[5 B8 A T B A6 AP < AL B 6 kSl 48 e o A
o] 25 - T AH B A AN S A £ B R Y
Pk -

BE_Z - _F+A=+—HIEE
M A AL B 2B R T 5 Al AL C
6T P R T 114 T [ i kTR A AT TR A o AR
5| 2 4 N R #2,036,00078 19 B (H &5 1H E
RBEE_FE__—_HF#+_HA=+—HI%E
JE B R £ RE SR o AH B EE A T [ ORI
N R #36,986,00070 77 £ F 1l 51 31 4 0 =
T B A LA R L R G o T BR D Y G B R
F513% o
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19.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Movements of biological assets, representing ginseng
planted and grapes growing on bearer plants, are
summarised as follows:

19. APEE
EYEE (BEEEEYERGREEA
ST ) B B A T

RMB’000

ANR¥TF ot

At 1 January 2021 W_EZ—F—H—H 2,642
Increase due to acquisition of subsidiaries Wk B R R D E A 2 o (BfEEEL3)

(note 13) 30,840
Increase due to cultivation B KE BT B N 1,533
Transfer to inventories A (5,853)
Change in fair value of biological assets EYEEANTEES 4,299
At 31 December 2021 W_Ez _—F+H=+—H 33,461
Increase due to cultivation B HE T B0 3,953
Transfer to inventories AL (5,760)
Change in fair value of biological assets EYEEANTEES 12,049
At 31 December 2022 W_FE__H#+-_A=+—H 43,703

Cultivation costs incurred as addition to the ginseng and
grapes.

Ginseng wine products which generally use ginseng planted
for 5 years as raw materials and all ginseng has been
planted for three years (2021: two years) as at 31 December
2022. No ginseng are transferred to inventories of the
Group for production during the year ended 31 December
2022.

All grapes are harvested annually from August
to November of each year. The output of grapes
was 765 tonnes (2021: 780 tonnes) during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Grapes of approximately

60, 000 (2021: approximately RMBS5,853,000) are

PRI\ 2 0 4 25 1) 38 0 T 8 A 5 A AR

N2 AR B FE i — M T AR AR A
%Wﬁ&ﬁﬁ*ﬂrﬁﬁ%ﬁ}\%ﬁ’;‘:i‘?:#
F+ A=+ —-HEEME=F (

S WA cBE ?——iﬂ“ H
=4 BRI MU S AR A
BERRERE-

T RN ERN A &+ — H AT
Rilk- B2 _FZ-__#+_-_HA=+—H
Ll A 5 2 R R A T65ME (T T —4F
780ME) o £ A\ K #5,760,0000C ( % ——
A ﬁ’JAE'ﬁ%‘S 85300071: E‘J’%’fﬁaﬁ}\




19.

20.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - CONTINUED
CLIMATE, DISEASE AND OTHER NATURAL
RISKS

The Group’s biological assets are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases and other natural
forces. The Group has extensive processes in place aimed
at monitoring and mitigating these risks, including regular
inspections, disease controls, surveys and deinsectisation.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from
changes in the market price of ginseng and grapes. A
significant increase/decrease in the estimated market
price or the estimated production quantity would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
biological assets.

The Group does not anticipate that the market price
of ginseng and grapes will decline significantly in the
foreseeable future and, therefore, has not entered into
derivative or other contracts to manage the risk of a decline
in market prices of ginseng and grapes. The Company
reviews its outlook for market prices of grapes regularly in
considering the need for active financial risk management.

For the fair value measurement of biological assets please
refer to note 6.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and consumables JEM A B 5 FE b
Work in progress TE 8

Finished goods B R

19.

20.

T ¥
S ~ W R A A% M B

A B B0 A ) T B 52 SRR B AL~ PO
B oAb B 48 03 B 2 Ky o A< 4R B 2
A it DA B AR % A B LA
SEHEATARER ~ BORHE R ~ T0E S BRERSF

S 5 L

A S T T B DR N 2 R T A ) E R
F B B Ja gk o At T A O 4
T/ 2 5 M A ) ) T (K
s, B o

A 45 [ FEUW N 2 A0 4 A A9 T (R AE R SN
N O 7S B o A S VAR e SR
sCH b & A0 DU BN 200 o A T E T B
1 JEL B o A% )R 2 R Ak S S 5 L B
LG SR B[R] B > B S S0 A vl L S 4 i A
W

W) B AP E R RS 2 B M REG

1

2022 2021
RO R
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS T ANRBT T
77,448 112,986
88,772 89,138
4,112 8,190

b

170,332




Al

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows a credit period of 90 to 180 days (2021:
30 to 180 days) to its trade customers except for the new
customers which payment is made when wine products
are delivered. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end

il

B 55 M e e 5k
AEMZTTHE S EFOEISOR (—F
T AE30F180K) M fE B M F P
TP HE A A} 0 2 T TR S A K TE o LA R
B o R s 2 B ) (B A Rk
i MR H I AE ) 550 1 = 5 I LR B

of the reporting period, which approximated the respective HR B4 43 A7
revenue recognition dates.
2022 2021
S St S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR¥TE
Trade receivables B 5 MEWIR X 139,068 122,976
Less: loss allowances W s TR A (6,583) (4,235)
132,485 118,741

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the

5 by M iR 2 S U S A R 48

invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: %2 MR Ty

2022 2021
o Tt SN Sy
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ Tt YN SR
0 — 90 days 0F 90K 40,699 90,428
91-180 days 91%180K 32,365 20,202
181 — 365 days 1812365k 59,421 1,442
Over 365 days 365k b - 6,669
132,485 118,741

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: & T I i R ke 48 8 A 1 IR

2022
SRR
RMB’000
ARWE Tt

4,235
2,348




21. TRADE RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED 21. B 5 IR — &

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS A A [ B P A v BB A R R SR OBRIE T
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime 1) i 2 77 15 5 T A 2 5 I WA R {4
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure B TE A e R T B B
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been I TG S B 5 IR R E R
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and F[m] {75 B JE B R U B 5 H R 0 5
the invoice date aging. The expected credit losses also TR B e 1R TR £ 3 A WS I R

incorporate forward looking information.

Within 91-180 181 -365 Over
90 days days days 365 days Total
ORI 91E180K 181%365K 365KW Lk At
At 31 December 2022 KB4
+ZH=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate  fIIHE -4 7 ] i 8 R 1.50% 5.60% 6.40% =
Receivable amount (RMB’000) G qEE+-JUNT S ) 41,319 34,274 63,475 = 139,068
Loss allowance (RMB’000) JERRA (NRET ) 620 1,909 4,054 = 6,583
At 31 December 2021 R4
+ZH=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate il T~ ¥4 T 1 s 48 % 1.50% 7.00% 10.00% 15.00%
Receivable amount (RMB’000) i &8 (AR T o) 91,805 21,723 1,602 7,846 122,976
Loss allowance (RMB’000) JERRA (NRHET ) 1,377 1,521 160 1,177 4,235

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND  22. 3 fis B Beak 98 ~ 32 4 B BUAT =% H

PREPAYMENTS
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T8 N e
Current H1E:t]
Rental deposit FH & e 4 287 297
Receivables for disposal of property, plant  H &8 2 « it 5 K it 5 LA &
and equipment and right-of-use assets o FH HE R 2 IR M R IR 1,900 =
Other tax receivables Al i B IE 1,784 8,043

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H:fll & Wi 3 IH ~ # 4x J
A A BKIH 325 103




23.

24.

25

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 23. 847 KB &
As at 31 December 2022, the bank balances carry interest REoFEZ T A= —H o BATE R
at average market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2021: iz 4 T 35 F A T0.01% 2££0.3% (
0.01% to 0.3%) per annum. Conversion of approximately T4 0.01% F0.3%) 5FEFE -4
RMB70,867,000 (2021: approximately RMB85,629,000) A K #70,867,0000C ( —F ~—4F: K A
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign [ #85,629,0007C ) i 4 7% S 70 3% Bl
Exchange Control Regulations. S BE & SR 2 KRR
TRADE PAYABLES 24. ¥ 5 HEAM IR
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables DL R s AR 8 2 H A 25019 &
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the 5y AR MR Ak 1 B i 3 A -
reporting period:
2022 2021
Sem -z &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T8 N Y o
0 — 30 days 0230k 238 12,896
31 - 60 days 312 60K 220 5,089
61 — 90 days 61290k 1,763 -
2,221 17,985
The average credit period on purchase of raw materials TR 68 i b1 ORL B SF- 945 B A A o W A = A
ranges from two to three months. ARG o
The Group has financial risk management policies in place A A 1) L A B 5 L e BB > A T T
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit P 7 A R K AR A5 B B A -
timeframe.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. il HE A a3k 9 B ME 51 £ 1
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ Tt ARWT T

9,861
6,127
3,984



27.

AMOUNT DUE TO A SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES

27.

A —
KK

% S A O T SR A R RS R ZE

AL £ %

*®

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments

% L 5% 0 2 51 £
2022 2021 2022 2021
TR CE TFE-AE BRSO SR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFLE AR®Fr ARBEFLE AR®TL
Within one year —4ERAA 832 872 754 794
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ F55 “AFE R H A (A FF A 161 800 159 786
993 1,672 913 1,580
Less: Future finance charges W R ARG B (80) (92)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAENZHE 913 1,580
Less: Amount due for settlement B 1218 B 250 28 4 s Y
within 12 months (shown under T (5 A m B A )
current liabilities) (754) (794)
Amount due for settlement 121 F % 21 1A 31 76 45 7 1 30
after 12 months 159 786

At 31 December 2022, the average effective borrowing rate
was 4.75% (2021: 4.75%). Interest rates are fixed at the
contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

WR_FE-__—_#+-_A=+—H:FH
B ER R HAT75% (& . — 4
4.75%) o M HRFTILG K% B Z > WA

L4 A £ I R 52 2 P (EL A 25 LB,
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28.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 11 February 2021 (the “Issue Date”), the convertible
bonds with the nominal value of HK$40,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds™) were issued to two placees namely
Mr. Koo Yuen Kim (#4554 ) and Mr. Sim Tsz Shiong
(UL £ M5 4) who are independent third parties. The
Convertible Bonds will due on the second anniversary of
the Issue Date or (if not a business day) the business day
immediately before the date of the second anniversary of
the Issue Date (the “Maturity Date”).

The Convertible Bonds is convertible in whole amount or
multiple of the minimum denomination of HK$1,000,000
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between
the Issue Date and the Maturity Date. The Convertible
Bonds, if exercised in full, will be convertible to a
maximum 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
share. If the Convertible Bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed at par on the Maturity Date. Interest
of 15 per cent per annum will be paid half-yearly up until
the Maturity Date.

The Company may at any time from the fourth month of
the Issue Date to the Maturity Date redeem the Convertible
Bonds at 100% of the outstanding principal amount (in
whole amount or multiple of the minimum denomination
of HKS$1,000,000) in cash by serving at least 30 business
days’ prior written notice on the bondholders with the total
amount proposed to be redeemed from the bondholders
specified therein.

The bondholders may at any time from (i) the sixth month
of the Issue Date to the Maturity Date and (ii) the first
anniversary of the Issue Date to the Maturity Date, request
the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds at (i) 50%
and (ii) 100% of the outstanding principal amount in cash
by serving at least 30 business days’ prior written notice
on the Company with the total amount proposed to be
redeemed by the bondholders specified therein, respectively.

28.

W 6 )B4 %
AE—FEH+—H ([847H]) >
T {EL £540,000,000% 7T Y AT #2525 ([ af
WS ]) BT T A KE A Bl
A e Kt LA (W AMLE =
J7) o B R B A N R BR AT H S AW A 4F
Al (k& 2En) e T 0 (W
EHZAREZER (TR ) 2 -

EIECY &l F =i iR E N R )
Iy R > DA I T (EL1,000,000 85 7€ /Y 52 4 4>
R A O R Ty AR N ) I e ] R i
i 75 (TN AT () A% mf 46 2o A 2 ) B
2400,000,000 /8 45 JI% T {50.01#5 7T 19 ¥ 48
JiE > B A 2 A5 0. 1098 IT o 40 7T 36 B 1
5 R A > L B 0 v ] o
FE B AR A — R FE IR B15%
HEFMH AL -

AN F AR EEAT HAE U A EF8 M HE W
AEAT IRE FH] > 4784 1) 5 25 R N8 2030
i 2 26 H W H e w8 b Js B
kI E SRR A AN AR ) > LBl 4
75 o I [ R AH 2 AR & AH100% (58 % & 58
¥, % 1% 167 (B0 1,000,000 JT 19 £ #0) (1) 7] #2
&5 -

EHFEA AR G) 847 HE S H 25
BB R (1) #47 H 25— (8845 H 23 H1 H
PR AT AR] 1R[] 5 25 4 ) A 3 ®) 8% i 2 2D 304M
w2 H O S A CF P A R
P A 5 9 A N [ 9 48 4 1) BEoR AR N ]
53 Al A B 4 O 2K I e R 05 2 A 4 B Y (i)
50% Mz (ii) 100% F4 A] # f & 55



CONVERTIBLE BONDS - CONTINUED
On 25 August 2021, Mr. Koo Yuen Kim and Mr. Sim Tze
Shiong entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Bon Voyage Development Limited (the “Transferee”)
who is an independent third party, in relation to transfer
the Convertible Bonds and related interest receivable
to the Transferee. The transaction was completed on
13 September 2021 and the Transferee agreed to waive the
Convertible Bonds interest for the period from the Issue
Date to 10 December 2021. On 10 December 2021 (the
“Conversion Date”), Transferee converted the full amount
of HK$40,000,000 convertible bonds into 400,000,000
ordinary shares.

The Group has engaged an independent valuer, Hong Kong
Appraisal Advisory Limited, to determine the fair values of
the Convertible Bonds as at the Issue Date and Conversion
Date.

28.

ANH T H H ek
Ko vk - e e A B8 7. %8 = )5 Bon Voyage
Development Limited ([ 3% A ) #7372
B Wk N A B 7 s N ] R
JBEAE 55 I AR B HE M R B - 7% 58 & B
Fo—FENAT=ZA%M ZHEANRE
WMEABTHE X2 -—44¢+-A+H
HA R0 ] e R AR 2 R R e A R T —4F
+ZA+H (A > Z@AEE
T 4 %640,000,00095 T AT 6 B fif 5 et o 7
400,000,000 % 3% 4 A -

A S 2 % W0 S 1 B 5 o (I
A7 B B R B AT F BB B YT e
B 25 1 2

LEVEL 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS ;T R
Fair value as at
W UUE H OB A CEE
Conversion Issue
Date Date
L E SR ] 47 H
Description Valuation technique Inputs RMB’000 RMB’000
Wt i 805 ¥ LN & AR ¥ Tt AR ¥ T
Convertible bonds Binomial model Share price
] 46 AR A AR e A5
Discount rate
eSS
Volatility
e
Conversion price 32,278 32,197

e S 1




CONVERTIBLE BONDS - CONTINUED

28 28. WHRBAE S — B
The movements of the Convertible Bonds during the year BE - ZF - —F+_HA=1+—HIEFE
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: A 6 R I 0 S5 1 YL
RMB’000
N L BT
Net proceeds from issue of the Convertible BEAT AT B AR SR 1 BT A K E T
Bonds (Being the gross proceed of (RP T 15 3k TH AL A 49 N R
approximately RMB33,323,000 33,323,0007C (40,000,000%5 7C)
(HK$40,000,000) net with direct cost of R B4 AR K AN R 1,126,00000
approximately RMB1,126,000 (approximately (#11,352,000% 70) )
HK$1,352,000)) 32,197
Foreign exchange gain e 50,05 4 (643)
Fair value loss UNSEEEN <Fi} 724
Converted L8] (32,278)
At 31 December 2021 W_FE_—H+-_A=+—H -
Set out below is the detailed breakdown of expected T 2R H AT A B AR BT AR K T AR
timeline, intended use and actual use of net proceeds raised #1 N R 32,197,00000 1Y T8 31 IRF 6 2% - 4
of approximately RMB32,197,000 of the Convertible S FR A BB B 0 R E 1 B AR
Bonds:
Expected use of Actual use of Amount of
Expected timeline of utilization net proceeds proceeds net proceeds
Jt 45wk JH
T 11 By A ey ] R P 4% ok JH ST N & JIt 4%k JH B B i FHEeW
RMB’000
N Y o
February 2021 — December 2021 Purchase and manufacture  All proceeds were fully 28,197
of grape wine products utilized as intended use
—E AR A 7] T T R B e A B BT AR S E 4%
) —ET—4ETZH e Fa B uE A
- February 2021 — December 2021 General working capital All proceeds were fully 4,000

- utilize

d as intended use
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SHARE CAPITAL

29. JBA

2022 2021
o Sty -4
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#x Tt
Authorised: HE
10,000,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000,000) A R T £50.0145 T 1
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,000/1
(mF
10,000,000,000% ) 3 4 f% 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: DT LB
2,940,548,000 (2021:2,640,548,000) 5 JE T £50.0135 7T 1)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2,940,548,000/1%
(ZF 4
2,640,548,000/% ) % 3 A% 29,406 26,406
2022 2021
T St - SEy:
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 YN e
Shown in the consolidated financial &R TS R R 2R
statements
At 31 December wt-H=+—H 25,216 22,748

Movement of the number of shares issued and the share

A S OB AT R B E A S B AR

capital during the current period is as follows:

At 1 January 2021

Allotment and issue of Consideration
Shares (note 13)

Convertible bonds conver

Number of

shares Amount

& 45 H KHH

’000 HKS$’000

T T¥o0

W_F - —%—H—H 2,013,018 20,131
W 5% S s AT B By

(BfF5E13) 227,530 2,275

400,000
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30.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 10 May
2019 for the primary purpose of enabling the Company to
grant options to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company to eligible participants (including
directors, employees, suppliers of goods and services,
consultants, advisers, contractors, business and service
partners of the Group) to recognize and reward their
contributions and/or as incentives for retaining them for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
for its long-term growth and development.

At 31 December 2022, no share option has been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme. At
31 December 2021, the aggregate shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Scheme was 200,000,000, representing 7.57% of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme (as the case may be) is not permitted to exceed
30% (2021: 30%) of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted
to any individual in within any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue or with
a value in excess of HKS$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HKS$1 per grant. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share options to such date as determined by the
directors of the Company but in any event not exceeding
10 years. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company, and will not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

30.

DA JBe By 7 2% W W 458 3k
VIR 2 4 500k B A it

ARAFBHER ZF—ILERA T HREH
A 2N w) B e RE ST 8 (Tazstb @) > H &
BHWESANTF ]G EKSZHEE (4
WHEE B &Y KRB ALRERT ~ R
A RN~ RCRL TR A AR T 2T A IR
BB 1) 2 ] 58 I AR 2 /) 4 0,013
TC % i 2 BEIRRE > DA A B 36 48 LR R
B/ WAE By R AR R R
JERTAE B 2 B Rk BT A R Y S - AR
R NG

MRoZ A=t H o MRS
FhE S A B R AT B R o A =
T—®t A=+t —H R RER
R i SR AT A A B S RE B R B AR 8
£5200,000,000/% > A & A AR A F R #Z HE
BEAT IEAY B97.57% o MR % wt 8 (R4 W
T 28 ) T B 45 AT A R AT A8 1 r A
AT {7 B I RE REAT AR W] T AT Y B
J A7 H8 H > A A5 R AR A 4 R A A o] IR A 2
BEAT AN BI30% (& . —4E 1 30%) o it
s o e 515 BN 7 A s 7 i m s LI 1
AN A 0 B B RE S e i B B AT KA T
TR R B H > 763 S AR 2 A i A S it
TEAG UL > AS15 8 A 28 &) i AT Ao IR
BEAT A 1% o Wn 4% T 3 2 M R s 4 °F
IE AT 2 0 M B R A W) BT
% 30.1% > 3% A8 {E 8 % 5,000,000 7€ > HIJ
WWh 7B TR SE SR AN ) R A o o

132t B0 S B AE w0 ZHUTS 432 U B s O P R
G B R 7E SO B YR A
1985 T IRF 452 A o U S HEE T S e A T IS O
H 2 A 2y A 2 2 R E B H O 2 1k 0
W IR AT i - EL7E A AT 1955 0L A B 0 ) R 4R
A ATHE T M A AR EREE
HAGRRUT=2F0REE: O)FL
A A3 A B B A T AR 5 (i) BX R AR
A TR S AR - 2 T
K (i) A5 2% 7 S A7 B T L



SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
CONTINUED

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME - CONTINUED

Details of specific categories of outstanding options as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

IR U
Date of grant Number of options Exercisable period
il H Vi ¢ HE 8 H e
21 September 2021 Nil (2021: 200,000,000) 23 September 2021 to
22 September 2022
“ET-FAAZT—H (R T —4:200,000,0000) “FZ—FEAASF=
e St 1Y Rty g

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

VIR 20 45 S JBE Al it ) — 49

RoF - ERCF S F A
b R T 10 O I 2 5

Exercise price

fT A

HK$0.1

HE 0.1% T
H

TEBEBALNFANRBE T _F R

share options granted under the Scheme during the years F_—FT_HA=Z1+—HILFEREZ
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021: R L i R Y S )
2022 2021
[SE St SEC
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share options price  share options price
TR - 35 JIHEF- 2
ik I HE 0 fififl  ERERE fififE
HK$ HKS$
7T BT
Outstanding at the beginning A i R AT
of the year 200,000,000 0.1 66,200,000 0.263
Exercised during the year AR AT (200,000,000) 0.1 = =
Granted during the year JRAE MR - - 200,000,000 0.1
Lapsed during the year AR R KA = - (66,200,000) 0.263
Outstanding at the end of the year  JFMEA M KT - - 200,000,000 0.1
Exercisable at the end of the year - - 0.1

AT

200,000,000
T——
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30.

31.

Ao o B 5 A M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_-F - 44+ _H =+ —H L4

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
CONTINUED

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME - CONTINUED

200,000,000 share options were exercised (2021: Nil) and
no share options were lapsed (2021: 66,200,000), granted
(2021: 200,000,000) or forfeited (2021: Nil) during the
year ended 31 December 2022. The options outstanding as
at 31 December 2021 have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.73 year and the exercise price is
HKS$0.1. In 2021, 200,000,000 share options were granted
on 21 September 2021. 40,000,000 share options were
granted to the two executive directors and remaining
160,000,000 share options were granted to eight full-time
employees of the Group. The estimated fair values of the
share options granted on those dates are approximately
HK$2,811,000 (approximately RMB2,334,000).

The fair value of the share options granted on
21 September 2021 was calculated using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model are as
follows:

Closing price as at grant date (HKS$)

Weighted average exercise price (HK$) TIHREF- 3547 (5 (
Expected volatility T 0%
Expected life T 3 4 )

Risk free rate 91 3 B ) %
Expected dividend T A i
RESERVES 31.

(A) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued
to the shareholders of the Company as fully
paid bonus shares or in providing for the
premiums payable on repurchase of shares.

30.

At H A 2 i (
(#0)

VA JBe By 7 2E W W 45F K —
VIR i %5 Sl B ko) — it

BE_Z-_"HF+-_A=+— EIJLEH;Z’
200,000,000 % B fE A 47 4 ( =& ——

AE M) Mo ME AR B RE LA (T
1 66,200,00003) i (ZFE Z— 4
200,000,000 ) B¢ 7 Y (=& — — 4

) M ZEFE - H = —H M
AT AH 2 W5 B RE 2 0 RE - 35 R 8% 5 £ 4R
W1 250.734F > T AT AR 25018 0T o A = F
S AR FE LA
H 1% 11200,000,000 1 i % #E - 40,000,000
15&&%&*&%&??1@%%%%% fix T
160,000,000 %> [ i HE 1 #5274 4 [ )\ 4
TR B - R e% % H IR 2 B RE >~
Al wE A (8 5 492,811,000 7T (45 N R
2,334,0007C) ©

AZFE S A — H TR R
12 (B — o X R S A B
S o LR W A BRI

#Io)

i fhi

(A ASEE M < B R BN AR
15 f e HL At 4 T i 4R R DA S AR A
5 3 EE

(B) it % H
() e
e 13 i 1B 4 DL HE A K A I
T (B 2 8 M 8% 47 B A BT &
Az s fE > B AT AR
IR (B AT A SCA I B AT T
A o T e R DAAE B R AL
Je 2 A% AR B AT W4y > B
$2 3k i [m] B g T 26 2 A 2
i 1



31. RESERVES - CONTINUED 31. fii B — &
(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (B) i ff PE BT B H 0y — 4
- CONTINUED
(ii)  Share options reserve Gi) B R £
The share-based payment reserve represents D 03 o B B 2 A R A
the fair value of the actual or estimated T5 46 B A% Wi B B s A s
number of unexercised share options granted RAT R HEBE 2 & °F
recognised in accordance with the accounting 18> I A 45 5 B S Rk K BT
policy adopted for equity-settled share-based 302 DARE 4 &5 5030 D B By
payments in note 30 to the consolidated By FE T ) A5 K BT AR Al 2 g
financial statements. FHEUR T LARERE
(iii)  Other reserve (i) Al £k
The other reserve represents the fair value A % A 8 AR BE A5 A B
of Consideration Shares to be allotted and 2 BE R 13 i B R A
issued recognised in accordance with the AT BR & R O R
accounting policy adopted for acquisition of T EC B KR AT 2 AU
subsidiaries in note 13 to the consolidated B Z N F1H »
financial statements.
(C) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (C) A2 ) fifi i
Share
Share options Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss Total
B T P HE G oAb ik 5 Bt e F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FIE AR¥WFT AR¥FLC AR¥TFLT AR¥®TC
At 1 January 2021 WoE_—F—H—H 910,541 4,617 - (832,872) 82,286
Total comprehensive expense A TR 4 TH B S AR
for the year - - - (15,589) (15,589)
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B ) 2 ) 15,224 = 13,143 = 28,367
Convertible bonds converted 4 ] 408 R 29,011 - - - 29,011
Share option lapsed 8 e R Ak = (4,617) = 4,617 =
Share option granted W I 2 = 2,334 = - 2,334
At 31 December 2021 R-FZ—4
+=HA=+—H 954,776 2,334 13,143 (843,844) 126,409

At 1 January 2022 954,776

comprehensive

(2,334)

(843,844) 126,409

(7,228 (7,228)

(7,507) (816)
- 14,865

978,666

(851,072)

133,230
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  32.

OF THE COMPANY

A2 v B R O R

2022 2021
ot Sotet: SN Sy
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AR¥FT
Non-current assets I B B
Investments in subsidiaries AW A F 2 A 30,224 30,224
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE A i S 2 7 3K IR 138,647 127,561
168,871 157,785
Current assets Wi B &
Deposits and prepayments i 4 J AT EROA 231 270
Bank balances BRAT &5 B 25 194
256 464
Current liabilities i B 2
Amount due to a substantial shareholder — FEfT— 4% T % % H ~ K IEH 6,301 5,929
Other payables and accruals At R A5 30 K E ST 2 4,380 3,163
10,681 9,092
Net current liabilities i B B {5 (10,425) (8,628)
Total assets less current liabilities A8 7 DU B AR 158,446 149,157
Capital and reserves B A B Ak
Share capital A 25,216 22,748
Reserves G 133,230 126,409
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 48 %0 158,446 149,157

The Company’s statement of financial position was

0 »direct 0

§$@E’\ Fo=EHE=E FJ -i“EH’H:i’E&




33.

34.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

33. HEA&MEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in AEEEMELEA AR ERNSE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern HE BE 4 Rr AR > Rl PR3 R AL A AR B
while maximising the return to shareholders through the HE £ 14~ T % S BRCS B e o [ R o A 4
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s [FH] ) 2 S I BAL AR A 4 BE AH W] o

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity AL W) E AR AN A A NG
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued il B HE (36 O 3T IR A Rl L B s
share capital, reserves and accumulated losses. ) -

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure A A LG | RS A - AL
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and ] 25 A A B A A R B - NI A
the risks associated with the capital, and will balance its IRAT S~ AT Hﬁ&%lﬁ]ﬂﬁfﬁa\lx/l&w

overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares and share buy-backs as well as the
raising of new debts, if required.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. HEARRIWE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the AREBERRE R Z EARME W

reporting period are as follows:

M B i R B AL (MR )

2022 2021
ot St St
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN R¥F oo YN
Capital expenditure in respect of the N IR R ER NS
followings contracted for but not 5 PR R R A
provided in the consolidated financial AR BH 3L
statements:
Acquisition of intangible assets i B 4 T 1,750 1,750
Development of wine estate and wine cellar ¥ & Vi 5 K& 8 25 2,300 3,600
4,050 5,350

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS gios ﬁﬂ‘mﬂﬁ‘iﬂ

ident Fund scheme




35.

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS -
CONTINUED

Forfeited contribution can be used to reduce future
contribution of the Group. There was no utilisation of
forfeited contribution during 2022 and as at 31 December
2022, there is no forfeited contribution receivable for
reduction of future contribution.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specific
contributions.

The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits
schemes of RMB3,424,000 (2021: RMB3,763,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

i 30 4 )
fe B 1% A A1

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Equity-settled share-based payments

FL B 19 15 3K

35.

36.

S8 A A it B — 4

& Wi ) A5 R AT R A B 2D A A R AR it
o A T T AR 4 B YR i it R R
CECCEFA=Z—H WEERR
Wi AL T AR B R AR A 3 o

7 B E Hp B RS Y B R S ED R B2
Hh I SRR A ) B K Y AR K
B9 B R o 7% S W 2> W ZH 3% — 2 L il T
A AS 1) R AR A o A AR R
PRAR F 5 B 0 ME — FAE 2 AF 45 5 K

A 42 [ BRI AE A EE B B R A AN R
M3,424,00000 (= F . — 44 AR
3,763,0007C) ©

BH 5 2 5
FEEBA BB

AE A B S R CH A 3 S BN B A 3 o
I @

2022 2021

O Sy S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T8 NEY S aT
4,963 5,395

170 225

- 1,400

7,020



PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name

i

Fullest Power Investments Limited

SREHARAT

Sino Trend International Limited

HAIRBARA R

Rich Treasure Link Limited
EHBARAR

Topping Future Limited
RIEARAR

Shine Wealth Hong Kong Group Limited
NEFEEEARAR

Tonghua Tongtian Winery Co., Ltd. (note 1)
BICBREEARAA (KD

Ji An Yaluo Wine Estate Co., Ltd. (note 1)
EERBTAARAA (5D

Place of incorporation

E AR S 2

The BVI
RRELTE

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

The PRC
HE

The PRC
o

Issued and paid-up capital

T IT RS BA

US§100,000
100,000 72

HKS!
1

HK$10,000
10,0004 7

HKS100
100i 7T

HK$10,000
10,0004 7

RMB87,110,000
AR 87,110,007

HK$40,000,000
40,000,000i# 76

ANFEEWE AN FE - F+

A=+—Hr=BEsImT :

Percentage
of the ownership
interest/voting power

1A RS/
REER LI
Direct Indirect
H# [E
100% -

100% =

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

B4

Investment holding

fEER

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding and
provision of
administrative services

R P Rt (T B

Investment holding

fEER

Investment holding

REER

Manufacturing and sale of
wine products and
processing of grape juice

BE RS EREEE R R
LA

Manufacturing and sale of
wine products and
processing of grape juice

R T R A



37.

" PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY -
CONTINUED

Name Place of incorporation  Issued and paid-up capital
1 G R ] CRITRAERA
Yantai Baiyanghe Winery Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBA4,949,960

(“Yantai Baiyanghe™) (note 2) H B H4,949,9607C
A REMRREAREEAA (TEAAEN])

(H3E2)
Tonghua City Hong Shuo Industrial Limited (Note 2) The PRC RMBA405,063,300
B ZRIERMA T (Hi2) i B 405,063,300
Notes
1 These companies are wholly-foreign owned enterprises

established in the PRC.

2 The Company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC.

The following table shows information of the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the
Group. The summarised financial information represents
amounts before inter-company eliminations.

A2 ) 2 A —

Percentage
of the ownership
interest/voting power Principal activities
e e 42/
S A1 EX-2i7 )
Direct Indirect
Hf% fel %

- 60% Manufacturing and sale of
wine products and
processing of grape juice

U T A E O
MILF T

- 95% Ginsang plantation
EHAZ

1 A% SOy A S A v BRRST  A R A

X

[\
iﬂ:

A E S TE B G B AN G AR

R R A A AR T R 2 JF
PR ([JREEBemEds ) 2 B A F &
ko By Rt 2 BB EORHE  F R 8 A 2




PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY -

37.

CONTINUED
Name Yantai Baiyanghe
E (Rl S RERT]
2022 2021
Principal place of business/country of incorporation The PRC The PRC
FEE ML B R ] i
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI 40% 40%
i A HEE R i %0, T TR A T 0 15 SR 40% 40%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T8 ANR¥ETF T
At 31 December: RTH_H=+—H:
Non-current assets B EE 32,818 37,504
Current assets B G 174,786 176,855
Current liabilities i B A & (2,839) (5,630)
Net assets A 204,765 208,729
Accumulated NCI 25t IR £ b 4 81,906 83,491
Year ended 31 December: BET-A=1+—HIL4EE:
Revenue i i 64,852 63,013
(Loss)/profit (Kat8) Al (3,964) 14,865
Total comprehensive (expense)/income AT (BSZ) ik ts SR (3,964) 14,865
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCIT 53 BT IF PR R A
(E518) i Fl (1,585) 5,946
Dividends paid to NCI AT T IR R A 2 R = =
Net cash inflow from operating activities — #£45 1% B 19 B 4 i A 19 34 3,418 13,900
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing & T B Y 3 4
activities (W) AR (318) 29
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 314 % 3 4 %5 {5 9 3% Jin ¥ %8 3,100 13,929




38.

38

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

38. RS WA A A A R

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
cash flows from financing activities.

Amount due to

TERFEAEMBEFHEENAMKZ
28 UEBAEAFREEE - MEIEE)
EEANABEAHERECKIRKRE &
U8 1 0 U A 4 ) O 9 A s B

EWBEN AR -

Amount due to

Total liabilities

Convertible  non-controlling a substantial Lease  from financing
bonds shareholder shareholder liabilities activities
HERH R HEN — A EE il ¥ ) 2
4 i £ % B 3k I B sk I L B 1 £ fi A8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ANR#T T AR#T T ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 WoE-——H—H = = 3,769 3,168 6,937
Financing cash flows Mg B AR 32,197 16 2,160 (1,744) 32,629
Non-cash changes FHEEH
— Acquisition of subsidiaries — I A 2 ) - 1,073 - - 1,073
— Change in fair value of convertible bonds — ARG 5
NTEET) 724 - - = 724
~ Convertible bonds converted — T R R (32,278) = - - (32,278)
~ Foreign exchange gain — MU 5 (643) - - - (643)
— Finance costs incurred during the year —IENEEZ G R A - = = 156 156
At 31 December 2021 REFZ—4
+-A=+—H - 1,089 5,929 1,580 8,598
Financing cash flows il B 0 - (1,089) 372 (2,632) (3,349)
Non-cash changes FHEEH
— Addition of leases —HERE = - = 1,828 1,828
— Finance costs incurred during the year — RN Z R A - - - 137 137
At 31 December 2022 e S—
T=E=r—F - - 6,301 913 7,214
APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 39. HmFMBEREZME

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authori

d for issue by the directors on 30 March 2023.

BEMBERKREEFRR T _=4F=H

= H A R AR B o




)

TONTINE

China Tontine Wines Group Limited
S BUPSTIE S SUE ) AT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OB R . A R A A
Stock Code A R5%: 389
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